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GROUP STRUCTURE
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
(the “Company”)
FHLKEEERTRQA
(M2&=271)
and

&

its subsidiaries (the “Group”)

HBAE ([AEH])
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with focus on
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Property Securities
Investments Trading

MERE BHEE

Cruise Ship
Charter Services
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Note:

The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2019 has been
restated to reflect the effect of adoption of merger accounting for
common control acquisition during the year ended 31 March 2020.
The financial information for the three years ended 31 March 2018,

2017 and 2016 has not been adjusted.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFHRES

Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of New Century Group Hong Kong Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present to the shareholders the
annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (“New
Century” or the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020
(the “Year").

By the time my team and | were preparing this report, the
outbreak of coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) has already
infected over ten million people around the world and left no
one untouched — both physically and economically. Hong
Kong, in particular, was hit hard by the double whammy of the
global epidemic and the local anti-government protest which
have been happening since the second half of 2019. The
gross domestic product of Hong Kong dropped by 8.9% year-
on-year in the first quarter of 2020, marking the steepest

contraction on record since 1974 for the city.

PERFORMANCE AMID VOLATILITY

Challenged by the rapid deterioration of business environment
due to the adverse internal and external factors, including but
not limited to the ongoing Sino-US trade war, the Group's
revenue for the Year decreased by 16.0% to HK$145,364,000
while profit attributable to owners of the Company dropped
67.4% vyear-on-year to HK$15,461,000. Earnings per share
recorded HKO.27 cents for the Year.

Over the years, we have always been looking for investment
opportunities to create new revenue streams. During the Year,
we completed the acquisition of 60% equity interest in ETC
Finance Limited (“ETC"), a licensed money lender in Hong
Kong. ETC focuses primarily on the provision of secured
mortgage loans and also provides a small portion of
unsecured personal loans in Hong Kong. The acquisition of
ETC brought in an interest income of HK$70,636,000

generated from the money lending business.

BURR
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Following the disposal of one of the Group's cruise ships
namely “Amusement World” in August 2018, together with
new charter agreement signed at lower daily charter fee for
the cruise ship namely “Leisure World" and the adverse impact
on the cruise ship business due to the outbreak of COVID-19,
the charter service income dropped by 18.8% to
HK$64,175,000 for the Year. In response to the spread of
COVID-19, Singapore and Malaysia have closed their borders
to seafarers and passengers and imposed 14-day self-
quarantine measures since mid-March 2020 even up till today,
which forced the charterer to suspend the operations of our
two cruise ships and caused the Group unable to receive the

charter fees during the suspension of the operations.

We understand that all the business sectors are suffering from
the current political, economic, social crises and COVID-19 all
at once; therefore, we have granted temporary rental
reductions of at least 10% to the tenants of our Hong Kong
investment properties since September 2019 riding out the
storm with our partners together. During the Year, we
achieved an occupancy rate of 96.9% for our Hong Kong and

Singapore investment properties.
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EFHRES

OUTLOOK

Even though the pandemic situation seems to be under
control in Hong Kong now, it is difficult to predict the
economic recovery in light of the escalation in the Sino-US
tensions and the persistent social unrest. We anticipate that
we shall continue to face various adverse factors and great
uncertainty. With both the stock and property markets in Hong
Kong remaining volatile and unpredictable, Hong Kong's
property price is now facing a downward pressure. Depending
on how the situation develops, any associated economic
slowdown and drop in collateral value of property may

negatively impact the Group's expected credit losses.

In view of Singapore’'s and Malaysia's gradual reopening of the
borders for some residents and some business travellers, it is
expected that our cruise ships may resume sailings at a later
time. In addition, as the social distancing and group gathering
measures will continue to go on, we believe the cruise ships
will be required to cut the number of people allowed onboard.
Therefore, in mid-June 2020, we came to a mutual agreement
with the charterer for an early termination of the existing
charter agreement for the operation of “Leisure World” and to
renew the charter agreements of both cruise ships at lower
daily charter fees with longer charter fee waiver period
effective from 1 July 2020. As of today, we have finalized all
the terms of the charter agreements and are preparing the
termination letter and the relevant new charter agreements for

execution.

With all of us being exposed in such a harsh business
environment, we will continue to offer all of our tenants for
both Hong Kong and Singapore investment properties the
temporary rental reduction which may somehow affect our
rental income. Yet on a positive note, this will help us
maintain a steady occupancy rate while showing our support

for local businesses and the community.
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All these challenges we are facing make us more cautious and
conservative in our business operations. Our team will
continue to closely monitor the development of all those
uncertainties, including COVID-19, and take all possible and
reasonable measures to mitigate the effects on our business
operations. With a team always making concerted efforts
through economic ups and downs over the years, | believe we
can adapt to whatever comes next and uphold the Group's

profitability during the downturn of economy.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all shareholders, investors, business partners and
clients for their continuous trust and support to the Group. |
would also like to extend my appreciation to all staff members

for their continuous commitment to our success.

Ng Wee Keat

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEET RS T

FINANCIAL REVIEW

On 30 September 2019, the Group completed an acquisition
of 60% equity interest in ETC at a total final consideration of
HK$497,640,000, and thereafter ETC has become an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The acquisition
of ETC is considered to be a business acquisition under
common control as the Company and ETC are both under the
common control of Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate
holding company of the Group. As such, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2019
has been restated as a result of the adoption of merger
accounting as if the subsidiaries and/or the business first
came under common control had occurred from the beginning

of the earliest financial years presented.

The Group recorded revenue of HK$145,364,000 and profit
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$15,461,000 for
the Year, representing a decrease of 16.0% and 67.4%
compared to revenue of HK$173,006,000 (Restated) and
profit attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$47,492,000 (Restated) last year respectively. Earnings per
share came to HKO0.27 cents for the Year (2019 (Restated):
HKO0.82 cents).

HEHELEEEEERLA

ko

RZZE-NAFAA=TH AEETKKE
ZPRR 600N ER  FRARKERER
497,640,000 7T * thi% - HIRARE KK R
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BHFR A LR ZEFIOEBEHE - Bt -
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ERMBRR R, SEBRYT HLRIZEH
AHEfEE  EBEHEAEEFR&ERMBEERE
B EEMF R EET] -

RARFEEA - & B 815K A 145,364,000
BT RARRABER AEILRT15,461,000%8
L BEFE Z W A173,006,000% 7T (&£ &=
H) RARRQ BB AL % F47,492,00078
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue

The Group's revenue amounted to HK$145,364,000 for the
Year, representing a decrease of 16.0% compared to
HK$173,006,000 (Restated) last year. The decrease in
revenue was mainly attributable to (i) a decrease in charter
service income from HK$79,011,000 last year to
HK$64,175,000 for the Year; (ii) a decrease in interest
income from secured mortgage loans and unsecured personal
loans from HK$73,598,000 (Restated) last year to
HK$70,636,000 for the Year; (iii) an increase in net realized
and unrealized losses on equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss from HK$6,450,000 last year to
HK$9,735,000 for the Year; (iv) fair value losses on derivative
financial instruments of HK$391,000 (2019: fair value gains
of HK$3,184,000); and (v) a decrease in dividend income
from equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
from HK$3,753,000 last year to HK$1,363,000 for the Year.

Cost of Services Provided

Cost of services provided, which was depreciation of cruise
ships, amounted to HK$19,499,000 for the Year, recording a
decrease of 4.0% compared to HK$20,303,000 last year. The
decrease was mainly due to the disposal on 31 August 2018,
of an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
which held 100% beneficial ownership in the cruise ship

“Amusement World".

TR E RS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEET RS T

Other Income and Gains
Other income and gains totalled HK$12,044,000 for the Year,

representing a decrease of 10.7% compared to
HK$13,483,000 (Restated) last year. This was mainly due to a

decrease in bank interest income.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses were HK$50,585,000 for the Year,
which dropped 8.7% compared with HK$55,428,000
(Restated) last year. The decrease was mainly attributable to
(i) maintenance expenses incurred for the cruise ship
“Amusement World” during its cessation of operations
between 2 July 2018 and 31 August 2018; and (ii) a
decrease in advertising and promotion expenses in money
lending business. The decrease in administrative expenses was
partially offset by an increase in legal and professional fees
incurred for the acquisition of 60% equity interest in ETC

during the Year.

Foreign Exchange Differences, Net

The Group recorded net foreign exchange losses of
HK$2,393,000 for the Year (2019: HK$10,990,000) because
of the depreciation of the Singapore dollar against the Hong
Kong dollar. The decrease of 78.2% in foreign exchange
losses was mainly due to a decrease of bank deposits placed

in Singapore dollar.

Surplus/(Deficit) on Revaluation of Cruise Ships

At the end of reporting date, the cruise ships were measured
at fair value with the revaluation deficit of HK$172,000 for the
Year (2019: surplus of HK$2,672,000) recognised in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Fair Value Gains/(Losses) on Investment Properties,
Net

The Group recorded net fair value losses of HK$24,634,000
for the Year (2019: fair value gains of HK$7,554,000) for

investment properties in Hong Kong and Singapore.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Reversal of/(Provision for) Impairment Losses on
Loan and Interest Receivables

Provision for impairment losses of HK$1,971,000 for the Year
(2019 (Restated): reversal of impairment losses of
HK$906,000) was recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. The provision was made for unsecured
personal loans for which the full recovery of loan and interest
receivables was in doubt due to bankruptcy of customers or

long overdue payments.

Income Tax Expense

The income tax expense decreased by 62.5% to HK$9,514,000
for the Year (2019 (Restated): HK$25,376,000).
The decrease was mainly attributable to certain of deferred tax
expense incurred in last year which was the result of the
change of usage for part of the office units at Shun Tak Centre
from investment properties to owner-occupied properties on
30 April 2018.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$15,461,000 for the Year, which recorded a decrease of
67.4% compared to HK$47,492,000 (Restated) last year. The
decrease in profit attributable to owners of the Company was
primarily due to a decrease in revenue from HK$173,006,000
(Restated) last year to HK$145,364,000 for the Year and net
fair value losses on investment properties of HK$24,634,000
(2019: fair value gains of HK$7,554,000). The decrease in
profit attributable to owners of the Company was partially
offset by (i) a decrease in administrative expenses from
HK$55,428,000 (Restated) last year to HK$50,585,000 for
the Year; (ii) a decrease in net foreign exchange losses from
HK$10,990,000 last year to HK$2,393,000 for the Year; and
(i) a decrease in income tax expense from HK$25,376,000
(Restated) last year to HK$9,514,000 for the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEET RS T

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled on
Tuesday, 29 September 2020 (the “Annual General
Meeting”). For determining the entitlement to attend and vote
at the Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 24 September 2020
to Tuesday, 29 September 2020, both days inclusive, during
which period, no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to
be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting,
all transfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 23
September 2020.

BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW

Money Lending

The Group completed the acquisition of 60% equity interest
in ETC, which is principally engaged in provision of finance
under a money lender licence in Hong Kong, at a total final
consideration of HK$497,640,000 on 30 September 2019.
Since then, ETC has become an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. As at 31 March 2020, the Group
had a net secured mortgage loan portfolio of
HK$660,506,000 (2019 (Restated): HK$790,930,000) and a
net unsecured personal loan portfolio of HK$26,276,000
(2019 (Restated): HK$32,225,000), representing 96.2%
(2019 (Restated): 96.1%) and 3.8% (2019 (Restated):

3.9%) of the total loan portfolio respectively.

The Group recorded interest income from secured mortgage
loans and unsecured personal loans amounting to
HK$70,636,000, which decreased by 4.0% compared to
HK$73,598,000 (Restated) last year. The decrease was mainly
due to a decrease in interest income from secured mortgage
loans by 4.2% from HK$66,988,000 (Restated) last year to
HK$64,145,000 for the Year, which was in line with the

decrease in secured mortgage loan balance.

HEHELEEEEERLA

EEHERRER
AAREITR-ZZE_ZEFAA-_T LB (E
Ho)RTRRBEARE (Fﬂx%ﬂiﬁ‘ﬂ)
RETHERRBFAGRNG ERRZE
M ARBBEH_BZTFAA-_THA(E
HMZE_Z_EFNATNB(EH )
(BREERMRX)EFEHERRER - Nt H
M ARREITgRHEEARNBEFLPERLRF
B-REEHERRBFEFRGRRE LRAR
2B ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁf BPEXHERBRBEREY
BAR-ZZ2_ZEFAA+=ZB(EBH=)T
q:IEET_+EH‘ RERARARBBZRMHB
FPELOIRLSEZERARAF (MILAE
BERRERISIKA MPL54E) #ETE
i e

R0 e R

Bi&
AEEER_FT-NAFALA=THZEXKE
PR 600 AN BRAZRERES

497,640,000 7T ' HIRRAEBEBTBREN
BARRBRCEREMBEES W& RN
ERARRRICEEFRZENBAG - R
TEF=ZA=1+—RH rEEZEERRR
1B E 4 A F 5 660,506,000 0 (ZF
—NEF (EEF) : 790,930,000/ 7T) » MK
HIANEFEE FEEH262760008 T (ZF
—NE (EE) : 32,225,000/ 7C) * 7 Bk
EFEEBE 29620 (ZT—NF (KET) :
96.1%) %3.8% (ZZ— N (4£E5) : 3.9%) o

AEEBRSEERRBERREERLAE
2 F B WA BET0,636,000/ T + EF
€ 273,598,000/ 7T (& &%) K 24.0% o
HBERDDEZEARAFRIFIRBERZFE
H&Am£¢§z66,988,ooo;mz(,%%EEIJ)»EY
D420 EAREE 264,145,000/ 7 © M H &
BEERRBERERR D ER -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

HFHELEEEEETRAA
Annual Report 2020 F3k

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In conjunction with the factors of (i) a decrease in advertising
and promotion expenses from HK$7,359,000 (Restated) last
year to HK$4,216,000 for the Year; (ii) a decrease in
depreciation of office unit at Katherine House from
HK$1,022,000 (Restated) last year to HK$255,000 for the
Year due to its usage changed from owner-occupied property
to investment property on 30 June 2019; and (iii) provision
for impairment losses on unsecured personal loan and interest
receivables of HK$1,971,000 (2019 (Restated): reversal of
impairment losses of HK$906,000) was recognised for the
Year, the Group's segment profit slightly decreased by 1.4%
to HK$55,714,000 for the Year (2019 (Restated):
HK$56,518,000).

Cruise Ship Charter Services

The charter services of two cruise ships namely “Leisure
World” and “Aegean Paradise” recorded income of
HK$64,175,000 for the Year (2019: HK$79,011,000). The
decrease of 18.8% was mainly due to (i) no charter service
income received from the cruise ship namely “Amusement
World" following its operation discontinued by the charterer on
2 July 2018 and the disposal of entire interest in a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group, which held 100% beneficial
ownership in “Amusement World”, to an independent third
party on 31 August 2018; (ii) daily charter fee of “Leisure
World” was reduced from S$13,800 to S$10,350 following the
new charter agreement signed with the existing charterer for a
term of two years effective from 1 July 2019; (iii) in view of
global outbreak of COVID-19 in January 2020 and its adverse
effect on the operations of cruise ships, special daily
allowances (being 30% reduction on daily charter fees) of
S$3,105 and S$7,140 were granted by the Group to the
charterer of “Leisure World” and “Aegean Paradise”
respectively from February 2020, which the charterer only
paid the net daily charter fees of S§7,245 and S$16,660 for
“Leisure World" and “"Aegean Paradise” respectively; and (iv)
due to further border and travel restrictions and 14-day self-
quarantine requirements imposed by the governments of
Singapore and Malaysia resulting in suspension of operations
for “Leisure World" and "Aegean Paradise”, exemption for
payment of net daily charter fees was further granted by the
Group to the charterer of two cruise ships with effect from
mid-March 2020 until their operations resume.
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Together with the effects of (i) a decrease in depreciation of
the cruise ships from HK$20,303,000 last year to
HK$19,499,000 for the Year due to the disposal of
“Amusement World” on 31 August 2018; (ii) special daily
subsidies of S$5,000 and S$10,000 were paid by the Group
to the charterer for the maintenance in a safe, clean and
hygienic state, good and operational condition of “Leisure
World” and “Aegean Paradise” respectively starting from mid-
March 2020 up to now during suspension of operations of the
two cruise ships subsequent to the outbreak of COVID-19.
Special subsidies paid for the Year amounted to
HK$1,252,000 (2019: Nil); (iii) maintenance expenses of
HK$5,486,000 incurred for “Amusement World" during its
cessation of operations in last year; (iv) decrease in foreign
exchange losses to HK$2,392,000 for the Year (2019:
HK$3,329,000); and (v) deficit on revaluation of cruise ships
of HK$172,000 (2019: surplus of HK$2,672,000) recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the Year, the
segment profit decreased by 20.5% to HK$40,757,000 for
the Year (2019: HK$51,293,000).

Property Investments

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's investment properties
consisted of five (2019: four) commercial properties in Hong
Kong and one (2019: one) commercial property in Singapore.
The usage of office unit at Katherine House in Tsim Sha Tsui
was changed from owner-occupied property to investment
property on 30 June 2019. Subsequently, it was leased out

on 16 April 2020 with a lease term of two years.

The Group's segment revenue from property investments
decreased slightly by 3.0% to HK$19,316,000 for the Year
(2019 (Restated): HK$19,910,000). In general, the Group's
investment properties achieved an occupancy rate of 96.9%
(2019: 99.7%) with an average annual rental yield of 3.4%
(2019: 3.2%).
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Rental income derived from Hong Kong investment properties
decreased by 3.7% to HK$17,434,000 for the Year (2019
(Restated): HK$18,095,000). The decrease was mainly due to
(i) temporary rental reductions of at least 10% were granted
to the tenants since September 2019 as a result of the
demonstration in Hong Kong and global outbreak of
COVID-19; and (ii) the change of the usage for part of the
office units at Shun Tak Centre from investment properties to
owner-occupied properties following the expiration of the

relevant tenancy agreement on 30 April 2018.

Rental income derived from investment properties in
Singapore increased by 3.7% to HK$1,882,000 for the Year
(2019: HK$1,815,000) due to an improvement in occupancy

rate compared to that of last year.

At each of the reporting date, investment properties were
measured at fair value. Net fair value losses on investment
properties amounted to HK$24,634,000 for the Year (2019:
fair value gains of HK$7,554,000). Hong Kong investment
properties recorded fair value losses of HK$32,600,000 for
the Year (2019: fair value gains of HK$6,400,000) while fair
value gains of HK$7,966,000 for the Year (2019:
HK$1,154,000) was recorded for Singapore investment

properties.

Property investments segment recorded a loss of
HK$9,146,000 for the Year (2019 (Restated): a profit of
HK$23,891,000).

Securities Trading

To reduce the market risk and focus resources on Hong Kong
stocks, the Group disposed of all stocks listed in Singapore in
August 2018. Since then, the Group's portfolio of securities
mainly consisted of the blue chips in the Hong Kong stock

market.
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As at 31 March 2020, the Group's equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss amounted to HK$14,119,000
(2019: HK$27,984,000). There were no individual equity
investments held by the Group which market value was more
than 5% of the net assets value of the Group. The details of

the Group's equity investments as at 31 March 2020 were as

below:

Name of stock listed on the Percentage of

stock exchange of Hong Kong Number of shareholding

(Stock Code) shares held held

REBBIMLED 2RH LB BERH BERH

(RIARHR) 28R B

Henderson Land Development 90,000 0.0019
Company Limited

BREKRMEERAF

(0012)

Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited 10,000 0.0003

MBEMERRARAA

(0016)

Hong Kong Exchanges and 2,000 0.0002

Clearing Limited
BERHRBERARRA
(0388)

China Construction Bank 400,000 0.0002
Corporation

REERRITROERAA

(0939)

China Mobile Limited 38,000 0.0002
FE%E AR AR
(0941)

RZTZTF=A=+—8 F£BEZEAQ
TEEF A AEaNRERELE A
14,119,000/ 7t (=& — L4 : 27,984,000
BL) AKEVWEFAEEMSEEBEANR
SEEEFESRNEBIRERE - AEE
RZE_ZTF=RA=+—HZREKREZF
BEEINMT -

Percentage to

Investment Market  net assets value
cost value of the Group
®RE HEAEBEE
A miE FEZBEIL

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTEL TAEL
3,358 2,660 0.13
1,293 1,022 0.05
528 467 0.02
2,517 2,536 0.13
2,125 2,191 0.11
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T EsT 5
Name of stock listed on the Percentage of Percentage to
stock exchange of Hong Kong Number of shareholding Investment Market  net assets value
(Stock Code) shares held held cost value of the Group
REBBRIT LM 2RDEB BERHG FERG RE EASEEE
(R HR3R) 288 B2 A miE BREZAEDL
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Ping An Insurance (Group) 25,000 0.0003 2,053 1,904 0.09
Company of China, Ltd.
%ﬁﬁ@ﬁn
(2318)
Tracker Fund of Hong Kong 140,000 0.0042 3,554 3,339 0.17
BEES
(2800)
Total for equity investments at fair value through profit or loss 15,428 14,119 0.70

RATFEEFABRSNBREREA

Securities trading segment recorded a loss of HK$8,746,000 WAEE RN B E5 X 5D BB & E
for the Year, which increased by 158.8% compared to 8,746,000/ T - ¥ 2% & & 23,379,000/ JT
HK$3,379,000 last year. The increase in segment loss for the 3% j1158.8% o A F E A + 5 30 & 18 15 0
Year was mainly due to (i) an increase of net realized and  JBEEHP : ()IRAFEEF ABZHIEE
unrealized losses on equity investments at fair value through % & 2 0 #3H K R E M EHEFHEEINEAE
profit or loss to HK$9,735,000 for the Year (2019: [€29,735,000/&7C (—Z— 4 : 6,450,000
HK$6,450,000); (i) fair value losses on derivative financial #&7t): (DVAFEEZTASRM T ARAFEE
instruments of HK$391,000 for the Year (2019: fair value  E18391,0008 T (ZZE— NF : A FEEW
gains of HK$3,184,000); (i) a decrease in dividend income 253,184,000/ 7T) © (ii)i&k A FEE+ A
from equity investments at fair value through profit or loss to W BREREZRERARLEARAFE 2
HK$1,363,000 for the Year (2019: HK$3,753,000); and (iv) 1,363,000 7t (=& — L4 : 3,753,000/%
no foreign exchange losses (2019: HK$3,846,000) recorded  7T) : R (iv) A AN [E R #4215 HE 3 518 (=
for the Year. T— L5 : 3,846,000 7T) °
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2020, the Company had outstanding
guarantees of HK$190,000,000 (2019: HK$190,000,000)
given to banks to secure general credit facilities for certain
subsidiaries. No credit facilities (2019: Nil) were utilized by
the subsidiaries from such guarantees at the end of the

reporting period.

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS
As at 31 March 2020, some of the Group's land and buildings

as well as investment properties with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$317,470,000 (2019: HK$471,127,000), some
of the Group's trade receivables (rental) with a carrying
amount of HK$1,560,000 (2019: HK$822,000) and the
Group's equity investments with a carrying amount of
HK$14,119,000 (2019: HK$27,984,000) were pledged to
banks and securities dealers for loan facilities worth
HK$178,945,000 (2019: HK$187,739,000) granted to the
Group. As at 31 March 2020, no loan facilities (2019: Nil)

were utilized by the Group.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had net current assets of
HK$1,014,827,000 (2019 (Restated): HK$1,300,811,000)
and equity attributable to owners of the Company worth
HK$1,617,227,000 (2019 (Restated): HK$2,133,187,000).

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
of HK$438,811,000 (2019 (Restated): HK$996,257,000)
were held predominately in Hong Kong dollar, Singapore dollar
and United States dollar.

As at 31 March 2020, a loan advanced from a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary was approximately
HK$71,823,000 (2019: HK$131,823,000). The loan was
denominated in United States dollar, which was unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.
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As at 31 March 2020, the Group's gearing ratio, calculated as
total indebtedness divided by equity attributable to owners of
the Company, was 0.07 (2019 (Restated): 0.16). Total
indebtedness represents a loan advanced from a non-
controlling shareholder of the Group's subsidiary, amounts due
to group companies and related companies and lease

liabilities.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure amounted to HK$12,618,000 for the Year,
which represented expenditure of HK$5,060,000 for
renovation of the office units at Shun Tak office, expenditure
of HK$577,000 for purchase of office equipment and
expenditure of HK$6,981,000 for drydock of the cruise ship

“Leisure World".

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Equity Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as trading equity
investments. The Group’s equity investments are listed on the
stock exchange of Hong Kong and are valued at quoted

market prices at the end of the reporting period.

Foreign Currency Risk

Most of the Group's revenue and costs were denominated in
Hong Kong dollar and Singapore dollar. The Group's cash and
cash equivalents were held predominately in Hong Kong
dollar, Singapore dollar and United States dollar. A loan
advanced from a non-controlling shareholder of the Group's
subsidiary was denominated in United States dollar. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management closely monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should that need arise.

TR E RS

R-B-FF=A=1+—0 AKEZEA
8 L E (R EBR AR A T EA A (G
B ) BOOT (ZF—NF (BEF) :
0.16) - AT AR E KB A A2 R
BREBM 2SR B REARRME A
RENRAERLRE -

BEXXH
RAFEERN BARXH /12,618,000 7T -
HNAGEREREZHAZTEMRHIAZH
5,060,000 7L BERAEZRHEH I B
577,000/ 7T + LA X 35 [ Leisure World | 2
# M35 % 116,981,000/ T °

TERBRAABEE
REESRR
AEEmEE@ERNKI A HLERBIRE
MBERERMEENREERER - AKE
ZEEREEEBBRMA LT YNBSS
RIEHIGARERTE

S EE L B

AR ER B BB A0 U A Ko BN 15 LA TT BT B3
IRBEEEMN -AEBZRERASFEY
EEUBT FIMETRETREEEN -
REBEMNE AR Z FFERBRREBN 2 EFHIA
ELREEEN - AL E B AL ESNE B
B - R EEEETIERIMNERR
Y HRAFEEE B HERINERR

21



22

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -
Annual Report 2020 F

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEET RS T

Interest Rate Risk

The Group's interest rate position mainly comes from money
lending activities. All of the Group's secured mortgage loans
and unsecured personal loans are charged at fixed interest
rate agreed with individual customers. Besides, a loan
advanced from a non-controlling shareholder of Group's
subsidiary and an amount due to intermediate holding
company were interest free. In the opinion of the directors,

the Group has no significant interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. The Group mainly conducts transactions with high
quality customers and obtaining sufficient collaterals, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss

from defaults.

Money lending, which is one of core businesses of the Group,
is exposed to credit risk. The Group approves and grants loans
to its customers pursuant to its pre-approved credit policy with
tightened management measures. All new loans are subject to
stringent credit check procedures and the loan and interest
receivables are monitored on an ongoing basis. The Group
focuses on providing loan products that are secured with
collateral, which represented approximately 96.2% of the total
loan portfolio as at 31 March 2020. The Group holds
collateral against loan and interest receivables in the form of
first legal mortgages against real estates located in Hong Kong
which comprised mainly of residential, commercial, industrial
properties and car parking spaces. The management considers
that the credit risk arising from secured mortgage loan and
interest receivables is significantly mitigated by the properties
held as collateral, with reference to the market value of the
properties which were valued by independent valuers at the

end of the reporting period.

HEHELEEEEERLA

R R E

AEBEZMNEXEBREZRENELS - A&

BzAERBEMRBERREERILAEK

19 12 B8 B B P 1 € 2 B E F) R YER o it

oh - REBEMB AR ZFEBRBRENZE
FAREMAFREZERABDKELLSLE - &
R ZJXE@IEEK%UTH 2

FEERE
FEERRRERZIHATETEGNES
ERAEESZMEBANER - AEBEE
ZHREBERPHEIRS WEBEEBR TR
BRAZERR  UWRERENMBERRZ
MEBRORR

BESAEEZLERZ— EEREER
e ARBERBEFLUEZEERR  #
MEBEMERERESZT  HAERAER
)f'hfﬁ““*” EHEFRDALBBEBZE
BEEREF MERERRNBDRFER

Ej%;% ANE BB R AR R EER
CERER RZE_ZTF=—A=+—8"
EREREAEFEL96.20 o NEE AR

EREZEHE(Z2RBEEENE BEY
X TEWERREMN) ZFAERIBH
EARBREREFNEFHERD - EEE
RE - 2EERYELB L AEMAFER
BEHMR2MBEE BEFERREER
ENBEEZEERRERTBMEES
AR G T A B R



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

HFHELEEEEETRAA
Annual Report 2020 F3k

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity Risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool which considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets and
projected cash flows from operations. The management

considers that the liquidity risk is manageable.

HUMAN RESOURCES
As at 31 March 2020, the Group had a total of 33 staff in

Hong Kong. Remuneration packages for employees and
directors are structured according to market terms as well as
individual performance and experience. Benefits plans
maintained by the Group include mandatory provident fund
scheme, medical insurance, share option scheme and
discretionary bonuses. As at 31 March 2020, the Group had
386,640,000 outstanding share options granted to eligible

directors and employees of the Group.

ACQUISITION OF 60% EQUITY INTEREST IN ETC
On 18 June 2019, the Group, through a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company, entered into a conditional
agreement (the “Agreement”) with three connected persons
of the Company to acquire in aggregate of 60% equity
interest in ETC at the initial consideration of HK$457,640,000
(subject to adjustment) (the “Acquisition”). ETC is a licensed
money lender in Hong Kong with a total loan portfolio of
approximately HK$632,554,000 comprising secured mortgage
loans and unsecured personal loans as at 30 September
2020.
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On 30 September 2019, all the conditions precedent of the
Agreement had been fulfilled and completion took place in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.
The Acquisition was completed at a total final consideration of
HK$497,640,000. Since then, ETC became an indirect non-

wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

The Acquisition constituted a major transaction of the
Company. By reason of the vendors’ interest in ETC and the
Company, the vendors were regarded as connected persons
of the Company and the Acquisition also constituted a
connected transaction. The Acquisition was subject to the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. A special general meeting of the
Company was convened and held for the independent
shareholders to approve the Agreement and the transactions
as contemplated thereunder. For details of the Acquisition,
please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 18 June
2019, 13 August 2019 and 30 September 2019, respectively,
as well as the Company's circular dated 23 August 2019.
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The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) is committed
to maintaining high standards of corporate governance
practices at all times. The Board believes that good corporate
governance helps the Company to safeguard the interests of
its shareholders and to enhance the performance of the
Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the "Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the year ended 31 March
2020.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors of
the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all directors of
the Company, all of them confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during
the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises nine
members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

HFHELEEEEETRAA
Annual Report 2020 F3k

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEEELRE

AREAEZER ([EFE)) ERI#4ERER
KEZERERFR BEFERERIFZE
XERAPREERR ZMNERREANEHE
LRI e

TEERER
AARRBE_ZT_TF=A=+—HIHF
B BETEEMARZAARIA (1B
Frl) @&z LR R (T L AR AL B 8% + I
FrE e EERTR (TREERT A
Pk 2 FT & 1 AR XX

EENESFRE

AR F B AN T AR BB 8 P 2 b
TAESETELRRZORESFR ([1BLESF
Al  ERERRAREFETHRSLERHZTR
HA - EHARNBEEBESEHEBTEH
% BEHBERANAFEE NS ETEZESTH
F#l < # E 2R ©

EEg

RAFHRAY EFSRENLEXEWT

BITES
BEGEE(EE)
mEBELL(BEE)
BEERL L (ZER)
BFIER LT

BRAR B
REXE

BYFHTES
REESEE
FARN G2 e
R EE

25



26

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -
Annual Report 2020 F

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
Biographical details of the directors (including the relationships
among members of the Board) are set out under the section
headed “Directors’ Biographies” on pages 57 to 62 of this
annual report. In compliance with code provision A.1.8 of the
CG Code, the Company has arranged appropriate insurance

cover in respect of potential legal actions against its directors.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in order to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed

and relevant.

During the Year, all directors have participated various external
seminars relevant to the directors’ duties and responsibilities
or the accounting issues. The Company has received from
each of the directors their individual training record for the

Year.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive should be clearly established and set out in writing.
As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 2
March 2012, Mr. Wilson Ng resigned as the Chairman of the
Company on 2 March 2012 and on the same day Mr. Ng Wee
Keat was re-designated from the Chief Executive Officer to the
Chairman of the Company. The Company is in the process of
identifying suitable candidate with appropriate experience to
be the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and will make
an announcement as soon as a suitable candidate has been
identified.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a specific
term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years as referred to the bye-law 87
of the Company where provides that at each annual general
meeting one-third of the directors of the Company for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3),
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation. The Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Group's affairs and to
assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has
established three board committees, namely the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Audit Committee (collectively the “Committees”) with clearly-
defined written terms of references. The Board delegated the
authority to the Committees and provided the Committees
with sufficient resources to perform their duties. Upon
reasonable request, they are able to seek independent

professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises five
members, including two executive directors, namely Mr. Ng
Wee Keat and Mr. Yu Wai Man and three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok, Mr. Kwan
Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming. Mr. Cheung Chun
Kwok is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Company has adopted the model whereby the
Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management.
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TEELGRE
BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) EEEBETHNZES (F)
Remuneration Committee (continued) FMEES (E)

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration HMEZES 2 EFEBE MBEWNT ¢

Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the 1.
Company's policy and structure for all directors’ and
senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for

developing remuneration policy;

2. to review and approve the management's remuneration 2.
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals

and objectives;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the 3.

remuneration of non-executive directors;

4. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time 4.
commitment and responsibilities and employment

conditions elsewhere in the Group;

5. to review and approve compensation payable to executive 5.
directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair

and not excessive;

6. to review and approve compensation arrangements 6.
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and

appropriate; and

7. to ensure that no director or any of his associates is 7.

involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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TEEERE
BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) EEQETHNZEE® (A)
Remuneration Committee (continued) FMEES (E)
The following is a summary of work performed by the MNUTAHFMEEERAEEANMETIIEZ
Remuneration Committee during the Year: BE

1. to review the remuneration package of the directors; and 1. BMENEFZHFWNFE: &

2. to recommend to the Board on the year-end bonus of 2. RBRHEEZSM|ITESEINELILL -

executive directors.

Details of the directors’ and five highest paid employees’ ZEEZFAMNSZESHEEMNE ZFBEHNITB

emoluments are set out in note 8 to the financial statements. MRS o

Nomination Committee REZES®
The Nomination Committee currently comprises five members, EZZE@HAIHABKEMEK  BIEMA
including two executive directors, namely Mr. Ng Wee Keat #1TEH  EFEGHLERRELE N
and Mr. Yu Wai Man and three independent non-executive R =% IEHITEE - AIREHL4E - B3
directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, B4 R KL E - EEG L ERIES
Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming. Mr. Ng Wee Keat is the ZE@FfE -

chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee

are:

ELEFRIZEFSHRE  ABLA
Board at least annually and make recommendations on B - M RLERIRBLE AR R A Bl R B
i

any proposed changes to the Board to complement the

1. to review the structure, size and composition of the 1.

Company's corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become board 2. #EEEAEEKRAIEEESHAL

members and select or make recommendations to the WHGERZEBATHEEEHFUM
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for EEeREE

directorships;

3. to assess the independence of independent non- 3. FIEBUIEHTEBHNBIM R

executive directors; and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or reappointment of directors and

succession planning for directors, in particular the

chairman and the chief executive.

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Nomination Committee during the Year:

1. to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

2. to assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and

3. to recommend to the Board on the reappointment of the

retiring directors.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in September
2013, which set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. All board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The Company has adopted a nomination policy in January
20109.

Objective

The objective of the nomination policy is to provide a
framework and set standards to assist the Nomination
Committee to select and recommend candidates for
directorship so as to ensure the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the

requirements of the Company’s business.

Selection criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following
criteria (as reference) in assessing the suitability of a proposed

candidate for directorships:

1. character and integrity;

2. qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the

Company's business and corporate strategy;

3. willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a Board member and other directorships and

significant commitments;

4. requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the

Listing Rules; and

5. board diversity policy and any measure objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving

diversity on the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Selection criteria (continued)

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be

exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the

discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information in a prescribed form, together with their
written consent to be appointed as a director of the Company
and to the public disclosure of their personal data on any
documents or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in

relation to their standing for election as a director.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to
provide additional information and documents, if considered

necessary.

Nomination procedure

1. The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a
meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members if any,
for consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to
its meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put
forward candidates who are not nominated by Board

members.

2. For filing a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations for the Board's
consideration and approval. For proposing candidates to
stand for election or re-election at a general meeting, the
Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the

Board for its consideration and recommendation.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Nomination procedure (continued)

3.

In order to provide information of the candidates
nominated by the Board to stand for election at a general
meeting, and to invite nominations from shareholders, a
circular will be sent to shareholders. The circular will set
out the lodgment period for shareholders to make the
nominations. The names, brief biographies (including
qualifications and relevant experience), independence,
proposed remuneration and any other information, as
required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included

in the circular to shareholders.

The shareholder of the Company may also propose a
person for election as a director, details of which are set
out in the “Procedures for Proposing a Person for Election
as a Director by Shareholders” which is also available on

the website of the Company.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for

election or re-election at any general meeting.

Review and disclosure of the nomination policy

1.

The Board will from time to time review the Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the

Nomination Policy.

The Company shall disclose this nomination policy in its
corporate governance report in compliance with the

Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of the
Board. After assessing the suitability of the directors’ skills and
experience to the Company’s business, the Nomination
Committee considered that the existing Board was
appropriately structured and no change was required. The
Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy,

as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok, Mr.
Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming. One of the
independent non-executive directors possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules. Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of

its resignation or dismissal;

2. to review and monitor the external auditor’s

independence and objectivity;

3. to develop and implement policy on engaging an external

auditor to supply non-audit services;

4. to monitor the integrity of the Company's financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report, and to review significant financial reporting

judgements contained in them;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

5. to review the Company's financial controls, the risk

management and internal control systems;

6. to review the Group's financial and accounting policies

and practices; and

7. to review the external auditor's management letter and to
ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to
the issues raised in the external auditor's management

letter.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit

Committee during the Year:

1. to review with the management and auditor of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, to discuss the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2019 and to recommend

them to the Board for approval;

2. to review with the management and auditor of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, to discuss the unaudited interim financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September
2019 and to recommend them to the Board for approval;

and

3. to review the risk management and internal control

systems of the Company.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the meetings of the
Board, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination

Committee, the Audit Committee, the annual general meeting

HEHELEEEEERLA

EERZEEREHELE

and the special general meeting during the Year is set out as

below:

Directors

g2

Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Wee Keat

Ms. Sio lon Kuan

M. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

BUFufEs
REARAE
BRRLE
RALE

Board

gzg

5/6
5/6
4/6
5/6
6/6
6/6

6/6
6/6
6/6

Remuneration

Committee

FHzae

22

2/2

2/2
22
22

Attendance/Number of Meetings held

e/ SEERY

Nomination

Committee

RAZEE

il

Audit

Committee

EUZEE

22
22
22

Sr A S = A A A
CEBRZBEEH

Annual
General
Meeting

BREF

I8 -|

RAFEREA SEFHFEEFES  FHEZE
g RBZBE

FRERBRFRIAG 2 HECEBINAT

BRIA

Special
General
Meeting
RE#5
r&



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - ittt £ S B E B 5 R 2 7
Annual Report 2020 F3k

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEEARE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS EEERBAE
The Board is responsible for performing the following ZES=E2&8FREITEEEARTEIMBATZUAT
corporate governance functions as required under the CG  (EE AR -

Code:

1. to develop and review the Company's policies and 1. HIEMBFT AR AHCEEARERLE
practices on corporate governance and make B UYMESFREERSR
recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous 2. REREERSREBABNE
professional development of directors and senior &%iﬁi%?é‘):
management;

3. to review and monitor the Company's policies and 3. R MERAATELETEZNEER
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory ETEMAHELER

requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and 4. #IF - B REREEREENRTE
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and B RAEFM(E) &
directors; and

5. to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code 5. AR T ETREEATANER R
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. F(EERARE)NAIFEE -

During the Year, the above corporate governance functions WRAFERN G EESCEITLATIALDE
have been performed and executed by the Board and the EJAH&E  UAESEEBRITARRETD
Board has reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG  EEJAFHIZ BN °

Code.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION ZEENEN &
During the Year under review, the remuneration paid/payable ~ REIESEE R - &R RQ & 2 80D &k & 5HAD
to the Company's auditor, Ernst & Young for audit and non-  EH A AEEREH 2 BZMIEEZRBE M

audit services to the Group, is set out as below: BN/ ERzZMeEHINAT
Services rendered Fee paid/payable  Fri2 it BR %% e ENEA
HK$ BT
Audit services 1,620,000 EZRH 1,620,000
Non-audit services FEEZRB
— Interim Review 420,000 — P HEH 420,000
— Accountants’ report in relation to the —FAFEREERS

major and connected transaction 752,500 @zt S 752,500
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2020.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt

upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about
their responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 73 to 83 of this

annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems for the Group. The systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or

loss.

The management of the Company has established internal
audit function. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensuring compliance of applicable laws, rules

and regulations.

HEHELEEEEERLA
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

The Board has overseen the Company's risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems which covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls has been
conducted, and considered that the systems are effective and
adequate. The Board has also reviewed the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications, experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company's accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions and considered that they are

adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY
The company secretary of the Company, Ms. Ng Suet Vi, is

responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. During the Year, Ms. Ng has taken no less than 15

hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Convene a Special General Meeting

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Company, shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
secretary of the Company, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of
section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Send Enquiries to the Board

The Company's corporate website (http://www.ncgrp.com.hk)
provides postal address, email address, fax number and
telephone number by which shareholders of the Company may
at any time address their concerns or enquires to the Board.

HFHELEEEEETRAA
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Make Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

(i) The procedures for proposing a person for election as a

(i)

director of the Company at shareholders’ meetings are

set out in the “Corporate Governance” section of the

Company's corporate website.

The procedures for putting forward proposals at

shareholders’ meetings are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company may submit a
written requisition to propose resolution(s) through

requisition of a special general meeting.

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of
the voting rights or not less than 100 shareholders
of the Company may submit a written requisition to
propose resolution(s) at the next annual general

meeting.

The written requisition or notice given by the

requisitionist(s) must

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

state the resolution(s) with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the shareholders’

meeting;

be signed by the requisitionist(s);

specify the full name and address of the
requisitionist(s), as they appear in the Company's

share register of shareholders;

specify the class and number of shares which are
beneficially owned by the requisitionist(s) on the

date of such written requisition or notice; and
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Make Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings (continued)

(i) The procedures for putting forward proposals at

shareholders’ meetings are as follows: (continued)

The written requisition or notice given by the

requisitionist(s) must (continued)

(e) be deposited at the registered office of the Company
with a copy to the Company's head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit
3808, 38th Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for
the attention of the board of directors of the

Company or the company secretary of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings and other general meetings to communicate

with them and encourage their participation.

In addition, the Company also communicates to its
shareholders through interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars. All such reports,
announcements and circulars can also be accessed via the
Company's website (http://www.ncgrp.com.hk) and the
website of the Stock Exchange.

HFHELEEEEETRAA
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) in January 2019.

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Company may declare
and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company,
provided that the Group records a profit after tax and that the
declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. In deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount,
the Board shall take into account, among others, inter alia, the

following factors:

(i) the Group's financial results;

(i) the Group's actual and future operations and liquidity

position;

(iii) the Group's expected working capital requirements and

future expansion plans;

(iv) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company and each of the members of the Group; and

(v) any other factors that the Board may consider

appropriate.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the laws of Bermuda, the bye-laws of

the Company and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to
time and there can be no assurance that a dividend will be

proposed or declared in any given period.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there was no change
in the Company’s constitutional documents, and these
documents are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

This report provides an update of the environmental, social

and governance (“ESG") of the Group during the year ended
31 March 2020 and is prepared in accordance with the ESG

Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

Al.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Emissions

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
money lending services, cruise ship charter services,
property investments, and securities trading. The
operations of the Group do not involve any production
process, hence there are no obvious exhaust emissions.
Greenhouse gas emissions from the Group are associated

with electricity, company vehicles and air travel.

The following table sets out the emissions of carbon
dioxide from electricity, company vehicles and air travel

during the Year.

IRE - HERELRE

][

5]
AHEREEHEASENRE LB RER
(MRE -HEREARDRBE_T_FTF=
A=Z+—HLFENEFEHN  ENREL
TMRAUME -+ EZCGRR - HEREAR
CECEIDAIE k-

A. R

Al. BER W
AEEFERERERERY - BHA
ERE MERBURBHEE - 4A&
EyREEBE TS REMEEBRE -
A AT A BB R - A E
BERBHERIEE S AREHEM
EERAR -

TRIMAFEERBES  RAIEFEH KL
finZe 2= iR B = EALBRBER -

Total volume emitted Intensity of emission

CO: emissions CO: emissions

BERE EREE

— S b —E bR

Electricity B 140.51 tonnes 0.13 tonnes (per square meter
140.5 11 of floor area)

Company vehicles NGIEET 7.50 tonnes 2.50 tonnes (per vehicle)
7.5008 2.50M8 (FH#)7%)

Air travel M Ze Z IR 13.03 tonnes 1.86 tonnes (per traveller)
13.0308 1.86M (BEIRE)

To reduce the impact from indirect greenhouse gas ARLEBELAEREIERZEE K&

emissions, telephone conference and/or video BEEETEREEN HBEARHM

conference through the easy and reliable cloud platform ASEzEinFalTREESn NER

N ER R TEEIK ©

is encouraged to avoid unnecessary business travels.

0.13M8 (FF HFAKEmMMEIE)

43



44

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

Annual Report 2020 F

HEHELEEEEERLA

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RiE - HEREEGRE

Al.

A2.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Emissions (continued)

The small amount of hazardous waste generated from
the Company’s office activities, such as toner cartridges,
is collected by qualified organizations for environmentally
friendly disposal. Non-hazardous waste includes waste
papers of approximately 0.86 tonnes which are collected
by specialized recycling company on a regular basis for

effective recycling.

Due to the Company's business nature, the Group was
not aware of any non-compliance of laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.

Use of Resources

Electricity consumption

The total electricity consumption of the Group came
directly from the lightings, air-conditioners, computers
and other office equipment. During the Year, electricity
consumption by the Group was 253,842 kWh which was
approximately 230.54 kWh per square meter of floor
area. The Group advocates employees to switch off idle
lightings, computers, office equipment and air-
conditioning systems when they are not in use. In
addition, the Group has adopted energy saving practices

in its office building.

Fuel consumption

The Group owns three vehicles for business uses. Fuel
consumption by the company vehicles during the Year
was 3,249 litres of petrol which was approximately 1,083
litres per vehicle. Regular maintenance on the Group's
vehicles is carried out to ensure a high fuel efficiency to

reduce emissions.

Al.

A2.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Use of Resources (continued)
Water consumption

Water consumption of the Group is entirely generated
from domestic usage in the office building. However, the
head office in Hong Kong has no water consumption
recorded as the water consumption charges are included
in the building management fee so that the water bills
will not be calculated separately. Water saving notices
were posted in pantry to promote water conservation and
usage awareness. Since the main source of waste water
came from domestic use, the overall level of water

pollution was relatively low.

Paper consumption

The Group consumed 0.94 tonnes of papers during the
Year which was approximately 0.03 tonnes per employee.
In addition, the Company also introduced electronic
means of corporate communications to shareholders.
Shareholders are encouraged to receive corporate
communication documents by using electronic means
through the Company's website so as to reduce the

paper consumption.

The Group, as a non-consumer goods manufacturer, does
not consume any packaging materials in its principal

business.

The Environmental and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to building a sustainable
corporate culture and a green office environment by
saving energy and reducing waste. The concept of

/] noou

“Reduce”, "Reuse”, “Recycle” and “Replace” are strongly
promoted within the Group. By all means, the Group is
striving to protect the environment as a corporate social

responsibility.

A2.

A3.
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A3.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

The Environmental and Natural Resources
(continued)

In order to reduce ecological footprint, employees are
encouraged to make double-sided printing and copying,
and reuse items like envelopes. Recycling bins are set up
in the office to promote recycling and reusing paper. The
use of digital copies is promoted in the office to save
papers and to recycle envelopes that are used for issuing
internal documents and letters. The Group also uses
durable items instead of one-off disposable items by

replacing paper cups with mugs/glasses.

SOCIAL

. Employment

Employees are regarded as valuable assets and core
competitive advantage of the Group. Policies and
regulations principally adopted by the Group in respect of
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare have
been clearly stated in the employee handbook. As at 31
March 2020, the Group employed 33 full-time
employees in total, of whom 45% were male and 55%

were female.

Compensation and dismissal

The Group offers competitive remuneration and benefits
to attract and retain the talents. The remuneration of
each employee will be determined with reference to a
number of factors including educational background,
experience, job duties, professional skills and technical
capabilities, as well as salary level for similar job positions
in the industry. An employee may be dismissed in case
of serious or persistent beaches of discipline or convicted

of a criminal offence.
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SOCIAL (continued)

. Employment (continued)

Recruitment and promotion

The Group treats all employees equally. Their
employment, remuneration and promotion will not be
affected by their social identities such as ethnicity, race,
nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation,
marital status, pregnancy, disability and political beliefs.
The level of compensation of its employees is reviewed
annually in an annual appraisal on their performance
basis, during which process each employee is given equal

opportunity for promotion.

Working hours, benefits and welfare

The Group determines working hours and rest period for
employees in line with Employment Ordinance of Hong
Kong and employment contracts with employees. In
addition to statutory holidays, employees are also entitled
to other holidays including paid annual leave, sick leave,
marriage and compassionate leave, maternity leave,

paternity leave and compensation leave.

Benefits plans maintained by the Group include
mandatory provident fund (“MPF") scheme, medical
insurance, group life insurance and discretionary bonuses.
Eligible employees are rewarded through the Group's
share option schemes and have the opportunity to

acquire shares of the Company through these schemes.

On top of the statutory requirement, the Group makes
voluntary contributions to the MPF to enhance retirement
protection of employees. The Company and one of its
subsidiaries received the Good MPF Employer Awards for
2019/2020 presented by the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Authority.
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RIE - HEREGRE

B. SOCIAL (continued)
B2. Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing employees a safe,
healthy and hygienic working environment. The following
sets out the practices adopted by the Group in relation to

workplace:

« office employees are assigned with individual
workstations. Offices are is properly lit and
ventilated, kept clean and tidy with ample space

between workstations;

«  office furniture and fittings are well-maintained and

replaced when necessary;

« smoking and drinking alcohol in workplace are

strictly prohibited;

«  cleaning of air-conditioning systems and disinfection

treatment of carpets are carried out regularly;

« air defender and purifiers are equipped to protect
environment with antibacterial efficacy and to
remove air-suspended dust and odour;

«  first-aid boxes are set up in the offices;

«  security measures are in place at the offices to
restrict entry and exit only to staff and permitted

visitors;

« all traditional fluorescent tubes have been replaced
by LED tubes in the offices; and

«  fruit is provided to staff every week.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Health and Safety (continued)

In order to combat the outbreak of coronavirus disease
2019 (COVID-19) and safeguard the staff's health, the
Group has made flexible work arrangement for
employees to work in office or work from home on shift
in accordance with their operational needs. The Group
has also taken the following additional precautionary

measures in the offices since the end of January 2020:

«  all staff are required to wear surgical face masks at

all times in the offices;

«  hand sanitizers are available at the reception areas;

«  public areas of the offices are cleaned and

disinfected every day;

« all staff and visitors are requested to measure their
body temperature and wear surgical face masks

upon entering the office areas;

«  all staff are required to report to the Group whether
he/she has travelled outside of Hong Kong within

the past 14 days;

« in case of any suspected or confirmed cases among
the staff and/or their close contacts, the Group
would immediately put the related personnel on a

14-day compulsory quarantine; and

«  all staff are allowed to bring their kids to the offices
if there is any suspension of classes for all
secondary schools, primary schools, kindergartens,

child care centres and special schools.

During the Year, there has been no work-related injuries

or fatalities.
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B3.

B4.

B5.

SOCIAL (continued)

Development and Training

The Group acknowledges the importance of training for
the development of the employees as well as the Group.
The Group encourages and supports employees in
personal and professional training, through seminars,
workshops as well as reimbursement for external training
courses to enhance their competencies in performing

their jobs effectively and efficiently.

Labour Standards

The Group complies with all relevant laws and regulations
and the requirements of the governing authorities and
prohibits the employment of children and forced labour.
During the Year, all the Group's employees are aged over
18 and no child labour has been employed. The Group
strives to create an environment of respect, integrity and

fairness for its employees.

Supply Chain Management

The Group strives to develop and maintain long-term and
stable relationships with its suppliers who are committed
to high quality, environmental, health and safety
standards. In selecting the suppliers, the Group takes into
account their prices, quality, services capabilities,
credibility, environmental and social performance.
Meanwhile, the Group supports and encourages the
suppliers to promote efficient use of resources and
environmental protection and fulfill corporate social

responsibility.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Product Responsibility

The Group strives to adhere to applicable laws and
regulations with regard to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating products and
services provided in its business, and to maintain

effective communication channels for redress.

During the Year, there was no non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance, the principles of which serve to
uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency,
responsibility and integrity in all aspect of the Group's
affairs. The Group has a zero-tolerance policy towards
behavior in association with bribery, corruption, extortion,
fraud and money laundering in its business operations.
Employees should not offer, solicit or accept anything of
material value to or from his/her colleagues, customers,

suppliers or other business partners of the Company.

The Group encourages the reporting of suspected
business irregularities within the Group and provides
reporting channels specifically for this purpose. When
suspected wrongdoings, such as breach of duty, abuse of
power and receipts of bribes are identified, staff should
report to senior management for investigation and
verification, as well as other relevant regulators or to the

law enforcement authorities when necessary.
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B7.

SOCIAL (continued)

Anti-corruption (continued)

To prevent and detect money laundering and terrorist
financing, the Group follows the “Guideline on
Compliance of Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-
Terrorist Financing Requirements for Licensed Money
Lenders” issued by the Companies Registry and has
incorporated policies and procedures in its operations
and credit guidelines and policies, which include
procedures for customer due diligence, enhanced due
diligence, reporting of suspicious transactions, record-
keeping and staff training. Any suspicious case of money
laundering or terrorist financing which comes to the
staff's knowledge would be reported to the money
laundering reporting officer ("MLRO") of the Group.
Taking the relevant information into account, MLRO will
evaluate the suspicious case on a case-by-case basis and
will report to the Joint Financial Intelligence Unit of the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative

Region as soon as practicable.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and
regulations in respect of anti-corruption, and no legal
cases against the Group in respect of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering has been recorded in the

Year under review.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Community Investment

The Group believes that community support is important
to its success and encourages its employees to actively
participate in different voluntary activities in social
services. During the year, the Group made donations and

participated in a variety of charitable events, including:

¢ SAHK in relation to the sponsorship in purchasing
1,500 gift sets of goody bags (750 sets for the
children and family support services plus 750 sets
for adult service). Some employees volunteered to

join the giveaways session at SAHK's centres.

«  The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation Barrier for
the sponsorship of Barrier Busters 2019. Some
employees volunteered to participate an interactive
sharing session between the people with disabilities
or chronic illnesses via the community walk with

wheelchairs or special devices.

«  Some employees participated in free meal-boxes
distribution activities to the sick, the old and the
needy in the old areas as supported by a charitable

organization.

One of its subsidiaries, ETC Finance Limited, has been
awarded the 5 Years Plus Caring Company Logo by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of its
contribution to society and serving of the community. The
Group will continue to maximize its social investments
where possible in order to create a more favourable

environment for the community.
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The directors of the Company (the "Directors") present their
report and the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Company comprise investment
holding and securities trading. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries comprise the provision of cruise ship charter
services, property investments and securities trading. During
the year, the Group commenced to engage in money lending

business.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 and the

Group's financial position at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 84 to 252.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any

dividends in respect of the year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on pages 253
and 254. This summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

There were no movements in the Company's share capital

and share options during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities

during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, the Company's reserves available for
distribution amounted to HK$709,107,000.

Under the laws of Bermuda, the amount standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company of
approximately HK$354,993,000 as at 31 March 2020 may be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company in the amount of
approximately HK$162,587,000 as at 31 March 2020 is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances as

prescribed by section 54 thereof.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totalling HK$95,000.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the aggregate revenue attributable to
the five largest customers accounted for 54% of the Group's
total revenue, which included fair value losses on equity
investments in aggregate of HK$9,735,000 for the year. The
aggregate revenue attributable to the largest customer

accounted for 44% of the Group's total revenue for the year.

No major suppliers were identified.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five

largest customers mentioned above.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth
Mr. Ho Yau Ming

In accordance with the Company's bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2),
Ms. Chen Ka Chee, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Mr. Kwan Kai
Kin, Kenneth will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.
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The Company has received from each of the three current
independent non-executive directors (namely Mr. Cheung
Chun Kwok, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming)
an annual confirmation of independence and as at the date of

this report still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES
(a) Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Wee Keat Chairman of the Company and the
Nomination Committee and member of the
Remuneration Committee

Aged 43. Mr. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in January 2003 and was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company in April 2004. Mr. Ng
was re-designated from the chief executive officer to the
chairman of the Company in March 2012. Mr. Ng also
holds directorship in various members of the Group since
January 2003. Mr. Ng graduated from Indiana University
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics. Mr. Ng is a
director of Huang Worldwide Holding Limited ("HWHL"),
the immediate holding company of New Century
Investment Pacific Limited (“NCIPL"), which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. In addition, Mr.
Ng is a director of NCIPL. Mr. Ng is a younger brother of
Ms. Lilian Ng and an elder brother of Ms. Ng Siew Lang,
Linda. Mr. Ng is also a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. They
are all executive directors of the Company. Mr. Ng is a
son of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng who is the settlor
and the trustee of a discretionary trust which holds the
entire interest in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate
holding company of the Company. Mr. Ng did not hold
any directorship in other listed public companies in the

last three years.
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Aged 53. Ms. Sio joined the Company as an executive
director in October 2002 and was appointed as the
deputy chairman of the Company in October 2004. Ms.
Sio also holds directorship in various members of the
Group since August 2000. Ms. Sio has over 25 years of
extensive management experience in various fields
including retailing, property investments, tourism and
entertainment. Ms. Sio is a director of HWHL, the
immediate holding company of NCIPL, which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. In addition, Ms.
Sio is a director of NCIPL. Ms. Sio did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda Chief Operating Officer

Aged 42. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in June 2003 and was appointed as the chief
operating officer of the Company in October 2004. Ms.
Ng also holds directorship in various members of the
Group since November 2003. Ms. Ng brings to the Group
experience in the fields of real estate management,
human resource management and retail operations. Ms.
Ng graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree majoring in
Telecommunications and a minor in Computer Science
from Indiana University. Ms. Ng is a younger sister of Ms.
Lilian Ng and Mr. Ng Wee Keat. Ms. Ng is also a cousin
of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. They are all executive directors of
the Company. Ms. Ng is a daughter of Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng who is the settlor and the trustee of a
discretionary trust which holds the entire interest in
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Ms. Ng did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Lilian Ng (also known as Ms. Huang Lilian)

Aged 46. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in July 2002. Ms. Ng also holds directorship in
various members of the Group since September 2002.
Ms. Ng graduated from San Francisco State University
with a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration. Ms.
Ng has extensive experience in hotel management. Ms.
Ng is a director of NCIPL, which is the controlling
shareholder of the Company. Ms. Ng is the elder sister of
Mr. Ng Wee Keat and Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda. Ms. Ng is
also a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. They are all executive
directors of the Company. Ms. Ng is a daughter of Mr. Ng
(Huang) Cheow Leng who is the settlor and the trustee
of a discretionary trust which holds the entire interest in
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Ms. Ng did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.
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F o HL T EEMSan Francisco State
University * BB TR ERE LR - =
TTHAEEECEEERLER Bt
BRAEARBERBRENCIPLZES - BX
TARRBLIERERRH LT 2L -
BTN AREBEZ LT ZRE - BEH
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FEZRT  ERBTEAR—EEEE
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Aged 55. Ms. Chen joined the Company as an executive
director in May 2000. Ms. Chen also holds directorship in
various members of the Group since August 2000. Ms.
Chen holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree and is an
associate member of the Australian Society of Certified
Practising Accountants. Ms. Chen has over 32 years of
experience in the accounting field, including 4 years in
auditing. Ms. Chen is a cousin of Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms.
Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng. They are all
executive directors of the Company. Ms. Chen is a niece
of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng who is the settlor and
the trustee of a discretionary trust which holds the entire
interest in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate
holding company of the Company. Ms. Chen did not hold
any directorship in other listed public companies in the

last three years.

Mr. Yu Wai Man Member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee

Aged 55. Mr. Yu joined the Company in August 1997
and was appointed as an executive director of the
Company in October 2004. Mr. Yu also holds directorship
in various members of the Group since September 1997.
Mr. Yu is a fellow member of both of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 35
years of experience in the accounting field, including 3
years in external audit and 2 years in internal audit. Mr.
Yu has over 27 years of financial experience in
companies listed in Hong Kong and London. Mr. Yu did
not hold any directorship in other listed public companies

in the last three years.

EEERE

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES (continued) EEEE (&)

(a) Executive Directors (continued) (@) BITES (&)
Ms. Chen Ka Chee BRE#zt

55k c MZ M —_ZEZEZTFHAMAR
ARAHERITEST - RRTHA-ZTET
FNARTABEAEEZEKERAIZE
E-RATHARESLEMN  UAR
MNAEEFHMAEEE  -RALEG:
FEBEEB=T_F2&R HEPBE
MERFZEBR - RELTRERGER
£ EBEEBIZIREMNELZLZRE-
BEHRARAZHAITEST R T R
EBRBEEZIINE L  ERBRER—
BA2EEFELEZBRTARERA  MZ2E
REE A AR A & A E IR A FHuang
Group (BVI) Limitedw 2%z © BRZ

BE=FIERHEM ETRARARE
EEMZEFBRS -

REXNRETHEZESRIEEZES
&

555% c RAENR — N NEFENAMAK
DA AR Z-ZZZTEMFE+ABZERR
RAIZHITESR - REEH-NNEF
NARNRAEESZHKERBIZE
FoREEARBERFTEHTAAERE
BEHMAGCZEFREE  WEGHH
EREO=-+THhE2KER HPRE=
FHBESFRMFENPET 2685 - &
FEBRBB-_TEFEERGHR TR
Al MEER REEBE=ZFUER
Hih P RARRREEERESB -
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES (continued)
(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and
member of the Nomination Committee

Aged 55. Mr. Cheung joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in June 2012 and
was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee in September 2012.
Mr. Cheung is also a member of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Cheung graduated from Edith Cowan
University of Australia and received his postgraduate
diploma of financial management from the University of
London. Since returning to Hong Kong in 1990, he has
been extending international opportunities for Chinese
large state-owned and privately-owned enterprises. Mr.
Cheung is a Practising Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
Certified Practising Accountant of the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants and a Certified Tax
Adviser of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr.
Cheung is the director of Global CPA (HK) Limited
(Representative of Integra International) and has
extensive experience in mergers and acquisitions and the
tax aspect. Mr. Cheung oversees the day-to-day running
of the finance function and is directly responsible for
financial reporting, corporate governance, tax and
corporate finance for multi-national companies including
state-owned enterprises and listed enterprises. Mr.
Cheung also has extensive international accounting
experience and has worked in CPA firms in the US and
Australia. Mr. Cheung has served as a member of the
Small and Medium Practitioners Committee, the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Professional Service Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council and International
Committee and a Certified Business Intermediary of the
International Business Brokers Association. Currently, Mr.
Cheung is a member of the Small and Medium
Practitioners Committee of CPA Australia. Mr. Cheung did
not hold any directorship in other listed public companies
in the last three years and any other positions with the
Company or other members of the Group.
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES (continued) EE/HE (&)
(b) Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)  (b) B FHITEE (&)

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth Member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee

Aged 73. Mr. Kwan joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in April 2003. Mr.
Kwan is also a member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor of Applied
Science degree in Civil Engineering and a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree with Honours from the
University of Toronto and the University of Windsor
respectively. Mr. Kwan has 8 years of experience in the
accounting and tax auditing fields together with over 39
years of experience in the real estate business and
business agent. Mr. Kwan did not hold any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years and
any other positions with the Company or other members

of the Group.

Mr. Ho Yau Ming Member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee

Aged 69. Mr. Ho joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in April 2003. Mr. Ho is also a
member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Ho holds
a Master degree in Finance from the University of
Leicester in England. Mr. Ho had worked in the banking
industry for over 27 years in official and senior executive
positions including The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited and Dao Heng Bank Limited. Mr. Ho
did not hold any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years and any other positions

with the Company or other members of the Group.

BRRBEEFLZRS  HFHZEELK

WEZBEHKER

73k BEER_TE=FHAMAR
RAIHEBIENTESE - BEENR
BEREZEg FTHEESRIREREZES
KB o B % % 5 Bl EUniversity of
Toronto & University of Windsor#8 # £ 7
THREANBET SR TIHERRE
BLEf - - AEEESTABRBETS
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695% e [ EER _TE=FHAMAR
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, no Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors' fees are subject to shareholders' approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company's board of directors with reference to Directors'
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. Further details can be found in note 8 to the financial

statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
During the year ended 31 March 2020, a permitted indemnity

provision as defined in the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
was in force for indemnity liabilities incurred by the directors

of the Company to a third party.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director nor a connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, or any of the
Company’s holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow

subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as

follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

HEHELEEEEERLA

EERBEETRAERKROREEH

Bz EmRXA
R-F-FTE=A=+—A ARAEER

RETBRABRARRHEEMEEER
ERBLZLBEGA (EHEBEEG])
EXVER) 2 Bty R R D hHEERIEEF
KB HRHIEIS2ERABRBAERRFREZ
BrfftAzEmRRE - RBEESTHZ
MEMBAMGARRR MRz SRR
mr

RARBEBRZIFE :

Number of ordinary shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

BRELZERYE - SHORESENE

Directly Through

beneficially controlled

Directors owned corporation

Bs EREEHES ZEHDE

Mr. Ng Wee Keat - 308,992,000

BEGLEE (note 2)

(P E2)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan 52,000,000 308,992,000

BEMLL (note 2)

(P E2)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda - 308,992,000

BHEMA T (note 2)

(Pt E2)

Ms. Lilian Ng - 308,992,000

EREL T (note 2)

(P E2)

Ms. Chen Ka Chee 8,400,000 -
BRA& B+

Mr. Yu Wai Man 3,360,000 -

REXLE

Percentage of
the Company’s

Beneficiary issued share
of a trust Total capital
EARARE BT
ErRzEaR A &t BREZBDL
3,556,133,691 3,865,125,691 66.87
(note 3)
(P 7E3)
3,556,133,691 3,917,125,691 67.77
(note 3)
(P 7E3)
3,556,133,691 3,865,125,691 66.87
(note 3)
(P 7E3)
3,556,133,691 3,865,125,691 66.87
(note 3)
(P 7E3)
= 8,400,000 0.15
= 3,360,000 0.06
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTSAND ZEENESTHAENKRG R IEE
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING BHZEER KA (&)
SHARES (continued)

Long positions in share options of the Company: RARABREZHFR

Number of share options

Directors directly beneficially owned
= BEEEREE2EREHE
Mr. Ng Wee Keat =EELEE 66,000,000
Ms. Sio lon Kuan Epil =R eun 56,000,000
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda EFEMZ T 53,000,000
Ms. Lilian Ng EAEL T 53,000,000
Ms. Chen Ka Chee PR IS B2z &= 41,000,000
Mr. Yu Wai Man RIEEE 44,000,000
313,000,000
Notes: Bt sE -
1. As at 31 March 2020, the total number of issued shares of the . RZTE-ZTE=F=+—H KQARZE
Company was 5,780,368,705. TR 1 42 81 A 5,780,368,705% °

2. 308,992,000 shares were held by New Century (Huang's) 2. 308,992,000k & Bt 4 (ER) BEH
S

Foundation Limited, a company limited by guarantee being a SERAAFE  ZAAA—RERBRA
charitable institution of public character of which Mr. Ng Wee A WEA—RALBRSHE  S@HEKE
Keat, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian BEELL EFHALAIAENEZLAZ
Ng are members and members of its council of management. RAIZKEREREEGKE -

3. 3,556,133,691 shares were held by New Century Investment 3. 3,556,133,6910% & /5 ANew Century

Pacific Limited which is ultimately owned by Huang Group (BVI) Investment Pacific Limited® % - 3 B3 Huang
Limited under a discretionary trust of which Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Group (BVI) Limited:& 8 & S rE R HEH ©
Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng are ZHEERETAZEEIGABRERELE -

the discretionary beneficiaries. EEBLL  EHELLREAHL L .
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had registered
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any director of the Company, as at 31
March 2020, other than the interests of the directors of the
Company as disclosed above, the following interests of 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

HEHELEEEEERLA

EERBETBRAERARG REEB
RpzERZRAS (&)
BREXHBBREEN R_TE_TF=A
=+—H FXRAEFE&ERITHEAEHE
$ATiﬁ&ﬁ*ﬁﬂwflzwﬁ_ﬂﬁﬁ
MHREEREEFRBAERIIEIS2GEE
L EmSORE  IRBIEESFRIZHEM
BAMEARNARBIAZIEEIAE

8

X

>

FERRRHEMATRARG REHE
Rz zEERAR

RARBEMESHA KT _FTF=A
=t—H BREXAEBEARREZTZ#R
SN - A5 AR B 2 1T IRA5%3K L‘AJ:Z‘FE'J
B HIREE S R P ERGIEI36HHA T
AR DR BRFZ Em B

Shareholders

&S

New Century Investment Pacific Limited
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited
Huang Group (BVI) Limited

Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng
=RBEE

New Century (Huang's) Foundation Limited

FE (ER)BEESERAA

Notes

B =t

2,4

Number of Percentage of the
ordinary Company's issued
shares held share capital
EEARE#HT

FEEBERHE BREZEDHL
3,556,133,691 61.52
3,556,133,691 61.52
3,556,133,691 61.52
4,257,633,691 73.66
308,992,000 5.35
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

As at 31 March 2020, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 5,780,368,705.

Huang Group (BVI) Limited is the ultimate holding company of
New Century Investment Pacific Limited. Huang Worldwide
Holding Limited is the immediate holding company of New
Century Investment Pacific Limited. Accordingly, Huang Group
(BVI) Limited and Huang Worldwide Holding Limited were
deemed to be interested in a total of 3,556,133,691 shares.

Huang Group (BVI) Limited is held by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng in his capacity as the settlor and the trustee of a

discretionary trust.

3,556,133,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited. 308,992,000 shares were held by New Century
(Huang's) Foundation Limited while 392,508,000 shares were
held by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng. Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng is one of the members of New Century (Huang's)
Foundation Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng
was deemed to be interested in a total of 4,257,633,691
shares. New Century (Huang's) Foundation Limited is a company
limited by guarantee being a charitable institution of public

character.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, no person
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who was recorded in the register of the Company had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would be required to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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FERRRHEMATRRG REHE
BHzEER XA (&)

BT

. RIE-_ZF=ZA=+—80 AQRIZE%
1T R 48 8% 55,780,368, 7050% °

2. Huang Group (BVI) LimitedZNew Century
Investment Pacific LimitedZ Sx & #ERR A F] °
Huang Worldwide Holding LimitedZNew
Century Investment Pacific Limited,z B &%
g A 7] o Bt - Huang Group (BVI) Limited &
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited#%15 & A&
& #£3,556,133,691 Ak 17 < # 2 -

3. Huang Group (BVI) Limitedrh & PR B %t 4 A
— A EEEIRTAREEATOHIES -

4. 3,556,133,6910% & /5 ANew Century
Investment Pacific Limited# & o
308,992,000M fx @ FT 42 (B R) B EHE
BB RFFEA - M392,508,000/% & (7
EMBEERA - EMBAEERTEL (F
R)ZEEESAERRAAZHEAR—(IKE -
- EBBEEEERBER SR
4,257,633,691RIRH 2 % - ittt id (FX)
REESARRAA—RERERAR I
ER—RAHERSHE -

BREXHBEEN R_ZT_ZTF=ZA
=+—B -BEARRATAECMEHEZ AL
(BEEXARAESITHABRIN RARF
ZROIMEEARNDTPEERBEELRPER
BIEXVEBE2 R E39 8 2 T AR AR A
BrREEmIRE  IRBEEHFRBEHKOE
336 MTEBRARARFAMRFECM 2 #

3L —p e
mIORE °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4
September 2012, ordinary resolutions were passed for the
adoption of a share option scheme (the "2012 Share Option
Scheme") and the termination of the share option scheme of
the Company adopted on 23 September 2002 (the "2002
Share Option Scheme"). Outstanding share options granted
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme prior to the termination
shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with
the 2002 Share Option Scheme. Further details of the 2012
Share Option Scheme and the 2002 Share Option Scheme
are disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements.

(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme

The following table discloses the movements of the
outstanding share options granted under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme during the year:

Number of share options

BREHE
At Lapsed At

Name or category 1 April during 31 March
of participant 2019 the year 2020

R-B-nE RER R-B-F i
SEEREALER mA-H ¥ ZA=T-
Directors
B
Mr. Ng Wee Keat 45,000,000 - 45,000,000
BRHETE
Ms. Sio lon Kuan 45,000,000 - 45,000,000
RERLL
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda 35,000,000 - 35,000,000

e LG

HEHELEEEEERLA

BREsE
%:%*:ihﬂmaﬁ”ZKQﬂ%%ﬁ
FAEL TARARRCABBURMN—IERE
BiEstE ([T ——FERETE]) IR
EARARBR_TEE-_FAA-_F+ZHEMRZ
BREAE (ST _FERESE] - B
BT -_FERETE - NERERE=
ST _FEREFERE M RITEZER
%%%ﬁE@ﬁT%ﬁ@°ﬁ@_?—_¢
BRESES R ST _FERESEZ
FEE  BERUBEmKRMFE25 -

(@ —SZE=-FBERETE
TEREBERAFERN RE_TT_F
BREGTEIREMEARITEZ BRES
28

Date of Exercise Exercise

grant of period of price of

share options share options  share options*

BhE BRE BhE

BB T TEE*

HK$ per share

gRAT

21-01-2011  21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100
“F—f ZF-—%-A-t-RA%
—A=1-H —F-_—%-HA=1H

21-01-2011  21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100

“2——% _Z——%-A-+-HE

—A=+-H “E--Ff-A=+H

21012011 21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100
“¥—% ¥ —%-A-t-R%

—A=-+-H “E--f-fC+H
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Name or category
of participant

SREEATER

Directors (continued)
Ez (&)

Ms. Lilian Ng
BEHELL

Ms. Chen Ka Chee
BEET L

Mr. Yu Wai Man
REXEE

Other employees
HittfE S
In aggregate

A
aft

Total

st

*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

Number of share options

BREXR
At Lapsed At
1 April during 31 March
2019  the year 2020
RZB-NE RER R-B-EE
A—B %% ZRA=t-H
35,000,000 - 35,000,000
25,000,000 - 25,000,000
28,000,000 - 28,000,000
213,000,000 - 213,000,000
39,040,000 - 39,040,000
252,040,000 - 252,040,000

similar changes in the Company's share capital.
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BRERTE (F)
(a) —EZT-_FRREE ()

Date of

grant of
share options
BRE
REAH

21-01-2011
—T——F

—AZt+-H

21012011
—T——F
—AZt-H

21-01-2011
—FF
-A=t+-8

21012011
2%
—Azt-H

*

Exercise
period of
share options
B
T

21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021
—E——F-f-1+—-HE
“2--f-A=+H

21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021
—E——5-AZ+-H%
“Z--F-AC+H

21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021
“E-——fF-fA=-1+—-HZ
“E--F-AC+H

21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021
“F-F-AZ1-HE
“E--%—-f-1H

Exercise
price of
share options*
BRE
e

HK$ per share
FRET

02100

0.2100

02100

0.2100

B B A 2 77 15 8 R 4 A o B¢ 47 4T
B RARARAZ K EUR BT

TIATFE -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(b) 2012 Share Option Scheme

The following table discloses the movements of the
outstanding share options granted under the 2012 Share
Option Scheme during the year:

Number of share options

BREYE
At Lapsed At

Name or category 1 April during 31 March
of participant 2019  the year 2020

R-ZB-1& RER R-F-FF
SRELZDER MA-A %% ZA=t-H
Directors
B
Mr. Ng Wee Keat 21,000,000 - 21,000,000
BRELE
Ms. Sio lon Kuan 11,000,000 - 11,000,000
BERLL
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda 18,000,000 - 18,000,000
BRRLL
Ms. Lilian Ng 18,000,000 - 18,000,000
BAELL
Ms. Chen Ka Chee 16,000,000 - 16,000,000
REHTL
Mr. Yu Wai Man 16,000,000 = 16,000,000
REXELE

100,000,000 ~ 100,000,000

BB RR RSB ()

(b) —E——FHERE B
TEBRBERAEER  RIE-T——4F
B B4 1 T 0 R AT A B A
) -

Date of

grant of
share options
BhiE
REAH

03-09-2013
—F-=%
NA=H

03-09-2013
“T-=F

hAZ=R

03-09-2013
“E-=F
hnAZ=AH

03-09-2013
“E-=F%
NAZH

03-09-2013
—F-=%

hAZ=R

03-09-2013
“T-—=F
hAZ=H

Exercise
period of
share options
BRE
T

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-ZFNA=HZ
“E-=FNAZH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“Z-ZFNA=HE
—E-=%NAZH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-=fHNAZHZ
“E-ZFNACH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-ZFNAZHZ
“E-=FNAZH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“Z-ZFNAZHE
—E-=%NAZH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-=FHA=HZ
“E-=FNACH

Exercise

price of
share options*
BhiE
fTEE"

HK$ per share
gRAT

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(b) 2012 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Number of share options

BREHR
At Lapsed At

Name or category 1 April during 31 March
of participant 2019  the year 2020

RZB-NE RERN R-B2EE
SREREHER mA-H %% ZR=t-H
Other employees
HitfES
In aggregate 34,600,000 - 34,600,000
af
Total 134,600,000 - 134,600,000
A

=]

*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company's share capital.

As at 31 March 2020, the Company had 386,640,000 share
options outstanding under the Company’'s share option
schemes. Should they be fully exercised, the Company will
receive additional share capital of HK$967,000 and share
premium of HK$95,598,000 (before issue expenses). The fair
value of these unexercised options measured in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy (note 2.5 to the financial
statements) amounted to HK$23,015,000 as at the grant
date.
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BRESTE (&)

EEERE

(b) =B ——FRBREHE (B

Date of Exercise Exercise

grant of period of price of
share options share options  share options*
ERE B BHRE

Bt B T fTEE

HK$ per share

FRET

03-09-2013  03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023 0.1532

= =TSV ELE:

NAZ=ZH —Z2-

=FNLAZH

* o OBEREZITEE YRR BT
B AR ABRA 2 B AU B M

F oA -

RZZTZTF=A=+—H0 BEAREE
A% 58l - AR [ E386,640,00017 B A%
BARITHE - MEBBITEZEHKRE  AQ
7)#% & U ER 38 9% ZA967,0007% 7T & B 13 5
595,598,000 7 (R EHITRZ) - RE
LHE ZEHNRTEZEREREAEER
BHBEX (MBHREMFE25) 222 FE

{8 /423,015,000 7T °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the
Directors or their respective spouses or minor children, were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the

Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total number of issued shares were held by the

public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for its reappointment as
auditor will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Wee Keat

Chairman

Hong Kong
29 June 2020

HEHELEEEEERLA

BRESTE (&)
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Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

e
EY =

To the shareholders of
New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New
Century Group Hong Kong Limited (the "Company") and its
subsidiaries (the "Group") set out on pages 84 to 252, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair value of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ZXKEETENE T
%/ﬁqﬂ&/d“x 15)%
HPERE2212
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided

in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

consolidated financial statements.

HEHELEEEEERLA

RERNER

BMEREEESFMASEMN(EERE
RPERAD (THFEF LR ETES - A
EZEEANTAENEECERARE/ZH
BO 5L & a1 4 & I I 3R & A SE R & AL B 1D
tEE— Ml - RIFEFESFEAG MY
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b BEREREE - HARE - RFIAESH
BIHEERR T NEEMABMNEAER

R ERE -

FRETEE

R ETFESRELMANERHE RA
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He BEEHRERMBABEBEAMBR
KNEEBARETREN R TSHE
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B B EOAREABSENELE
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BAEIT T NG [ HED B F it 47 & 7%
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ERMELEEME - At - AT THE
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AR R 1 [\ B ) B A T AR AT BV AR o AT EY
BEREF (AREAREBUATEEMAITHNE
FFIOMER  REMAYERSAMBRRH
BRI ER -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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B RBETR &

FRRETSEHE(H)

Key audit matters

BB ER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BEMNETONMEERERTSEE

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receivables

& W & R % R B HY R E R A

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's net loan and
interest receivables amounted to approximately
HK$686,782,000, which represented approximately
32% of the total assets. Provision for impairment
losses on loan and interest receivables under the
expected credit loss (“ECL") model amounted to
approximately HK$3,651,000.
RZZEZZFTF=A=+—H ' EE5EHNEKERN
Ko F) BOF #E47686,782,000/8 7T » 1R E E4)32% °
RERHAERBEX ((BHERBEXDERX  GHE
W B 7R % A B R B B B 493,651,00008 7T ©

The measurement of ECL is inherently subjective
which involves significant management judgements
and assumptions regarding the probability of default,
loss given default, historical delinquency ratio of loan
and interest receivables, collateral values and
economic indicators on forward-looking information.
AAERHERBARAELAIEME KA RAHE
WEREMEMBAOR X BROBAX EFELERX
h - ERREE ARBBRKBEEEOAELE
BHEKXNEERE 2 B R R& -

We obtained the understanding of the Group’s policy
on granting loans to its borrowers and the Group's
credit and impairment assessments including the
related credit control and loan monitoring process. We
evaluated the reasonableness of management's loss
allowance estimates on loan and interest receivables
by examining the information used by management
to form such judgements, including testing the
accuracy of the historical default data, evaluating
whether the historical loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on current conditions and forward-
looking information and examining the actual losses
recorded during the current financial year and
assessing whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising loss allowances.
We carried out procedures, on a sample basis, on the
settlement made by borrowers during the year and
their subsequent settlement with reference to the
repayment schedule, and tested the existence and
accuracy for the classification of stages of loan and
interest receivables applied in the ECL model as at
the end of the reporting period. We involved our
internal valuation expert to assist us in reviewing the
valuation methodology and approach adopted by
management in the ECL model. We also considered
the adequacy of disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

HEHELEEEEERLA

BRETEE ()

Key audit matters

RREETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

RANBFNMEE@AREGTEER

The accounting policies and disclosures are included
in notes 2.5, 3 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.
BEASTBRRERBEESNGEES W BRERMT25 3
K16 -

HMH EXEEREERARTERAR E£H
FERBREFGENERER (EEREBNEEZHRER
ERRE)DMSTH BRMEEEREEEER UL
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EFERANTR KMFAGREEEHEEERR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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FRRETSEHE(H)

Key audit matters

BTSN

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BEMNESFOMEEFARETSEER

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

REWMEN DN FEEMG

As at 31 March 2020, investment properties
measured at fair value amounted to approximately
HK$551,576,000, which represented approximately
25% of the total assets, with the corresponding net
fair value losses recognised in profit or loss of
approximately HK$24,634,000. The valuation process
is inherently subjective, and dependent on a number
of significant unobservable inputs, such as the market
price per square foot, market rent per square foot and
capitalisation rate. The Group engaged external
valuers to perform the valuation for the investment
properties.

RZT_ZF=R=+—H UATEEFENK
B W% #49551,576,000/8 7T * HE RN AEEEK25%
THEEERABRALAFTEEEBERFRD
24,634,000/ L~ HAEBEAE LAEEHME LA
BIFETERAABEGAE  SINEFHTRTS
B -SFHhRmEEEEEA X - SEEI
BEEMEIREYEEITEE -

The accounting policies and disclosures are included
in notes 2.5, 3 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.
EHSABRRREHANGES
K13 e

B i R MY E2.5 - 3

We considered the competence, capability and
objectivity of the valuation experts engaged by the
Group. We also obtained an understanding of the
work of the valuation experts. In addition, we
evaluated the appropriateness of the work performed
by the valuation experts. This included assessing the
relevance, completeness and accuracy of the data
used as inputs for the valuation by comparing to
market data if available, and assessing the relevance
and reasonableness of the major assumptions and
methodologies adopted in the valuation. We also
involved our internal valuation experts to assist us in
evaluating the assumptions and methodologies for
the valuation of the investment properties held by the
Group. We also considered the adequacy of
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

BMEZE BESEMZENMGEIZRNEN K
BEREHM - Hfh THBMEEZIROIE - o
BAFETHEERMETOHOIERGAE -ER

BFEBEMISBE (NABE) 1T B A AER
B AENEENERE  cBEMEREREE UK

%Fﬁfﬁ@qﬂﬁfr%%mixfﬁ““&ﬁﬁ% SHBERE
B-HMTBERMABHEEERSH Tﬁ%ﬁbﬁzﬁ
BRE] Exlﬁﬁ?ﬁ*ﬁ‘&éﬁ%ﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁqﬂZfE““

A © ﬁdF‘ﬁDTE%J?E%?\é\Eﬁ%#&%WE’U?‘&EE%EE&@ >
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

HEHELEEEEERLA

BRETEE ()

Key audit matters

RREETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

RANBFNMEE@AREGTEER

Estimation of fair value of cruise ships

B D FEEMGET

As at 31 March 2020, cruise ships measured at fair
value and included in property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately HK$199,680,000, with
the corresponding revaluation deficit of approximately
HK$172,000 and HK$7,787,000 recognised in profit
or loss and other comprehensive income respectively
for the year ended 31 March 2020. The valuation
process is inherently subjective, and dependent on a
number of estimates, such as the market price per
unit, rate of newness and market discount rate. The
Group engaged an external valuer to perform the
valuation for the cruise ships.
RZEBEZZEF=ZA=+—B 8EENE BEX
?“ﬁLXQWE@ﬁEE’\JiHﬁZ@199 680,000/& 7T *
BE_Z_TF=-A=+—HILEFER " HE 5
ETam&E@EEM& SN HERRE G B A 49172,00078
JT 7,787,000 T - HEEEAE LB TEMN - I
BERTFETH OIUOBELTEERL KNFXER
MBI E - BEBEINEGEMEHHETHE -

The accounting policies and disclosures are included
in notes 2.5, 3 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.
FHSABREEREHANGS
K12 -

B RS TR R HTE2.5 - 3

We considered the competence, capability and
objectivity of the valuation expert engaged by the
Group. We also obtained an understanding of the
work of the valuation expert. In addition, we evaluated
the appropriateness of the work performed by the
valuation expert. This included assessing the
relevance, completeness and accuracy of the data
used as inputs for the valuation, and assessing the
relevance and reasonableness of the major
assumptions and methodologies adopted in the
valuation by making enquiries to the valuation expert.
We also involved our internal valuation experts to
assist us in evaluating the major assumptions and
methodologies of the valuation of cruise ships held by
the Group, which included performing independent
market research. We also considered the adequacy of
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
BHMEZE ESEEMZENGEEZERNEST K
REREHEM - T THEBEEERNIE - I
BTG THEERMETHOIERREE -ER
REBMAEERIELEATGERERERAED
BB TR NRERE UL EEET
Fﬂmﬁﬁ MEBERRRFERESHBARAE - HTR

PR EEER2E  HHHMAFE &
lﬁfrhﬁﬂ??ﬁ’]%@q:‘ZIK{EP“&EP& Heph |
BRETBIMSHE - RFTEZRESMBHER
NHIRBEE R B -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing

the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

« lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on

our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor's report is Chan Ching Man.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central

Hong Kong

29 June 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

ZFeEEE
Year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_TF=A=+—HILFE

REVENUE

Cost of services provided

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Administrative expenses

Foreign exchange differences, net

Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of
cruise ships

Fair value gains/(losses) on
investment properties, net

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Finance costs

Reversal of/(provision for) impairment
losses on loan and interest receivables

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

Basic

Diluted

KA

PR IR T AR

EH

Hi A B M

163

ERER FE

BR ERRLR/
(EAt)

kEME T ERE
W/ (B1]) B8
HEK B R R MY

mAKAK

B E R B R A
BRED (BE)

B 50 B0 28 7

FISHER

KEERA

AL
ARAIERA
RS

ALAEBER
REFEA
EEEREF

£

Notes

it &

13
32

2020 2019
—ECEF —F-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
(Restated)

(&&51)

145,364 173,006
(19,499) (20,303)
125,865 152,703
12,044 13,483
(50,585) (55,428)
(2,393) (10,990)
(172) 2,672
(24,634) 7,554
- 3,652
(5) (593)
(1,971) 906
58,149 113,959
(9,514) (25,376)
48,635 88,583
15,461 47,492
33,174 41,091
48,635 88,583

HK0.27 centsi& 1l

HKO0.82 centsi& 1Ll

HK0.27 centsi& 1l

HKO0.82 centsi& Ll
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEEZEWER

Year ended 31 March 2020
HE_T_ZF=A=+—HILFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/(LOSS)

Other comprehensive income/
(loss) that may be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences:
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations
Reclassification adjustment
for a foreign operation
disposed of during the year

Net other comprehensive loss
that may be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods

Other comprehensive income/
(loss) that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of
cruise ships

Surplus on revaluation of a property

Change in fair value of equity
investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Net other comprehensive income
that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

REE @R

Hitt 2wz~
(B#])

R RESEH D1
EREMEMEE
Wz (BR) -

PE 5 R
BEBIMNEE X
ELEMERZH
RAFEE R B EHEI
REREN
EMOBEHE

A& BAFE 8 B3 0 4R
ERmMEMEE
EiE% R

AR R T REE# DR
EEEMEME®E
Wz (B518) -

Bz BHAHB
(BEAt)

MEZER-ER

S ARAT EEHA
H i % ERE N RIE
5 e 2 F (B (B

b1 B3R T B 37 5 I
EEEMEAMEE
e 35 28

FEEHMEEESSE
1 BR B K

AEFZE RS
A

AT AL :
ZNNETE ZEPN
FEIE I i an

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-hF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mo =E THET A&
(Restated)

(& =5)

48,635 88,583
(21,582) (12,299)

- 1,441
(21,582) (10,858)

12 (7,787) 8,576
13 8,097 —
(39) (453)

271 8,123
(21,311) (2,735)

27,324 85,848

(979) 43,807

28,303 42,041

27,324 85,848
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HEMBRRR

31 March 2020
—E-_ZTF=A=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Prepayments and other receivables

Loan receivables
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables

Loan and interest receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Repossessed asset

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accruals, other payables and
deposits received

Lease liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Tax payable

Due to the immediate
holding company

Due to the intermediate
holding company

Due to related companies

Loan advanced from a
non-controlling shareholder
of the Group's subsidiary

Total current liabilities

FRBEE

M BB MR
REME
EEREAFEE
A 2 W s
R HE R A

TR SRR B EL A e B R
R E K

EETIRE E

FRBEE R

REBEE
FEYE 5 BR X

FE WS R A B
BNRE Rk
Ho A & YR K
BEEE
BAFEERA
BaEmkERE
A Y [B] 75 78

Re kBReFEY

mBEERRE

REBAE

JERH SR~ HA R
RREEWES
HE&E
WAFEERA
BEmeRAE
JE B IR

N EERERA A
A

e R REE R A A
IR

J& 1~ BE Bt 2 R R IR
AEEMBARZ
FEFERRR

BN ZER

mBREREE

Notes

B &

12
13

14
15
16
23

17
16

15
18

21
12

22
30(b)
30(b)

30(b)

30(d)

2020 2019
—E_EHF —ENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Restated)

(&)

338,070 394,150
551,576 555,760
1,513 1,552
434 4,026
133,065 270,369
- 306
1,024,658 1,226,163
116,538 58,290
553,717 552,786
5,639 5,194
14,132 14,132
14,119 27,984
1,042 70
438,811 996,257
1,143,998 1,654,713
16,664 21,044
140 -

391 =

153 1,031

- 40,000

40,000 140,000

- 20,004

71,823 131,823
129,171 353,902
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
HGEMBRAR(E)

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS
LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deposits received

Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Issued capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Ng Wee Keat

BEH

Chairman

E

RBEEFE

BMEERRD
afE

FRBRE
Elins
HERE
ELETIARE

FRE B ERE

BEEFH

R
RATERA
P& 4L FE
BEBITRA

it

Notes

B &E

21

23

24
26

31 March 2020

—E_TF=A=+—H

2020 2019
—EB-FF —ENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)

(&)

1,014,827 1,300,811
2,039,485 2,526,974
3,386 3,338

81 —

19,558 19,519
23,025 22,857
2,016,460 2,504,117
14,451 14,451
1,602,776 2,118,736
1,617,227 2,133,187
399,233 370,930
2,016,460 2,504,117

Sio lon Kuan

mEE

Deputy Chairman

T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEEREER
Year ended 31 March 2020

BE-_T_TF=-A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAREE AR
Share Share Asset Exchange Non-
Issued  premium option Contributed revaluation ~ Fairvalue translation ~ Merger  Retained controlling Total
capital  account  reseve  surplus  reseve  reserve  reseve feserve profits Total interests equity
L G Rkt  BRE B4 EEEff OVEE E} af 3] #2R Bi
k& BER i &5 R ffe e ffe bl ait Bi L
HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000
Tin T T T TEn Tn TEn T TEn TR T TR
At 1 Apri 2019, R-E-nEmA-A-
as previously reported BB 14451 354,993 23015 162,587 5,146 m (1,681) - 1,093816 1,653,099 50871 1,703,970
Adjusted for common control 3L ERE25IME
acquiston (note 2.1) et 9E () - = = - - - - 40000 60088 480088 320059 800,147
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NERA-A
(Restated) (iE5)) 14451 354993 23015 162587 5,146 7 (1681) 420000 1153904 2133187 370930 2504117
Profit for the year KER&H - - - - - - - - 15460 15461 33174 48635
Other comprehensive income/  AFRE2E
(loss) for the year: :
Exchange differences related
to foreign operations - - - - - - (16587) - - (16587) (4995  (21,582)
Defict on revaluation of
cruise ships - - - - (4672) - - - - (@612 (315 (778])
Surplus on revaluation of
a property - - - - 4858 - - - - 4858 3,239 8,097
Change in fair value of equity
investment designated
at fair velue through other
comprehensive income - - - - - (39) - - - (39) - (39)
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 186 (39)  (16,587) - 15,461 (979) 28303 2134
Final 2019 dividend declared
(note 10) g EGE: - - - - - - - - () (1734) - (173)
Adjusted for common control 3L ERE25IUE
acquisiton (note 2.1) et A% (ik1) - - - - - - - (497,640) - (497,640) - (497,640)
At 31 March 2020 R-B-%E
B : 14451 354993 23015t 162587F 533 T35 (18268)° (77640 1,15204* 1617227 399233 2016460
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of ~ * IS FEERBRERGES B R T LR

HK$1,602,776,000 (2019 (Restated): HK$2,118,736,000) in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

A #1#51,602,776,0008 7T (—Z— NLF (£
&) :2,118,736,00087T) °



At Apiil 2018,
a previously reported

Adjusted for common control
acquisition (note 2.1)

At T April 2018
(Restated)

Profit for the year (Restated)
Other comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year:
Exchange differences related
to foreign operations
Surplus on revaluation of
cruise ships
Change in fair value of equity
investment designated
 fair value through other
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
for the year (Restated)
Interim dividend declared
by the Company's subsidiary
(Restated) (note 10)
Dividend paid to non-controling
shareholders

At 31 March 2019
(Restated)

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

HREESBERE)

Year ended 31 March 2019
BE-_ZT—NF=A=+—HItFE

11
Ay

=
=k
Bl
et

SARRHYNE
et % (i)

R-E-NFEA-A

KRN (BE5))
TERARRE

HERZE
B52EfR

B4
ETBRATEE
HALH 2B
MRERED
AFEESD

KER2E
WsaE (Es)
ARAHBAA
BERZRHRE
(@250) (3t10)
BREER

=R=1-H
(#35)

Attributable to owners of the Company

2-N\EMA-8"

2N

Share Share Asset Exchange Non-
Issued ~ premium option  Contibuted ~revaluation  Fairvalue ~ translation Merger  Retained controlling Total
captdl  account Tesene surplus fesenve Tesenve Tesene Tesene profits Told  interests equity
2% Rty Gk B4 BEEfR  ATEE 3 afk RE FER Bt
hx  BER i B e i B B it ait Lia i
HKF000  HK$000  HKF000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
TEn AT TEn  TEr  TEn  TEr  TEm T TEn  TEr  TEm TR
14451 354993 23015 162587 E 1205 6,697 - 107497 1637895 67899 1705794
- - - - - - - 420000 151485 571485 380990 952475
14451 354993 8015 162587 - 1225 6697 420000 1226412 2209380 448889 2,656,269
- - - - - - - - 47492 47492 41,091 88,583
- - . - - - () - - By (%0 (1089)
- - - - 5146 - - - - 5146 5430 8,576
- - - - - (453) - - - (653) )
- - - - 5,146 (453)  (8379) S 3807 M 858
- - - - - - - - (1200000 (120000  (80000)  (200000)
- - - - - - - - - - (800000 (40,000)
14451 354993 2015 162587 5,146 T (1,681) 420000 1,153904 2133187 370930 2504117
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GZEHERER
Year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_T-_TF=R=1+—HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Bank interest income
Dividend income from equity investments at
fair value through profit or loss
Dividend income from equity investment
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Depreciation
Fair value losses on equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial
assets/liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
Fair value losses/(gains) on investment
properties, net
Deficit/(surplus) on revaluation of
cruise ships
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment losses
on loan and interest receivables

Decrease/(increase) in loan and
interest receivables

Increase in trade receivables

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Decrease in equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Decrease in an amount due to a
related company

Decrease in accruals, other payables
and deposits received

BeFHene

nE

B Bt AT 4t 1

RTIRRELHZAE

A& AR

BITMBWA

BRFEERARSE
REZBRBBA

HERERFEEA
Hith 2 m iR 0B i
&éZk%WA

e

E@ﬁ@fﬁk% S A A
REZRVFEEBR

BRVEEFABZNSR

BEE/ABZAYEE
B/ ()
RENEZAFEE

BiR/(ks)  FE
BH BB/

(B#)

5 BB 2 B R R 2R
FWE &WQMME%E

ERERRMEZ

W/ ()

FEWE SRR 2B N

BN e REMER
B2/ ()

?”¥Fﬁ#k%ﬁ%h%
REZHD

BB A RREL

280

FERT SR - E R AR
RENES 2R D

Notes

P &£

5,22

12
32

312)(ii)

2020 2019
—S-8F —hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET
(Restated)

(& =51)

58,149 113,959
5 593
(10,919) (12,815)
(1,363) (3,753)
(710) (404)
26,901 26,895
9,735 6,450
391 (3,184)
24,634 (7,554)
172 (2,672)
- (3,652)
1,971 (906)
108,966 112,957
134,402 (35,869)
(58,729) (25,743)
(363) 5,246
4,130 104,720
@ ©)
(1,472) (3,296)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

HGERERERE)
Year ended 31 March 2020

HE_Z-_TF=A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—R-8F _FNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ik TER TET
(Restated)
(& E=5)
Cash generated from operations REEBRMEZES 186,930 158,010
Interest received EUF & 10,919 12,815
Interest paid ERFIE 5) (593)
Hong Kong tax paid BEREEHE (10,953) (10,198)
Overseas tax paid, net EREINEIE - FE (57) (41
Dividends received from equity investments BRRBEATFEEBTA
at fair value through profit or loss BREOREREZRE 1,363 BH55
Net cash flows from operating REFEMEL
activities RenEFR 188,197 163,746
CASH FLOWS FROM RETEBZEE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES TE
Purchases of items of property, plant BEVE HFE
and equipment REEEE 12, 31(a)(i), (ii) (9,108) (421)
Decrease in bank deposits RITHERZE D 248,913 1,182
Increase in prepayments for purchase of BEDE BERRXHBN
property, plant and equipment B RIEZ A = (3,510)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HENE LD RIMATERIE 32 - 17,145
Dividends received from equity investment BEREEREATEA
designated at fair value through other AAEMZEKED
comprehensive income BRERE 2BRE 710 404
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y BB B 2 A 2.1 (497,640) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) REZEME/(FTR)Z
investing activities Renesa (257,125) 14,800
CASH FLOWS FROM REEZH RS
FINANCING ACTIVITIES wE
Repayment of bank loans and BRERITERR
other borrowings BT 31(b) - (22,638)
Repayment of a loan advanced from BEASEMNBAR
a non-controlling shareholder of IR AR R
the Group's subsidiary B ZER 31(b) (60,000) (40,000)
Principal portion of lease payments MENREN R IHH 31(b) (107) -
Dividends paid ERRE (17,341) -
Dividend paid to non-controlling B FEE R AR R
shareholders ZBRE = (40,000)
Decrease in an amount due to the ERNEEZEZRAT
immediate holding company FHEZRBD 31(a)(iii) (40,000) -
Decrease in an amount due to a JE < B Bk 2 )
related company FIBZRD 31(a)(iii) (20,000) -
Decrease in an amount due to the e R R AR A A
intermediate holding company REZRD 31(a)(iii) (100,000) -
Net cash flows used in financing MEZHMAL
activities Benetd (237,448) (102,638)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

GZEREREFR(E)
Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-_T_TF=-A=+—HIFE

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of less than
three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as
stated in the consolidated
statement of cash flows

Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of more than
three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as
stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position

HEHELEEEEERLA

HeRkBEeSENL
#/m/ (D) B8
RENZRE R
ResEY
NEEZZBH  FE

RERZBRER
RELEY

RERAEEEIZ
BRI

Re RRITHEF
BAKRTENAR
TR=EAZ
BEREHRER

BeRERERNA
FisRe Rk
ReEEY

BARRTENAR
BE=EAZ
EEREHER

BRMBRREA
e e Rk
ReEEY

Note
P &

20

20

2020 2019
—¥-8F —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET
(Restated)

(& E5)

(306,376) 75,908
747,344 672,326
(2,157) (890)
438,811 747,344
161,698 137,809
277,113 609,535
438,811 747,344
- 248913
438,811 996,257
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2

Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The principal activities of the Company comprise
investment holding and securities trading. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries comprise the provision of
cruise ship charter services, property investments and
securities trading. During the year, the Group

commenced to engage in money lending business.

The Company is a subsidiary of New Century Investment
Pacific Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. New Century Investment Pacific Limited is
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. In the opinion of the directors, Huang
Group (BVI) Limited, which is beneficially and wholly
owned by a discretionary trust, is the ultimate holding

company of the Company.

Annual Report 2020 F3k

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

REAIREEESR

Nt EEEEERAASEBRERD
MK 2 BRAA - RAR 2 MaE
iz i ’’Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °

ARBZETEXEBBREREZERRE S
BEE -HNBARZE2XRKAISREM
BmHEERY DEXREREFEE -
RAEER » AEBRANERERET

A7) ANew Century Investment Pacific
Limited (R R B R XA SFMRLZ A
Al) 2K B AR - New Century
Investment Pacific Limited/5Huang
Group (BVI) Limited (M EBE XS5t
MRZzReE) 2HEZERBAF -
REEZER B EBE2RGEEERR
2 & ¥ A ZHuang Group (BVI) Limited
TIRRB 2 B AT »
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 3R R ML

31 March 2020
—E-_ZTF=A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

DAAREEESR (&)

MEQRANER

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as
follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued
Name operations share capital
EMERL/
£ BEwH BETRE
ETC Finance Limited* Hong Kong HK$700,000,000
PRFABERD A &% 700,000,000 1T
Kingston Maritime Limited British Virgin Islands US$1
(uBVlu)/ ]%i
International water
RERNAES
(ZBERES])/
N
Queenston Maritime Limited BVI/ US$10,000
International water 10,000% T
ERRAEE/
N
Gaintech Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2
MEREERRF BB 2B
New Century Group HK Singapore S$1
Investment Pte. Ltd. ESiplIbA KT
New Century Properties Hong Kong HK$2
Investments Limited &5 287

MERNEREBRLA

*  Acquired on 30 September 2019

*

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Group
FEEES
BREzEAN
2020 2019
“BCRF TR

60 60
(Restated)
(BE31)

60 60

60 60

100 100

100 100

100 100

R-ZZE-AFAA=+HKE

ARARETEMBRARZFBET

Principal
activities

ITREH

Money
lending
HiE

Cruise ship
investment
Bmkd

Cruise ship
investment
By d

Property
investment

NERE

Property
investment

MERE

Property
investment

MERE
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Place of

incorporation/

Name operations
EMRL/

£ Rewl
Senic Investment Limited Hong Kong
BMREBRRA BA
Wise Century Investments Limited Hong Kong
ENREARAA BA
Century Rich Investments Limited BVI/
Hong Kong

ERRLEE/

'R

All of the above principal subsidiaries are indirectly held

by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.
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31 March 2020
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1. RAREEESR (&)

B D = B E R ()
AATEEMBAAZFBEMT : ()

Percentage of

Issued equity attributable Principal
share capital to the Group activities
TEEER
BETRE BHEzEIN TEXH
2020 2019
“BC2F —_TNF
HK$2 100 100 Property
2B investment
NERE
HK$1 100 100 Property
18T investment
NERE
US$1 60 60 Securities
E trading
FHEE

W LR X BB A A h A A 7 R
HA -

ERFANZARBIMBARNEERR
HAEBEARFEEEFEATERHEAR
SEHFEETZNN -EZRR - W5
HEMHBRARZHE  RESERT
£ o
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B RS ER R

31 March 2020
—E-_ZTF=A=+—H

2.1 ACQUISITION UNDER COMMON CONTROL 2.1 t[F 4 & Uk B

On 30 September 2019, the Group acquired 30%, 20%
and 10% equity interests in ETC Finance Limited ("ETC")
from Huang Worldwide Holding Limited, New Century
Investment Pacific Limited and A&C Amusement Limited,
respectively, with an aggregate consideration of
HK$497,640,000 (the "Acquisition"). Huang Worldwide
Holding Limited and New Century Investment Pacific
Limited are controlled by the same shareholder of the
Company whereas A&C Amusement Limited is controlled

by connected persons of the Company.

The Group and ETC were under the common control of
Huang Group (BVI) Limited before and after the
Acquisition. The acquisition of ETC has been accounted
for based on the principles of merger accounting as if the
Acquisition had occurred on the date when the
combining entities first came under the common control
of Huang Group (BVI) Limited. Accordingly, the related
consolidated statements of profit or loss, comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group
for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2020 include
the results and cash flows of ETC from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the subsidiaries and/or
business first came under the common control of Huang
Group (BVI) Limited, where this is a shorter period. The
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2019 and 1 April 2018 have been restated to
include the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities
of ETC.

RZZE-—NFEAA=1TH xEEH ]
MHuang Worldwide Holding Limited
New Century Investment Pacific Limited
RASCIREBR A RIWE SRR K E
RaaE ([ H3E]) #930% ~ 20% K% 10%
P Atz 0 B R 48 (B 497,640,000
BT ([WEEIE]) - Huang Worldwide
Holding Limited New Century
Investment Pacific Limited®s f 8 [F < A&
NAREZES - MAKCIRLEH R &) 8l
=2 RAN/NS =0 R N w2 1 I

RREEE AR 2%  AEERSRE
¥ ZHuang Group (BVI) Limited# [
2 - WESHIRNEHECKBESHS
FOEMRAAR  MUKREBEEDRA
& &Y XHuang Group (BVI)
Limitedt R 6l B BA 8 A4 » FH L - K
SEEBE_T-NFR-_T_TF=H
ST RLEFEMNEHEGKEaERK &
Hlmk EaZHRLReRERE
RS RFABEFI WA SEHMER
71 % /8% % 1 & ¥ % Huang Group (BVI)
Limited £t A 4% &l &) B B 48 (HAR LA BE
ERE)NEERRERE -R_ZT
—hWF=ZA=+—BEk=ZZ—N\FHEA
—BENEaMBRARELES - UB
RORREERBENEREESE -
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2.1 ACQUISITION UNDER COMMON CONTROL
(continued)

The comparative amounts of the financial statements of
the Group have been restated to include the financial
statement items of ETC. The effect of the Acquisition on
the items hence restated in the comparative financial
statements is summarised below:

(a) Effect on the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 March 2019

Annual Report 2020 F3k
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B 38R R P 5

31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

2.1 HEEZEHWE (F)

AEEMBRROLBBFELETD
NEEZFRERANMBHRERIAR - WES
EH L RMBEHRROTEAR B I AEL
RYBHRERAMUEINWEE BT -

(@) $BE2_FT-NF=A=+—HL
FENGABRZRNTE

REVENUE A
Cost of services provided P 4 448 AR 75 B AR
Gross profit EF
Other income and gains H A A R s
Administrative expenses THAX
Foreign exchange differences, net EXHEE F8
Surplus on revaluation of Bim o B
a cruise ship oy
Fair value gains on investment REMEZ AT
properties BlEY
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENB DRI
Finance costs BMEKAK

Reversal of impairment losses on

R E R A S/

loan and interest receivables HEEERD
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AR F
Income tax expense FriatiE M
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERA
Attributable to: AT AL

Owners of the Company EREHEEA

Non-controlling interests FERER

As previously

Acquisition Consolidation

reported of ETC  adjustment  As restated
maRE WBEIHRR GERAE RE7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERL TERT FERT TERL
99,754 73,598 (346) 173,006
(20,303) - - (20,303)
79,451 73,598 (346) 152,703
12,399 1,084 - 13,483
(37,218)  (18,556) 346 (55,428)
(10,990) - - (10,990)
2,672 - - 2,672
7,554 - - 7,554
3,652 - - 3,652
(593) - - (593)

- 906 - 906
56,927 57,032 - 113,959
(16,016) (9,360) - (25,376)
40,911 47,672 = 88,583
18,889 47,672 (19,069) 47,492
22,022 - 19,069 41,091
40911 47,672 - 88,583
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31 March 2020
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2.1 ACQUISITION UNDER COMMON CONTROL 2.1 HEEHIUEE (8)
(continued)
(b) Effect on the consolidated statement of (b) HEE-_ZT-—NF=ZA=+—HIE
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March FENGEETAKRGERAZE
2019
As previously  Acquisition Consolidation
reported of ETC  adjustment  As restated
maRE WEIHRN GARAE =gl

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT T

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEERM 40911 47,672 - 88,583
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hit2mKE/

INCOME/(LOSS) (B8)
Other comprehensive income/ NEBREgENSE

(loss) that may be reclassified to ZRHENHMEE

profit or loss in subsequent periods: Wi/ (E548) -
Exchange differences: EHER
Exchange differences on translation of 8 HIMI & ¥ 15

foreign operations EENERZE (12,299) - 3 (12,299)
Reclassification adjustment RAEEFERLE

for a foreign operation BIMEEEBR

disposed of during the year BNHEAE 1,441 - - 1,441
Net other comprehensive loss s BRI ES D8

that may be reclassified to ZRAMNHEMEE

profit or loss in subsequent periods BEFEE (10,858) = = (10,858)
Other comprehensive income/ LB EE N s ERT A 1

(loss) that will not be reclassified to ~ EBFHEMEE

profit or loss in subsequent periods:  #zs/ (E518) -
Surplus on revaluation of a cruise ship ~ Eés v E(E B 8,576 - - 8,576
Change in fair value of equity EEREATER

investment designated AAEMEE

at fair value through other WRRABRERE

comprehensive income MAFEES (453) - - (453)
Net other comprehensive income VAR HARE T aE E 5T

that will not be reclassified to NEEBEEHEM

profit or loss in subsequent periods 2E TR 8,123 - - 8,123
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR AEFEEM2EERE

THE YEAR, NET OF TAX BB (2,735) - - (2,735)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ~ AFE2HK#

FOR THE YEAR #E 38,176 47,672 - 85,848
Attributable to: MTALRER :

Owners of the Company Vi/NEIET YN 15,204 47,672 (19,069) 43,807

Non-controlling interests RS 22,972 - 19,069 42,041

38,176 47,672 = 85,848
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2.1 ACQUISITION UNDER COMMON CONTROL HE = UWEE (E)
(continued)
(c) Effect on the consolidated statement of financial (00 BR-ZZE-—NF=A=+—HBHEHE

position as at 31 March 2019 EMBRRAKNOTE

As previously  Acquisition Consolidation

reported of ETC  adjustment  As restated
mAwE WEIRHK HRERE w53
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT TAET FTHT FTAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 372,440 21,710 - 394,150
Investment properties REME 555,760 - - 555,760
Equity investment designated BEARBRRTEE
at fair value through other AAAHMEE
comprehensive income W m ik ik & 1,552 - - 1,552
Prepayments and BRTIER
other receivables H A FEUBR 3% 3,510 516 - 4,026
Loan receivables JT&EW%% - 270,369 - 270,369
Deferred tax assets BEREREEE - 306 - 306
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 933,262 292,901 - 1,226,163
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade receivables W E Z RN 58,290 - - 58,290
Loan and interest receivables ERE TR F B - 552,786 - 552,786
Prepayments, deposits and BERE Re Rk
other receivables Ho e U BR 3K 3,035 2,245 (86) 5,194
Repossessed asset %fﬂ BE - 14,132 - 14,132
Equity investments at fair value BRRTFEETA
through profit or loss BRARERE 27,984 - - 27,984
Tax recoverable AT B 70 - - 70
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReSEY 855,173 141,084 - 996,257
Total current assets MBEELH 944,552 710,247 (86) 1,654,713
CURRENT LIABILITIES ,@Jﬁﬁ
Accruals, other payables and ﬁ RIE - H AT
deposits received ERkEWZe 19,083 2,047 (86) 21,044
Dividend payable JE IS, - 200,000  (200,000) -
Tax payable JETIE 77 954 - 1,031
Due to the immediate ENEEERAT
holding company IR - - 40,000 40,000
Due to the intermediate JE T EER A
holding company PR - - 140,000 140,000
Due to related companies il NGIE S 4 - 20,000 20,004
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2.1 ACQUISITION UNDER COMMON CONTROL
(continued)

(c) Effect on the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2019 (continued)

Loan advanced from a AEBWBARZ
non-controlling shareholder of FE MR AR R
the Group's subsidiary BRZER

Total current liabilities mEaERR

NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE

TOTAL ASSETS BEEARE
LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES a1

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE

Deposits received Blge

Deferred tax liabilities ELERIERE

Total non-current liabilities FnBaden

Net assets BEFH

EQUITY &

Equity attributable to owners ARRAEEA
of the Company g £

Issued capital BEITRA

Reserves i

Non-controlling interests FERER

e
Bk
pe
GRH
b

Total equity

2.1 HEEZEHWEE (8)

©

As previously

HRZZE-NF=ZRA=+—BHO&KE
BEUBIRARNTE (B)

Acquisition  Consolidation

reported of ETC  adjustment  As restated
mERE WEIRF HEHE KB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
131,823 - - 131,823
150,987 203,001 (86) 353,902
793,565 507,246 - 1,300,811
1,726,827 800,147 - 2526974
3,338 = = 3,338
19,519 = = 19,519
22,857 = = 22,857
1,703,970 800,147 - 2,504,117
14,451 700,000  (700,000) 14,451
1,638,648 100,147 379,941 2,118,736
1,653,099 800,147 (320,059) 2,133,187
50,871 = 320,059 370,930
1,703,970 800,147 - 2,504,117
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31 March 2020
TF=HA=+—H

_7_

2.1 ACQUISITION UNDER COMMON CONTROL
(continued)

HE =S W (&)

(d) Effect on the consolidated statement of financial d) SR-_ZE-—NFHA-—BNGFEEH

position as at 1 April 2018

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Loan receivables

Other receivables

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables

Derivative financial instruments

Loan and interest receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Repossessed asset

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

Accruals, other payables and
deposits received

Tax payable

Due to a related company

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

KRBRE
nR AERAE

e ARATER
uﬂi‘A/H\{miE
Le:0l g S

FERE R

H fth & Y BR AR

BERBEE

ERBEERSE

REBEE
JEWE SRR
TEEMIA
EWRE TR F B
BRZE ZERk
Hfth B U BR 3K
BEEE
BLFEERA
Bl RERE
BE e
BeRIReFED

MBEERR

RBAE

ITEEBITA

ATRRITR
Hm{j:t*h

FERT IR - Bt
ERRED RS

FEAHIR

FESBARE A R FUR

B A EEER

RBEERE

As previously

BRRKROEZE

Acquisition Consolidation

reported of ETC  adjustment  As restated
maRE WBEHRERR AR RED|
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FAET FHET
283,438 22,823 = 306,261
676,424 = = 676,424
2,005 - - 2,005

- 192,514 - 192,514

- 587 - 587

- 455 - 455
961,867 216,379 - 1,178,246
32,829 - - 32,829
107 - - 107
593,866 - 593,866

8,616 2,062 (86) 10,592

- 14,132 - 14,132
139,154 - - 139,154
10 - - 10
793,767 128,654 - 922,421
974,483 738,714 (86) 1,713,111
3,291 = = 3,291
1,574 = = 1,574
23,444 1,669 (86) 25,027
804 949 - 1,753

9 - 9
29,122 2,618 (86) 31,654
945,361 736,096 - 1,681,457
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2.1 ACQUISITION UNDER COMMON CONTROL
(continued)

(d) Effect on the consolidated statement of financial

HEHELEEEEERLA

2.1 HEEZEHWEE (8)

(d R -_F-N\FOA-BNHEEH

position as at 1 April 2018 (continued)

TOTAL ASSETS REERRD
LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES &f&
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and FERITR
other borrowings H Ao &
Loan advanced from a ARENMBRARZ
non-controlling shareholder of IR AR R
the Group's subsidiary B ZER
Deposits received Bliize
Deferred tax liabilities BREFIEEE
Total non-current liabilities ERBDERRER
Net assets BEFR
EQUITY &
Equity attributable to owners ARRAEEA
of the Company 3 £
Issued capital BEITRA
Reserves 1
Non-controlling interests FERES
Total equity EHER

As previously

BARR KR

FE(E)

Acquisition Consolidation

reported of ETC  adjustment  As restated
maRE WEIHRR GeRAE RE5|
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TET TET
1,907,228 952,475 - 2,859,703
21,863 - - 21,863
171,823 = » 171,823
3,999 = = 3,999
3,749 - - 3,749
201,434 = = 201,434
1,705,794 952,475 - 2,658,269
14,451 700,000 (700,000) 14,451
1,623,444 252,475 319,010 2,194,929
1,637,895 952,475 (380,990) 2,209,380
67,899 - 380,990 448,889
1,705,794 952,475 - 2,658,269
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2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for cruise ships,
investment properties, equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, equity investment designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when

otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group") for the year
ended 31 March 2020. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability

to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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22 RBLEE

$H7fﬁ%$f§%)ﬁ7fﬁfﬁiﬁ Eag ([&
BRG] B2 BEAMBRE
ZEE\'J(@E}%W%%#&%LEE'D( =]
%“*Hﬁ‘kiﬁifﬁﬁﬂ EEGHER(E
R RRE)  BELEBERWM
Z;.Eﬂ%‘iﬂﬂ&%}%@ CIRC Y3
HEMBRR BB REWHE - KA
FEEGFABSENRERE  BEARK
AFEEFAEMEZEKEARERE
RERATFEEFABZNERAEBNIR
NV EEFEI  AMBBRRIIIRESL
ORI RE - BRIESINGH A - RS
RGBT (BT IEH  FrEesEE
UEHEINTT-

meEE

REMBRRBEARAIRENE QA
(BB IAEEDHE_Z_ZF=
A=+—BLEFENMBRE - WEA
AIEARNRIEESHEEFNER
REBLELER) SA5ERB2HEE
®E RSB M A E ] # B WA R
Mk EBEAEO®R WHEBENERY
WIREFOEN (AIREASEBEAA
BN FEWIRE T RSN
) EZEE R - BNES = HIRE -

r-E
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2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee,

including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the

date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

HEHELEEEEERLA

2.2 IRBLE X (4F)

REEXE(HE)
EARAERIEEEELRBIRET
REBORRIBOUEN  EFHER
CHRAHERETNENN  ~AEEE
ZEMEMEBIREMRBR - B

(@) EWERETHMZREFHEANS
[l % 4

(b) HibERZTHELNEN &

(0 ANEEHRRENBERRE

B 8 B BR AR B 1 B) 2 A R HY
SHEMER - WERA A S ERRR
i o B 2 B B AR B AN 5 B R SR
BZBEHRES  VHEEGASKHBAR
EEEHERL -

BEakHEME2EEENSARIRN S E
BRASEERAHEA ARIFEERE
o AMEN RS BOHE RS ER R A
o AKREANFZTRAZEARXSBEHED
MEEENAE #zE WA XKk
BenEnakEF2EUEH -
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2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as

an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of

the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 IRBLE X ()

SEEXE(H)

BTET-HXZHEEE AlXAKEE
ENHEERTIDARERRET
—RNBARZHAEERLIRESMN

RIEZRR G °

MRAEBERET HMHE R A A
BBREER: (ONBRAREE (B2
EEB)MEE: (VEMFEERERS
FRESRE: R(DFFAREZNRARE
R R (VRBIRENAFEE:
(NI RE R ENRFEE A RGI)
EESPEROUIES 2 BHRIEM -
7N 55 [ 7 A B AR O EL A 2 T R R 4 AR B
MEEEWES B ARG HREE
M AREEMEAREERLERRE
EXREMHERR -
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2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised

HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9
HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
Leases

Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures

Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12
and HKAS 23

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 19 and
HKAS 28, and Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-

2017 Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation of

the Group's financial statements, the nature and the

impact of the new and revised HKFRSs are described

below:

HEHELEEEEERLA

23 EREFHERKE

AEBERREAFREMBEHREBRKEA
PATT 37 Bl 5T MARHE 7] B0 &8 B I R 2

Al

BB HREZER
FIWRZAER]
BB HREZER

%mﬁ
%;% /EHIJ
%1%ﬁ26%

BB ER
F285 2125

B (BB B®RE
R2EBZEY®)-
BRREF235%

BB IR ER

—AFE
— L FAR
L FENE

ABRFELIE
AIETH#
HE

FEE2
MR AEE

R &R AR
AERAEZ
REEZ

B2 H g FE 2
T T

HEBVBRE
AERIE 35
BB HRE
ERIE11%
BB GFTER
FI2HEREE
FETERIZE23

SR ERT

BREEMBRMEENESR ARG
o

FE-F

195 R BB &5 £ER
ER] - WREBEHHFHE

—EFEE < F RN RRR

#2858 2
ERI—ZFE—7

AEBRM BRI ERBIN - FHIRI AL
ENEEMBREENNEERTE

R
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2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 16

23 BEREFBRERKE (&)

() KRB ERMBRELERE165

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases - Incentives
and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account
for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model
to recognise and measure right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, except for certain recognition
exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors
continue to classify leases as either operating or
finance leases using similar principles as in HKAS
17. HKFRS 16 did not have any significant impact

on leases where the Group is the lessor.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective method with the date of
initial application of 1 April 2019. Under this
method, the standard has been applied
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
adoption recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits at 1 April 2019,
and the comparative information for 2019 was not
restated and continued to be reported under HKAS

17 and related interpretations.
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2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued)

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset and the right to direct the use of the
identified asset. The Group elected to use the
transition practical expedient allowing the standard
to be applied only to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed.
Therefore, the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16

has been applied only to contracts entered into or

changed on or after 1 April 2019.
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2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued)

23 BEREFBRERKE (&)

() KRB ERMBRELERE165

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
leasehold land and properties. As a lessee, the
Group previously classified leases as either finance
leases or operating leases based on the assessment
of whether the lease transferred substantially all the
rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the
Group. Under HKFRS 16, the Group applies a single
approach to recognise and measure right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except for
two elective exemptions for leases of low-value
assets (elected on a lease-by-lease basis) and leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less ("short-term
leases") (elected by class of underlying asset).
Instead of recognising rental expenses under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term commencing from 1 April 2019, the
Group recognises depreciation (and impairment, if
any) of the right-of-use assets and interest accrued

on the outstanding lease liabilities (as finance costs).

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 April 2019 were recognised
based on the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate at 1 April 2019 and included in lease
liabilities. The right-of-use assets were measured at
the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to the lease recognised in the statement of

financial position immediately before 1 April 2019.
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2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases (continued)

Impact on transition (continued)

All these assets were assessed for any impairment
based on HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected
to recognise the right-of-use assets under property,
plant and equipment in the statement of financial
position. This includes the lease assets recognised
previously under finance leases of HK$146,186,000
that were reclassified from owned assets to right-of-
use assets under property, plant and equipment.

For the leasehold land and buildings (that were held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation)
previously included in investment properties and
measured at fair value, the Group has continued to
include them as investment properties at 1 April
2019. They continue to be measured at fair value
applying HKAS 40.

The Group has used the following elective practical
expedients when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 April
2019:

+  Applying the short-term lease exemptions to
leases with a lease term that ends within 12
months from the date of initial application;

»  Using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend/
terminate the lease;

* A single discount rate was applied to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics; and

+ Initial direct costs were excluded from the
measurement of the right-of-use assets at 1
April 2019.
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2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued)

23 BEREFBRERKE (&)

Financial impact at 1 April 2019

The adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019 by the
Group has given rise to additional lease liabilities of
HK$140,000 at 1 April 2019 with corresponding
right-of-use assets of the same amount recognised.
In addition, the net carrying amount of assets
previously classified as owned assets under finance
leases of HK$146,186,000 were reclassified as
right-of-use assets on 1 April 2019. The adoption
has had no impact on the Group's equity at 1 April
2019.

The lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 reconciled to RZE-NWFOA-—BNHEERR
the operating lease commitments as at 31 March ,\B/\\: —NWEFE=ZA=+—HHNK
2019 are as follows: EHEAELHRNT
HK$'000
TETT
Operating lease commitments R-B-NAF=ZA=1+—HH
as at 31 March 2019 RERERE 232
Less: Commitments relating to short-term W EHEE R THESR
leases and those leases with a —E_EF=A=+—H
remaining lease term ended on AT EROEEK
or before 31 March 2020 MR A (88)
144
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate R —-Z—AFMA—HK
as at 1 April 2019 DN Y538 8 18 R X 3.9%
Discounted operating lease commitments RZZE-NAFHEA—-BH
as at 1 April 2019 R EHEAE 140

Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019
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2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) Adoption of HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for
income taxes (current and deferred) when tax
treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as
"uncertain tax positions"). The interpretation does
not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of
HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately;
(i) the assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;
(i) how an entity determines taxable profits or tax
losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity
considers changes in facts and circumstances. The
interpretation did not have any impact on the

financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,

in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendment to HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of a Business'

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate

or Joint Venture*
COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions?

Insurance Contracts®

Definition of Material'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June

2020

K Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available

for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are

expected to be applicable to the Group is described

below.
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2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of activities
and assets to be considered a business, it must include,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all of the
inputs and processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on
whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional
fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other
events that occur on or after the date of first application,
the Group will not be affected by these amendments on

the date of transition.
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2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

address the effects of interbank offered rate reform on
financial reporting. The amendments provide temporary
reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue during
the period of uncertainty before the replacement of an
existing interest rate benchmark. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional
information to investors about their hedging relationships
which are directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020. Early application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any

significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate
or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments

are available for adoption now.

Annual Report 2020 F3k

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31l\/larch2020
—E-FTF=A=+—H

QACRMEMKRERZERUH

HEER (&)
BEREM KRS ERNFESR  BESFE
AIE3R R BB BREENETRZ
(T Mt 7 RITRHEFEF R EHT B
HRENTE CEHRANMEREEFRLK
A THEERE B REHSHFE
FERIRETERRESL - I BFIEXK
RAMABREEREENREEIZETE
EMZENERBERNEIMEE - ZB
FIBRAR-ZEZEF—A—HxZ%ER
WM EEHE A FRAEA c ZEB
AT EHAEENMBRRELR
CED -2

BEEMBHREEMNE 10 R EF R G
BAE8H/(ZF——F)ZEFTEHE
BABABUMBREENF10REEFE
SR ERE28H (—F——F) AR
REEFREBECRARELEIHE
EHERBRANTRBERE - ZEF]
BRE BEREEARELEIBELE
HERRABEERK —HER - RIHEA
M s EIERE T2 RER MR Lt
BERXHTER—EBEY AIRZEL
H’UH&ZET&EEJ%TEL‘Aﬁ@KWEﬁ&E%E it
A%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ s RREREENR
EITHER - BRI AR ARTERIEIE
A e %-57% FHEIAEE &N T —RF
—ABBREBVHEREEAEI0%H R
BEEGAERFR (ZT——F)
f& 5T &Y 55 AT 58 il AE 2% H B - 3 r9 92 il A
MEAMBENEBENEENETRIE
FIEEEZMBRTREETE - A -
CHEISDIRES 235K

115



116

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B EF B E R 2 A

Annual Report 2020 F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ER R

31!\/Iarch 2020
TF=HA=+—H

_7_

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG Q4ACRMERNKEMZEBITE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring

it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions

&R (F)

AR EAB R RES G RAE
BRZIETRBRMBHTHOTE -
MEHEH  MRTARENRR - #
RAREXEERTERAANABHR

that the primary users of general purpose financial KOWETEFERE  ERZSEUBRERE
statements make on the basis of those financial HEPRE - AIZEEREEEKRN - ZiE
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will FIEE  EAMBEUAREERN A
depend on the nature or magnitude of information. A RE - MRS BB EEENERE

misstatement of information is material if it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by

the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the

HBIBEERERREKRNTE  RIZHE
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amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020. The B3] - BEMHER T2 YA E B
amendments are not expected to have any significant WEREETERNERTE -
impact on the Group's financial statements.

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 TEESHBRBE

POLICIES

Fair value measurement

ATV EEHE

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative AEBESBREARRATFEEAER
financial instruments, cruise ships and equity investments KEWME TESMIA s Rk

at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic

best interest.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either

directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to

which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.

HEHELEEEEERLA

25 TESTBEME (&)

AT EEH B ()
RIRE RN AR R B EER

BEMS  AREZENERERR (%
HATEEAERBENSBEEAEREDN
REBXBAR) EFMFHEDE - OR
EEBXRFIEFEEAEAEHEEEEE -

FEMEEZRE

WEBRBREERE  KFEETF
REERENAR (ECHEBEEE €
MEERKREWERIN)  RIERHTE
EZAROSE BEZANREEHER
BEIRTELBEMN 2 ERAEAERAR
FEEMEDZESE) BHEXAE
WABRIEERETE FRIFEELBES
BERA > MRERAXZHILNEM
BEXEEMSG  RAELBRT ATk
CeBINEEMBcREELENE

iE °

RBEEEERESBEBaE A OS5
ZBERT  HemRRERR - FHE
REER - At RRRSRELR A KR
BERMSFENENREEEREER
BRBHRHATR R R TR EAR(E -
ﬁZTEJEﬁT% KRR A ER SR

BRIEEENREMEINR - T RIR
Tﬁﬁgﬁf’Qﬁkifﬁﬁéﬁﬁ%@%ﬂl%ﬁﬂ
HE o



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - ittt £ S B E B 5 R 2 7

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

0 has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

0] the entity and the Group are members of the

Ssame group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of

the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or

fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of

the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity

and the other entity is an associate of the

third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan

for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by

a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group which it

is a part,

provides key management

personnel services to the Group or to the

parent of the Group.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates

them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the value
of property, plant and equipment are dealt with as
movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to the profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus
is credited to the profit or loss to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset, the
relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised
in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained

profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis, with
the exception of motor vehicles which are calculated on
the reducing-balance basis, to write off the cost of each
item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements 33%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment  10% to 15%

Motor vehicles 20%

Cruise ships 6% to 20%
Drydocking costs represent major inspection and overhaul
costs and are included in cruise ships and depreciated to
reflect the consumption of benefits, which are to be
replaced or restored by the subsequent drydocking

generally every two to three years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year

end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting

period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the profit or loss in

the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the profit or loss in

the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a properties occupied by the Group as
an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under "Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation" for owned property
and/or accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy under "Right-of-use assets" for property held as a
right-of-use asset up to the date of change in use, and
any difference at that date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under

"Property, plant and equipment and depreciation" above.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019)
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The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets

representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:
Leasehold land Over the lease terms

Buildings Over the lease terms
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019)

(continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(@)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful

life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or

condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019)

(continued)
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Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities (continued)

©

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in
the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying

asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-
value assets to leases of office equipment that are

considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019)
(continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of

its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. When a contract
contains lease and non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised

as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the

lessee, are accounted for as finance leases.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (applicable before 1 April 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal
title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception
of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the profit or
loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge

over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to the profit or loss on the straight-line basis

over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on

the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value

through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the

policies set out for "Revenue recognition" below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective

of the business model.

Annual Report 2020 F3k

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

25 TEESFTBEME (F)

RERAMEMEE
44 BRI B

TN RERES - SEA D A kL
BERAHE  BATFEEFAL LR
B A R R A T (B B A SR -

SRAERDAERE 0 HFEIAR S
BEENANRSRENBARAEE
EREMAENEBER - BAOEE
ABERH A REEEAERNEH R
YR 5T EA B E 5 BOR B R H:
ST P N E
HATBEHESRAE  MRBETRE
AFREHAREHSRAE - AIRE
MERSERA - REEEARANS X
74 58 B 2L 8 3 0 10 B A £ 0 75 3 4 B
R 5 B GAR B B 7 R B B
159 AR 5 T ST A R R ) A LI
S5 B B -

EMEENED B RAHBENANTENK
BAFEESAECEZERE  REL
MRS REBAE/EASMUAREMNAK
CERAERNMNENZIN - RERE
VIHERKAEHNNENZNNEHE
EDRBRRRAFEEFARDN T ®H
EBHEA /M -

30|

129



130

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

Annual Report 2020 F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R KB EE
31 March 2020

=

E_TE=H=1—H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and

measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,

modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an

instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive

income are not subject to impairment assessment.

Annual Report 2020 F3k

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

25 TEESFTBEME (F)

RENHMWERMEE (B)
Hi&q1 &
TREENHRAERTFEIBELT :

KB BT BEE (EFTA)
DEHERATENEREEERERAE
PRAZEFTE XA TRE -EEER
LIEHER - B ER - s REBRE
BRAER -

HEE BN FIEE AR M E B Wz 7Y
THEE(RERE)

ENRERE - ARE A DUEREARIER
SUEBERE AT BEE D B RIEER
BN EE A 2w # B
B EEmEEERERER2RDH
TH:JHFEREIANTEE - D8R
REBTAEEMETE

ZETREENRERERKTIEE
B HESHRA Y - 2R S
BMEENGRATERANEEBRE
WEREEAI A ER  REEEER
EREMBAER  EEAREESK
[l Bh & 2 H) B0 0 B AN T & 158 B kIR
A - BERIE - ERIBERT - B
WamgaERNEmE2E RSN - $EE S
BRAFEEFARME @RS RER
BEAEITRENE -

131



132

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B EF B E R 2 A
Annual Report 2020 F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ER R

31 March 2020
—E-_ZTF=A=+—H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the profit or

loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised as revenue in the profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be

measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of
a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs
if there is either a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial

asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 TESHEME (HF)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued) REREMEMEE (8)

Subsequent measurement (continued) Higit 2 (&)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BRTFEEFARZN2HEE (&)

(continued)

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract RARBEHN (BEE2REEETAL)

containing a financial asset host is not accounted for WITETAETGERRE - eMEET

separately. The financial asset host together with the AHERRANTETEEERRSE AR

embedded derivative is required to be classified in its ANFEBEFAERNEREE -

entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or

loss.

Derecognition of financial assets RIEBRZ2EREE

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a ETHERT  BERIEER (BIEERE

financial asset or part of a group of similar financial ErmaliBRAXRBER) cREE

assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the (R -WMER *MEEN—BH =X

Group's consolidated statement of financial position) —HBELeREERN—&H) :

when:

+  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have - WERZBEBEEMFSHRESAEZEN
expired; or B fEm ¢ 3k

+  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash - AEECEZHWMZBEEMRS
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation BemB82EN iRE—1A#
to pay the received cash flows in full without IR EREERELEZBR
material delay to a third party under a "pass- T EREEERHNEBEEREDH
through" arrangement; and either (a) the Group has EEMRZETHKE=F 1 (a)
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of AEEDEELXREEZBRKEND
the asset; or (b) the Group has neither transferred [ B F [B] % Ei(b)ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁiiﬁi%
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of HREZIBEE 2 RREHD R

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. %k - BEEEZIBEEE 2L %‘Jﬁi °
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has

retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could

be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses ("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are

integral to the contractual terms.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over
the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the

timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical

and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash

flows.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial

impairmen

assets at amortised cost are subject to

t under the general approach and they are

classified within the following stages for measurement of

ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the

simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 -

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 —

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is

measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in

calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans

and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging

instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly

attributable transaction costs.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 TESHBEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued) cRAaE (&)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued) JIG R TG 2 ()
The Group's financial liabilities include other payables rEENEHREEREEMENERRX
and accruals, deposits received, lease liabilities, amounts e EJr’*:”IE . E%ZH?% HEBAE - ER
due to the immediate holding company, the intermediate BEEZERQARKIE  EANPEERAG
holding company and related companies and a loan FIE - fﬁfﬁﬁ?ﬁ@ FIE - UERAEER
advanced from a non-controlling shareholder of the Bﬁ% A 2 IE4E Hxﬂxﬁjéﬁzgmf’

Group's subsidiary.

Subsequent measurement Higst &
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities CRIBENHEFERTHESEUT :

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss BRFEEFAERNEHEE
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss EATEEFABEENEREEEER
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial Z 1t & &8 B R 6 HE R Rl E /AR
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair ATFEEAFABRGENEHEE -

value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they QH%F FHBcHEBENEN  BRT
are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near MHEE AR aBEesBARS
term. This category also includes derivative financial M- XHEeREBEERERAEERE
instruments entered into by the Group that are not WAREEBMBHRELERFEIR T ER
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships MEBMBERETAERIANTEAS
as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives MIAE BREEETR/REIEHIANIT
are also classified as held for trading unless they are ETEN  BENBRATETLAESES
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or BRRZE -RFHUEEBENHKEREE
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the STAERR  FAEBENAFEEKZES
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in BiEFRTEEH A EX M ER
the profit or loss does not include any interest charged AME e

on these financial liabilities.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are
satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in the profit or
loss, except for the gains or losses arising from the Group's
own credit risk which are presented in other comprehensive
income with no subsequent reclassification to the profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the profit
or loss does not include any interest charged on these

financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised costs (loans and

borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance

costs in the profit or loss.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective

carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle

the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value
is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in
fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the profit or

loss.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part

of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,

which are not restricted as to use.

Repossessed asset

A repossessed asset is initially recognised at the lower of
its fair value less costs to sell and the amortised cost of
the related outstanding loans on the date of
repossession, and the related loans and advances
together with the related impairment allowances are
derecognised from the consolidated statement of
financial position. Subsequently, the repossessed asset is

measured at cost less impairment.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in

profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

«  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

« in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences

can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at

the end of each reporting period and reduced to the

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable

profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred

tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets

are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and

are recognised to the extent that it has become probable

that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all

or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or

assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for

those goods or services.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is

subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis

over the lease terms.

Cruise ship charter service income is recognised over the
scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the

benefits provided by the Group.

Realised fair value gains or losses on securities trading
are recognised on a trade date basis, whilst unrealised
fair value gains or losses are recognised on changes in

fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Dividend income from equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised when the shareholders'
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the

dividend can be measured reliably.

Fair value gains or losses on derivative financial
instrtuments are recognised on changes in fair value at

the end of the reporting period.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest rate method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying

amount of the financial asset.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments ("equity-settled

transactions").

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using
the binomial model, further details of which are given in

note 25 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to the profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense

recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also

service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are

satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the

employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the

previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings

per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme") under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees' basic
salaries and are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme, except for the Group's employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF

Scheme.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the

financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the profit

or loss.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or

receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange

rates for the year.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in the profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars

at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the

assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3. TESHUER G (E)

ESTIMATES (continued)
Judgements (continued)
Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term
not constituting a major part of the economic life of the
commercial property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially
all the fair value of the commercial property, that it
retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are
leased out and accounts for the contracts as operating

leases.

Income tax

The Group is engaged in the cruise ship chartering
business and accordingly may be subject to income taxes
in different jurisdictions depending on the routes of the
cruise ships and the operations of the relevant
companies. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes worldwide, if
any. The Group does not recognise any liability for
income tax based on management's judgement that the
Group is not subject to income taxes of any of the
jurisdictions based on the existing routes of the cruise
ships and the operations of the relevant companies. In
addition, the Group has obtained indemnity letters from
charterer to confirm that all relevant tax exposures of the

Group's cruise ships would be borne by the charterer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described

below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
and cruise ships

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active
market of similar leases and other contracts. In the absence
of such information, the Group determines the amount
within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making
its judgement, the Group considers information from fair
market value by reference to independent valuations.
This conclusion is supported by independent professional
appraisers who were engaged by the Group during the
year to perform valuations on the Group's investment
properties and cruise ships. As at 31 March 2020, the
fair values of investment properties and cruise ships
amounted to approximately HK$551,576,000 (2019:
HK$555,760,000) and approximately HK$199,680,000
(2019: HK$233,220,000), respectively, which were

obtained by reference to quoted second-hand market prices.

HFHELEEEEETRAA
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Defterred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The gross deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 March 2020 was
HK$8,374,000 (2019: HK$4,363,000). The amount of
unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2020 were
HK$226,509,000 (2019: HK$227,000,000). Further
details are contained in note 23 to the financial

statements.

Provision for impairment losses on loan and
interest receivables

The Group uses judgement in making assumptions and
selecting the inputs to its ECL calculation, based on the
Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting

period.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customers' actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's
loan and interest receivables is disclosed in note 16 to

the financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their businesses and services

and has four reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the money lending segment engages in provision of
secured mortgage loans and unsecured personal

loans;

(b) the cruise ship charter services segment engages in

the provision of chartering services of cruise ships;

(c) the property investments segment invests in prime
office space and commercial shops for their rental

income potential; and

(d) the securities trading segment engages in the trading
of marketable securities for short-term investment

purposes.

During the year, management has identified the money
lending segment as a new operating segment upon

acquisition of ETC.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted
profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax
is measured consistently with the Group's profit before
tax except that interest income, non-lease-related finance
costs, gain on disposal of a subsidiary, dividend income
from equity investment designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income as well as corporate

expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, tax
recoverable, deferred tax assets and other unallocated
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group

basis.

Segment liabilities exclude a loan advanced from a non-
controlling shareholder of the Group’s subsidiary,
amounts due to the immediate holding company, the
intermediate holding company and related companies,
tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a

group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to

third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue:
Revenue from external

customers
Intersegment sales
Other income

Reconciliation:
Elimination of
intersegment sales

Total revenue and
other income

Segment results

Reconcilation:

Bank interest income
Dividend income from
equity investment
designated at fai
value through other

comprehensive
income

Gain on disposal of a
subsidiary

Corporate and other
unallocated expenses

Finance costs
(other than interest
on lease liabilities)

Profit before tax

APUA
HAZP
LB
AHENRE
-0 0N

WARER
AL

BER

BHshA
kEak
AFEBTA
2R
ke
REzRE
A
HERBAR
ofl
fEREM
AR
B
(Mafifig
G

IHATER

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

FHLEEFTEERQA

Annual Report 2020 F3k

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR R P aE

31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

4. BRESHBER (B)
Money Cruise ship Property Securities

lending charter services investments trading Total

BE RRERH NERE 2ERR ait
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
TRCRF CToNF CRCRF CENF ZRCRE CTONF CRCRE CENF ZRCRE R AR
HKS000  HKS000 ~ HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
Tén TEr fEm T TEx T TEm  TEr  TEn  TEn
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(fE5]) (#&7) (E3)
70,636 73,598 64,175 7901 19,316 19910 (8,763) 487 145,364 173,006
= - = - 3,071 346 = = 301 346
317 24 = - 62 40 36 - 415 264
70,953 73,822 64,175 7901 22,449 20,29 (8727) 487 148,850 173,616
(3,071) (346)
145,779 173,270
55,714 5,518 40,757 51,293 (9,146) 23,891 (8,746) (3379) 18,579 128,323
10,919 12815
710 404
= 3,652
(32059) (30642
- (59%)
58,149 113,959
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. K& S EREE (F)

Money Cruise ship Property Securiies
lending charter semvices investments trading Total
hi& BREERE nERE B558 it
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020
SRoRE CTNF OCRCRF CTNF OCRCRE O CTOAF OCRCRE CTAE CRCRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR Tin TR ThEn Thn TR Thn Tixn
(Restated) (Restated)
(EE5) (@z5)
Segment assets AHEE 705068 861758 210134 233220 554357 561028 118349 85032  1587,908
Reconcilation: 5
Elmination of inersegment # 45 578
receables EYE (180)
Coporate and other AR Efh
walocated assets  KAREE 580,928
Total assets EznE 2,168,636
Segment liabilities ~ APEE 1878 2047 14T 13,948 5,392 5477 391 114 18808
Reconciliation; #F:
Elmination of inersegment 555 5%
payables Eff3E (180)
Comorate and other B REf
unallocated liabilies ~ APEEE 133,568
Total liabilies BEGE 15219
Other segment B2 %
information: ER
Depreciation k] - - 19499 20303 - - - - 19499
Fair value losses/(gains) # &% 7
on investment DYEESE/
properties, net (&) - 58 - - - - WEM (75%) - - 4634
Deficit/(suplus) on Bz &
revaluation of cise 4/
ships (28) - - 7959 (11248) - - - - 7959
Farvelue losses on -~~~ FATFEESFA
equiy investments  BANRER
atfarvaue though 2 AFEE
profit or loss i - - = = - - 97135 6,450 9735
Fairvlue losses/(gains) - ATFEEZFA
onfinancil assets/  EEMEE
laiftes a fair EE/BR
value through LATER
proftor loss Bi/ %) - = - - = . 391 (3,184) 3
Provision for/(reversal &3k
of) impaiment losses 8815 &
onloan and interest ~ EEEE/
recelvables (&m) 1,971 (906) - - - - - - 1,971
Capital expendiure®  BAR - - 6,981 - - - - - 6,981
i Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant ® BAYT HEEDE - BEREED

and equipment.

2019

Ik

HK$'000
Thn
(Restated)
(E51)

1,741,038

(86)
1,139,924

2,880,876

22,586

(86)
354259
376,759

20303
(71554)

(11,248)

6,450

(3184)

(906)

NE °
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4.

Geographical information

(@)

(b)

Revenue and other income from external
customers
Hong Kong B

Southeast Asia except Hong Kong REE(TEREES)

The revenue information above is based on the

locations of the customers.

Non-current assets

Hong Kong B
Southeast Asia except Hong Kong ~ R (TREES)

The non-current asset information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes equity
investment designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income and deferred tax assets.

B F5 R R M 5E
31 March 2020

—E_TF=A=+—H

eI HER (K

(a) SN REF Z WA KEMIPA
2020 2019
bt St 3 —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(Restated)
(gEE= %)
79,708 87,534
66,071 85,736
145,779 173,270

b AR AE R AR P R B [ I8 A A

7 o

(b) FRBEE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
(Restated)

(eE5))

685,289 852,125
337,856 372,180
1,023,145 1,224,305

LAGERBEEERAEEERE
EBRER WIABREEREAF
EBEFAEMEZEREHRERE

FIEFEH IR B E
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4,
Information about a major customer

Revenue from a customer of the corresponding years
amounting to over 10% of the total revenue of the

Group is as follows:

Customer A' = 5

L Revenue from the provision of cruise ship charter services

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue represents interest income from secured
mortgage loans and unsecured personal loans, cruise
ship charter service income, gross rental income from
investment properties, fair value gains/losses on equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss, fair value
gains/losses on financial assets/liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and dividend income from equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss during the

year.

KeEHER ()
FTEEFEFER
REEBEFEAN  EAREEZKA10%
NEMRRZWM AT
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT THET
64,175 74,937

T RHEREEREE KA

WA~ B AR IR &
WARAEREABERRRBERLER
HAAEROF WA - BmBEE RS
WA - REMFR2HERALE B
FEEFABSOEEREZ A FEE

Wi/ BE - BRAFEEAABREND
MEE/ABZATEEKSEBIE -
AR A TFEBEFABGOBRERE Z
B HA
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31 March 2020
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA~ Hitt WA R Wz ()
(continued)
An analysis of revenue and other income and gains is as WA REAMBARIW R 2 DHFTIAT -
follows:
2020 2019
—EZEF —ZE-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FHET
(Restated)
(ggE5)
Revenue KA
Interest income from secured mortgage A IR 18 & 7 K 4 K 3
loans and unsecured personal loans LN E R F B WA 70,636 73,598
Cruise ship charter service income B om M & AR AU A 64,175 79,011
Gross rental income from REWEZHE
investment properties WA #a58 19,316 19,910
Fair value losses on equity BRATEERAER
investments at fair value through B ERE 2
profit or loss N EEER (9,735) (6,450)
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial BRATEERAER
assets/liabilities at fair value through NeEREE 8@z
profit or loss NEEEKZ (E18) (391) 3,184
Dividend income from equity BRAFEETAER
investments at fair value through B AR ERE 2
profit or loss fig B A 1,363 3,753
145,364 173,006
Other income and gains Hit g A Rz
Bank interest income RIT A B WA 10,919 12,815
Dividend income from equity EEREAFEEITA
investment designated at fair value EL 2 T i 2 A R A
through other comprehensive income wEZRBBA 710 404
Others Hity 415 264

12,044 13,483
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Depreciation

Auditor's remuneration

Employee benefit expense
(including directors'
remuneration in note 8):

Salaries and allowances

Pension scheme contributions

Total staff costs

Minimum lease payments under

operating leases

Lease payments not included
in the measurement of
lease liabilities

Foreign exchange differences,
net

Direct operating expenses
(including repairs and
maintenance) arising from
rental-earning investment
properties

Fair value losses/(gains) on

investment properties, net

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Provision for/(reversal of)
impairment losses on loan

and interest receivables

wE

BB 2
EE®MAX
(BHEME8Z
M)
¥re MoERR
BRE IR

e RE

5 =%
pEiE=E]

R EMEZ
HemEAR
HEGERAY
(BE#E
MRE)

BEWMEZAFEE
BB ()  FE

HERB ARk

&I B 3R K ) B
REEIERE
(#ME)

HEHELEEEEERLA

6. BRBATEF

AEBHNRBANENENR, (GEA)

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ir=s FERT FET
(Restated)

(Fe&51)

12 26,901 26,895
1,620 1,570

21,676 21,352

967 1,008

22,643 22,360

- 252

12(0) 181 -
2,393 10,990

2,670 2,551
13 24,634 (7,554)
32 = (3,652)
16 1,971 (906)




New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

FINANCE COSTS
An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

Interest on lease liabilities

Interest on bank loans

Interest on securities margin
account facilities

HFHELEEEEETRAA
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HERBENFE

RITERZH B

BHRELES
BEZF 8

DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors' remuneration

Directors' remuneration for the year, disclosed

pursuant to the Rules Governing

the Listing of

Securities ("Listing Rules") on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange"),
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits

of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Fees

Other emoluments:
Salaries and allowances
Discretionary bonuses
Pension scheme contributions

e

HbBE -

e KoERh
5 AT

BIRE IR

B 38R R P 5

31l\/larch2020
—E-FTF=A=+—H

ELE=§o N
REMASIT :
2020 2019
—s-%8% —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
5 —
= 589
- 4
5 593

EEREUBESHEEME

() EEM <
$ETF%.5 BeERXZMBMRAAE ([H
R FHEMAB (T EMA
Bl ~ AR REM) F383(1)
(a) ~ (b) * ()R ()IELA R (AR (3

BEEMRER) FRH)B280 R
WARFEEEMSOT :

2020 2019

—EBDEBHF —E-NEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

(Restated)

(g E5))

414 414

8,812 8,717

1,125 685

497 470

10,434 9,872

10,848 10,286
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8. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EERAUBSHEEMNS (H)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors' remuneration (continued) (a) EEM< ()
(i) Independent non-executive directors () BUIHFHTEE
The fees paid to independent non-executive RAFEAIZR T B IR
directors during the year were as follows: TEFZHETOT :
2020 2019
—BRCRH —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok SRR O 138 138
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth MR LA 138 138
Mr. Ho Yau Ming Al & BR 4 138 138
414 414
There were no other emoluments payable to RARFENR - W AEER BT I
the independent non-executive directors during HTESZ2HHOMES (ZZ

the year (2019: Nil). —NE |\ o



8.

(ii) Executive directors

2020

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat

Ms. Sio lon Kuan

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

2019 (Restated)

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat

Ms. Sio lon Kuan

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

There was no arrangement under which a

director waived or agreed to waive any

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors' remuneration (continued)
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remuneration during the year.
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31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

8. EERTUBESHEESNE (K)

() E=M < ()
() BITEF

Pension
Salaries and Discretionary scheme Total
allowances bonuses contributions remuneration
Bifke
HeRER ML TEIMR Memm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THET FTET
1,869 214 104 2,187
1917 234 108 2,259
1,156 146 65 1,367
1,044 113 58 1,215
857 113 49 1,019
1,969 305 113 2,387
8,812 1,125 497 10,434
1,863 77 97 2,037
1,898 100 100 2,098
1,146 68 61 1,275
1,037 36 54 1,127
842 108 47 997
1,931 296 111 2,338
8,717 685 470 9,872

RAFER - WEEFHFEDR
ZARAERECMMES 2%

B
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8. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EENRTNBESHFEEMNE (E)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid employees' emoluments b)) AN BEEHEEMS
RAFERN  AUSEHEER
A (ZE-NAF AR ATE
E HEMEeZARBE N EXWE

i

The five highest paid employees during the year
included five (2019: five) executive directors, details

of whose remuneration are disclosed in note 8(a)

above. 8(a)NH 5= -
9. INCOME TAX 9. FiB#H

RAFEER  BENSHRIOIAEREE
A2 fh T RR B M 1216.5% 2 B K #

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of

16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in

Hong Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of
the Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime effective from the year of
assessment 2018/2019. The first HK$2,000,000 (2019
(Restated): HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this
subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group

operates.

# EREH=-Z— N\ T LR
FREBEBFEH MRS - NEE—
XMBARIAREEREE -ZHMEB QA
H2,000,0008 T (ZE—NF (K&
%) © 2,000,000/ 7T ) #) J& 2R B A
128.250 1) Bt BT - T B8R E R T A
FAI216.500M B L EGH - Hthib[E
JER T MBI IH TR B AN SR B TS P 1E
BRBRITHEANE -

2020 2019
—BRCERHF —EF-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(Restated)
(r8&51)
Current — Hong Kong BVER— &%

Charge for the year REFER 9,015 9,378
Underprovision in prior years MEFEEETR 13 2

Current — Elsewhere BIVER — H th 3t [=
Charge for the year REFEER 160 77
Overprovision in prior years BAFEBEEG (19) =
Deferred (note 23) EERE (M 323) 345 15,81
Total tax charge for the year REEHRIAERERE 9,514 25,376
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A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit

before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in

which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries

are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates,

and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the

statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as

follows:

2020
S5

Profit before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate

Lower tax rates enacted by
local authority

Adjustments in respect of
current tax of previous
periods

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax losses utilised

Tax losses not recognised

Others

Tax charge at the Group's

effective rate

B B A A

REEREFEZHR

A RART AL A0
RERE
HBAMEL
R E
MR
BERBZBA
RAMBZFAx
EHAHBER
AERRBER
it

BRAGEERKX
SHECHEER

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2020

—E_TF=A=+—H

9. FiB8% (&)
HKEAARNRA REKXRIGHHERRE
ZRVEEER ZEEMETE 2B A
mAEAZRIBRAY BEERRETE
ZRIERSY 2 SR - A K& E AR (B
ETEMEK) BERRE 2 HEEMT ¢
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
B Hitih & =
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
THER TR TR
5,493 52,656 58,149
906 16.5 8,952 17.0 9,858 17.0
(165) (3.0) (99) (02)  (264) (0.5)
13 0.2 (19) - (6) -
(2,314)  (42.1) (8,695)  (165) (11,009  (18.9)
6,500 118.3 2 - 6,502 11.2
(384) (7.0) - - (384) (0.7)
303 5.5 - - 303 0.5
4514 82.2 - - 4,514 7.8
9,373 170.6 141 03 9514 16.4

169



170

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B EF B E R 2 A

Annual Report 2020 F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ER R

31 March 2020
—E-_ZTF=A=+—H

9. INCOME TAX (continued) 9. FrE®H (&)

2019
—E-NF
(Restated)
(g E=5)
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
e Hiit @ At
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
TET FET FHT

Profit before tax W 750 31t A 57,232 56,727 113,959
Tax at the statutory tax rate REEREFE WA 9,443 16.5 9,644 170 19,087 16.7
Lower tax rates enacted by AT 8

local authority RERE (165) (0.3) (82) (0.1 (247) (0.2)
Adjustments in respect of bapcked:ilvd

current tax of previous FERIE

periods ) 78 2 2 - - - 2 -
Income not subject to tax BARH WA (4,587) (8.0)  (9,487) (16.8) (14,074) (12.4)
Expenses not deductible for tax A 1% 2 B % 2,373 4.1 2 = 2,375 2.1
Tax losses utilised EBAHBEES (533) (0.9) = - (533) (05)
Tax losses not recognised AERT IS EE 2,699 47 = = 2,699 2.4
Others Hit 16,067 28.1 - - 16,067 14.2
Tax charge at the Group's RAEEERHX

effective rate AR HEER 25,299 442 77 0.1 25376 223
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10. DIVIDENDS

11.

The dividends proposed/declared by the Company and
the Company's subsidiary to the then shareholders during

the year were as follows:

Proposed final — Nil
(2019: HKO.3 cents per

ordinary share) by the Company 0.371l)
Interim dividend declared by the RRAFMERRE IR
Company's subsidiary HEARR S

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company, and the number of
ordinary shares of 5,780,368,705 (2019: 5,780,368,705)

in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 March
2020 and 2019 in respect of a dilution as the impact of
the share options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect

on the basic earnings per share amounts presented.

ARTRBEFDBRE —F
—T-hE SRERR

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

10. BE

RARFEER  RRRRARFHERF
BE/ERTERRRNBSMT :

2020 2019

bt St 3 —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
(Restated)

(&RE7)

- 17,341

- 200,000

1. XAFEBERBRERE AEA

BREF

BRERBNSEDIRBARR G E @R
BRIERE AEBGRNFEE T RARNEE
WE ETE Bk E E5780,368,705M%
(ZZ—h% :5780,368,7050%) s+ & -

HE_Z_ZEZFR=FT—-NLF=H
ST—RIEFE UEREEEIIHRN
BREXRRMNEBELARE  RERWH
RITEE 2 BERR R 9| i 1) B IR E AR &2 A
SEEST REERE -
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AR5 R R EE
31 March 2020
—E-_ZTF=A=+—H

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based

on:

Earnings

Profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company, used in
the basic earnings per share

calculation

Shares

Number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, used in
the basic earnings per share

calculation

a7

AR ERERRNE
(L NNC]
TR ESAA
J& A 34 )

B 4
RAFERNFHEFK
B2 H By
ERZzE#%T
Egile 4=

11.

RAREBRRERE ARG

BREN (&)

BREXRBNDIBATEEFE

2020 2019
—E-E —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T THET
(Restated)

(e E7))

15,461 47,492
2020 2019
—EC_EHF —E-NEF

5,780,368,705

5,780,368,705
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31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 12.Y%¥ BERREUREEES
LIABILITIES

Right-of-use assets Owned assets
ERERE frtiEE
Furniture,
landand  Leasehold fistures and Motor (ruise
Land Buildings Total buidings  improvements  equipment vehicles ships Total Total

i REME G KE
4 g2 &if kg7 &5 Rife i 24 &it &if
HKSO0O  HKSO00  HKSODO  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSOOO  HKSOOO
ThR 7 TER TER TR i1 TER ThR TEx TER

31 March 2020 S B
A3 March2019and - RZF-NE=R

1 Al 2019 St-ARZZ-NE

(Restated): mA-B(HE5):

Cost o velution NAgfE - - - 175767 1497 3,056 215 2300 415,665 415,665

Accumulated depreciation  ZETE - - - (16,964) (1.497) (2.467) (587) - (21,515) (21515)

Net canying amount - - - 158,803 - 589 1538 233,200 394150 394150

Effect of adoption of

HKFRS 16
(notes (i) and (i) 146,186 140 146,326 (146,186) - - - - (146,186) 140

A Aprl 2019

(As resated) 146,186 140 146,326 12617 - 589 1538 233220 247964 394290
A1 Apil 2019, netof - HZZ-AFEA-A

accumulted depreciation AR RENE 58

(As restated) 146,186 140 146,326 12617 - 589 1538 233220 247,964 394,290
Addtions - 188 188 = 5,060 577 = 6,981 12618 12,806
Trensfer to investment

propertes (note 13) (17429 - (17429) (3,674) - - - - (3674) (21,103)
Defict on revaluation - - - - - - - (1.959) (7959) (1.959)
Depreciation provided

duing he year (4857) (108) (4965) (3%0) (1457) (2%3) GO (194%9)  (1%36)  (26901)

Exchange realignment - - - - - - - (13,063) (13,003) (13,063)

At 31 March 2020, netof - 7
accumulated depreciation
58 123,900 0 124120 8,563 3,603 873 1231 199,680 213,950 338,070

At 31 March 2020: R-E-3£=f

=t-A:
Cost orvluaion AEEtE 138,343 186N 10875 6557 363 2B 199680 20810 361541
Aecumueted deprecetin £ (1448) (108)  (14551) 03 By (760 (%) - (Bo0)  (341)

Net camying amount REAE 123,900 00 124120 8,563 3,603 873 1,31 199,680 213,950 338,010
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31 March 2020

—E-_ZTF=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)

31 March 2019

At 31 March 2018 and
1 April 2018;
Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation

Net carying amount

At 1 Aprl 2018, net of
accumulated depreciation
Addtions

Transfer from invesiment properties

(note 13)

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 32)

Surplus on revluation

Depreciation provided during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2019, net of

accumulated depreciation

At 31 March 2019:
Cost or valuation

Accumulated deprecition

Net carring amount

“E-MEZR=1-H

RoE-NEZAZ+-E
R-F-NERA-R:
et
2ENE

il

HZE-NEmA-H-
Mh2RENEZFR

AE

BERENE

(B13)

AR

R-B-NEZfz1-R-

NRERTELFE

RoB-AEAZ-A:

AASEE
2BhE

12.M% BERRBUREERE

(#&)
Fumiture,

Land and leasehold ~firtures and Motor (nise

buldngs ~ improvements  equipment vehicles ships Total
1 HEnE  GHRE

R L ki i ) R
HK$ 000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tin Tin Thn Tin tin
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(i E3) (&55)) (&5 (#%5))
52,067 4228 2806 2285 262,360 524246
(11,317) (3948) (2352) (368) - (17,985)
40,750 280 454 1917 262,360 306,261
40,750 280 454 1917 262,360 306,261
- - 41 - - 41
123,700 - - - - 123,100
- - - - (120)  (120%0)
- - - - 11,248 11,248
(5647) (280) (286) @19 Q03)  (268%)
- - - - (8533) (8533)
158,803 - 589 1,538 233,220 394150
175,767 1497 5,05 2125 233,220 415,665
(16964) (1.497) (2467) (587) - (21515)
158,803 - 569 158 B30 394150
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes:

0}

(i

The Group's right of use of leasehold lands represent
prepaid lease payments. The leasehold lands together with
the owned buildings, are held for own use. The leasehold
lands are held on medium-term leases expiring between
May 2037 and December 2055.

The Group leases an office unit and a car parking space
used in its operations. Leases for these assets are
negotiated for terms ranging from two to three years with
no extension or termination options and all the lease

payments are fixed.

The Group's cruise ships were revalued on 31 March

2020 by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited, an

independent professionally qualified valuer, on an open

market, existing use basis. A revaluation deficit of
HK$7,959,000 (2019: surplus of HK$11,248,000) was

resulted from the above valuation, of which deficit of
HK$172,000 (2019: surplus of HK$2,672,000) has been
charged (2019: credited) to the profit or loss and deficit
of HK$7,787,000 (2019: surplus of HK$8,576,000) has

been charged (2019: credited) to other comprehensive

income.

HFHELEEEEETRAA
Annual Report 2020 F3k
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B 38R R P 5

31l\/larch2020
—E-FTF=A=+—H

NR.YE- -BERREURBEEESES

(#&)
P -

() AEEHELHNEARASRENES
NRE- HELTHERBEENETR
HIEER  -HELRTHEERS
ER-_Z=+FHAAEZE_ZHRF
T AZEER -

() XEBBEA-—HPLEELR—EA
HUEHEEPFER REEELE
Pﬁ?&ﬁ’ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ—i'lﬁ A
RRIEEEE MEHENKREAR
& 5E -

H

AEBHHR T _TF=A=+—H
HBEVEESARMGEMBREIIEET
HEMAERARIRERAERGRAART
BEREITERM - LllEEEEZ EHEA
/37,959,000 T (ZE—NF : B
11,248,000/% 7T) - H 9 & 411172,000
/%n(_7 N B#42,672,00047T)
EHNBE(ZZE—AF 5T A EHE UK
ﬁ¢%ﬁzmzmmmxc:§—h¢:
£ 38,576,000 L) AIE 1A (=%
—NEFA) Hfth 2 mEME -
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31 March 2020
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 12.V% BEERREBEURBEESRS

LIABILITIES (continued) (&)

Fair value hierarchy AFEEERX

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRETAEEHHH QA FEEAEE
hierarchy of the Group’s cruise ships: R

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

REA=+-AATEEHBRA

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
IR BART BARH
miERE BREBAE BRBAE
(B-BR) (B=BR) (B=ZEN) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FET FET FET
Recurring fair value BEUAT
measurement for: BEME:
2020 it 33
Cruise ships & - - 199,680 199,680
2019 “T-NF

Cruise ships By - - 233,220 233,220
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31 March 2020

—E_TF=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 12.M% -BEERREBEURBEER

LIABILITIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2019: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised

within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount at beginning of year REFVHIEEE S5

Addition NE

Depreciation provided during the year ~ A ANEE R 2 I & B &
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation ShAM (B4
Disposal of a subsidiary & B B 2 A
Exchange realignment bEE 55 58 B

(&)
DFEERERX(E)

REAFEEAN BEBEEEF - EBERARE_E

RZEBBREBEEL =B REANE

AT EEE(ZF—

NLE : E) o

DERAFEERBRRAE=ZEXHOAF

BEFTENHEK:
Cruise ships
B

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TETT
233,220 262,860
6,981 -
(19,499) (20,303)
(7,959) 11,248
- (12,052)
(13,063) (8,533)
233,220

Carrying amount as at 31 March RZA=Z+—HMNEESHE 199,680
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31 March 2020
—E-_ZTF=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 12
LIABILITIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used

and the key inputs to the valuation of cruise ships:

Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs
it BB i EXTHEERAE

HE -BEERRBURBESE

(%)

NP EEEX (EH)

BATT 75 it 55 8 2 (L AT 58 PR 0 it AL 10T
TEHAENHE

Cruise ships Market data or comparative
By sales approach
MBS EER AR
HEZE

Cost approach
X A%

Market price per unit
BENTISER

Remaining useful life
Fertt REH

Rate of newness

B 3T &

Market discount rate
[EEEiIRS

Range
HE
2020 2019
et 2 —ENF
US$22,413,000 US$26,451,000
to US$29,498,000 to US$31,216,000

22,413,000 26,451,000 T
#£29,498,000%7T %31,216,000% T
5 to 16 years 51to 16 years
EE+XRE AETAF

6% to 9% 5% to 10%
6%Z9% 500% 10%

20% 20%

20% 20%

The market data or comparative sales approach considers
prices recently paid for similar assets, with adjustments
made to the indicated market prices to reflect the
condition and utility of the appraised assets relative to
the market comparative. Assets for which there is an
established second-hand market comparable are best

appraised by this approach.

The key input was the market price per unit, which a
significant increase/decrease in the market price would
result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value

of the cruise ships.

MSBER AL REEEZERBRORE
UEEMXMNMER  XHEENTS
BRELAR  URBBHATLR T
B EEENMRARAR AEREY
ALE —FHIBMEEZ A AN G

RERE -

TBHAERBEUMBGER mHE
IRAIEIE I, B & BN FEE
RIEHE I, o
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The cost approach considers the cost to reproduce or
replace in new condition the assets appraised in
accordance with current market prices for similar assets,
with allowance for accrued depreciation arising from
condition, utility, age, wear and tear, or obsolescence
present, taking into consideration past and present

maintenance policy and rebuilding history.

The key inputs were the rate of newness and the market
discount rate, which a significant increase/decrease in the
rate of newness in isolation would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the cruise ships
and a significant increase/decrease in the market
discount rate in isolation would result in a significant

decrease/increase in the fair value of the cruise ships.

Had the cruise ships been carried at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, their
carrying amount would have been approximately
HK$165,942,000 (2019: HK$187,980,000).

At 31 March 2020, the land and buildings in Hong Kong
with a net carrying value of HK$127,470,000 (2019:
HK$132,167,000) were pledged to secure a banking
facility granted to the Group (note 28).

Annual Report 2020 F3k
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B 38R R P 5

31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

NR.YE- -BERREURBEEESES

(&)

N EEEBX (A
RAEDRBBUEENRITNISE
1% MBREHOR - B iRH - FER
FHEMNBEMSIBWRFINE LEE
BB E MR R R B BUR M BUE RD 8%
AEHEEENEMANBELEEN
XA

EEGAEARIERTBIIE - K
B B AR § SR A
FEEAEEN R D o TEFTNEE
WAL, A &SRB AT EE
KD,/ 0 -

W2 EERIRE LR AR 2B E KA
EEEIE ARSEZEASEENR
165,942,000 T (=T — L &F :
187,980,000/ 7T) °

MN-ZE-TE=ZF=+—H AEEE
HFEA127,470,0008 T (ZZF — N
% : 132,167,000 7T) 2 & &+ 18
FEEER EREAEERERZRITR
& (Mf5E28) o
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31March2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 12.V% BEERREBEURBEESRS

LIABILITIES (continued) (&)
The Group as a lessee AEBEREBEA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of land REBRHEEREA E’ﬂ_ﬂ:}:iﬂg&@
and buildings used in its operations. Lump sum payments FEEBFITHESY - EREHE
were made upfront to acquire the leasehold land with o AREBEIN—BEFRE @A
lease periods of 23 to 52 years, and no ongoing EHA-t=2A+=-%F BEZE+
payments will be made under the terms of these land HAEENER - EAKFEMNR -
leases.
Leases of an office unit and a car parking space generally —MRAEEM R —EREUMNEE
have lease terms between two and three years. —REHEME=F - —KMs ' ~5H
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and FRARSENIIEENOBEEEEES
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. [EEE
(@) Right-of-use assets (@) EREEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use REAFERN AEEFAEEERN
assets and the movement during the year are as FHeBEkEBEEHUT -
follows:
Land Buildings Total
Tty B3 &=t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET TER
As at 1 April 2019 RZZE—NFHMA—AH 146,186 140 146,326
Additions #Zhn - 188 188
Transfers to investment 8 AR &
properties e (17,429) - (17,429)
Depreciation charge mEER (4,857) (108) (4,965)
As at 31 March 2020 RZZT_ZTF=A
=+t—H 123,900 220 124,120
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31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 12.M% -BEERREBEURBEER

LIABILITIES (continued) (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) REBEREBEA (H)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE

The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and the

movement during the year are as follows:

RAEER BERENEASH
REBBBHWT :

Lease

liabilities

HE&E

HK$'000

FHERT

Carrying amount at 1 April 2019 RZZE-NFEA-BNEETRE 140
New leases MEE 188
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 77K £ B R 52 89 ) 24 5
Payments NEA (112)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2020 RZEZZEF=—A=+—HNEASHE 221

Analysed into: DI

Current portion R EN B 1D 140
Non-current portion R E D 81

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed

in note 36 to the financial statements.

HEBGENRPE ST EMBRE
M 5E36M I EE ©
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31 March 2020
—E-_ZTF=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation

to leases are as follows:

12.9% BERSRBUREERR
(#&)
rEBEREBA (H)
© HBBEBENEINSEMT :

2020

St 32

HK$'000

FERT

Interest on lease liabilities HEBGBEHNE 5

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets CRAREENITEER 4,965
Expense relating to short-term leases and B EAE N KRR E RN
other leases with remaining lease terms —E-FTF=ZA=1+—H=
ended on or before 31 March 2020 ZRIRAROEMEERBEL

(included in administrative expenses) Fx (BEETHREAXA) 181

Total amount recognised in profit or loss FEER AR EE 5,151
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)
The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 13)
consisting of four commercial properties in Hong Kong and
one commercial property in Singapore under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide
for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised by
the Group during the year was HK$19,316,000 (2019
(Restated): HK$19,910,000) (note 5).

The Group also leases its property, plant and equipment
consisting of two cruise ships under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
the charterer to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions. Charter service income recognised by
the Group during the year was HK$64,175,000 (2019:
HK$79,011,000) (note 5).

At 31 March 2020 and 2019, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
and a charterer are as follows:

Within one year —F A

After one year but within two years —FREMERN
After two years but within three years MEREBE=FA
After three years but within four years —FRENER

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

NR.YE- -BERREURBEEESES

(&)
AEBESHBA

AEERBCEHRELRHEBEREME
(M3E13) (BRI R BB NIEEEY
EURMRIMEN —BEEWE) B
H-HERRXR —RERKBPINRE
& WHRTEARBERANBITMSMRRN
THAERS NAFER AEER
ROFAEL WA AE19,316,0008 T (=F
—NE (&) : 19,910,000 7T) (F
F5) o

AEENRBEERELHEBEDE -
BEREE(REMERSRE) HE -8
BER—REFKABASZNRES IR
TE AR IR & W BT T S AR B SR
He RAFEAN AEBEERHEE
R 7 WA &64,175,0008 7L (ZZT— N
% 179,011,000 7T) (FizE5) o

R TER-_T-AFZA=+—
A AEERERABEREAATYL
B0 71 B JR1 B A 2 T B O SR 2R A R FE M
ARIFRMEMFKBELT

2020 2019
= —ENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
17,898 37,282
11,863 11,632
2,918 6,679

- 1,148

32,679 56,741
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=

E_TE=H=1—H

3. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 31 March 2020, the Group's investment properties
consist of five (2019: four) commercial properties in
Hong Kong and one commercial property in Singapore.
The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31
March 2020 by Knight Frank Petty Limited and PREMAS
Valuers & Property Consultants Pte. Ltd. independent
professionally qualified valuers, at an aggregate balance
of HK$551,576,000 (2019: HK$555,760,000). Each
year, the Group's executive directors decide to appoint
which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group's properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained. The
Group's executive directors have discussions with the
valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results twice a year when the valuation is performed for

interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further details of which are

included in note 12 to the financial statements.

Certain of the Group's investment properties located in
Hong Kong with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$190,000,000 (2019: HK$200,000,000) at 31 March
2020 have been pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group as further detailed in note 28. At
31 March 2019, investment properties located in
Singapore with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$138,960,000 had been pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group. Further details of the
Group's investment properties are included on pages 255
and 256.

HEHELEEEEERLA

13. REMWHE

RZZE_ZEF=A=+—H x5BH
REMEBREABA (ZZT—NF - MIEA)
NREBZBARYE R — BRI
ZEEDE -RZB_ZF=A=+—
H AEBENREVEHRBUZERAE
BEEMEGRAEMITERAT R
PREMAS Valuers & Property Consultants
Pte. Ltd.E fk#2{E551,576,000% 7T (=
— L% : 555,760,000/ 7T) ° H4F
REERTEFTRATEEW —RINEM
BEMBEREEYENINLGE - #38
RABETSHE BE BUIMRE
BHRFERKE - AEERTEFEDG
Tﬁﬁﬁ¢§f¢ HE2FRHEREETH
ERTREAERKIEEERMR

BIEgEERE -
7 BRE#E—
120

BREWETIEATFE=
FHBHENI B HRRM T

RZZE-_ZFE=A=+—8  x5EK
H #818190,000,000% 7T (=& — L5 -
200,000,000 7T) 2 R M BB B & T
BEMECHEERE  URSAEEER
ZHRITHE  E— LB RMTE28 - 1

—NWNE=A=+—HB EHAE
138,960,000/ 7T 2 iz 78 1 i3 1) 3% &
MECEER  URSEAREEER 2R
THE AKEREMEZE—FTFHE
B EE255 %2568 °



13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy
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The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's investment properties:

Recurring fair value

measurement for:

2020

Commercial properties

2019

Commercial properties

SEMAT

fEfEFE -

—E-EF

BENE

—E-NEF
mEYE

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

13. REW % (&)

AEEEER
TREBTRAEBHREMEN R FEE

REX:

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

R=ZA=+-BRYEEFERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B EXRT BARRT
TS RE ExaAE BEaAE
(B—ER) (B=ZBR) (B=BR) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FTERT T THET
= = 551,576 551,576
- - 555,760 555,760

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2019: Nil).

RAFEEAR BMEEE—EBRARE_E
RZBEBREBEBES EREALE
HAFEBEFE(ZT—NEF : &)
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised

within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount at beginning of year

Gains/(losses) from fair value
adjustments, net

Transfer from right-of-use assets
(note 12)

Transfer from/(to) an owner-occupied
property (note 12)

Surplus on revaluation of a property

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 March

13. REW = (&)

DR EERERX (&)

EBEAENHE:

REYVIHEEHE
NEEBEAEZ
Wz, (E518) - 8

BEEAREE
(FF3E12)

g8/ (NBEEAERA
wE (MEEE12)
MEZEHRB

BE 3 o

R=A=+—HNKELRE

DPHERRAFEEEBRAZ=BRNAF

Commercial properties

[GES/ES
2020 2019
—E2=-FF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AT
555,760 676,424
(24,634) 7,554
17,429 -
3,674 (123,700)
8,097 -
(8,750) (4518)
551,576 555,760
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used

and the key inputs to the valuation of investment

properties:
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs
fEER EXTUHERBAE
Commercial Direct comparison Market price per square foot
properties approach method BERRTISER
[EE3UES BEEERE

Income capitalisation

approach method BEARMHER
WA E K% Capitalisation rate
B %

The direct comparison approach method provides the
market value of an expropriated property by comparing it
to values obtained in the open market of similar
properties. It follows three basic steps in arriving at the
value of the properties, including identifying the highest
and best use of the property; identifying similar
properties that have been previously sold (the
"comparable sales'); and adjusting the value of the

comparable sales.

The key input was the market price per square foot,
which a significant increase/decrease in the market price
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair

value of the investment property.

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

13. REWME (&)

Market rent per square foot

HK$180 to HK$440

AFEEER(E)
AR AREEYEGEMFERNGHER
MTkEE@MABOEE :
Range
&
2020 2019
—EC-ER —T-NF
HK$18,000 HK$24,000
to HK$33,000 to HK$33,000
18,0007 7t 24,000/ 7T
£33,0008 T 233,000 T

HK$240 to HK$580

1807 jT 24407 1T 2408 L2580/ T
2.75% to 3.00% 2.75% to 3.00%
2.75%%3.00% 2.75%%3.00%

BEREBZEBBLEBEARMISNGHE
UmENEEMRHERIKMENTISE
B HEBEMEREERKE=ZEAZEX
TR BREAMENRARKERS
BREMEHENBEUYE (AT LLE
HED  RETLBHEENBEELS

B o
=

TEHAERBFIRMEGER - -TH
ERAREN RS EEBREMEDR
FEEXEZEM D -
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31 March 2020
—E-_ZTF=A=+—H

13.

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair value determined by the income capitalisation
approach method is the sum of the term value and the
reversionary value by discounting the contracted annual
rent at the capitalisation rate over the existing lease
period; and the sum of the average unit market rent at

the capitalisation rate after the existing lease period.

The key inputs were the market rent per square foot and
the capitalisation rate, which a significant increase/
decrease in the market rent in isolation would result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties and a significant increase/decrease
in the capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a
significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the

investment properties.

EQUITY INVESTMENT DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

Equity investment designated EERERAFEETA
at fair value through other Htr2mWBEN
comprehensive income RERE

Unlisted equity investment, BATEES
at fair value FELEMRERE

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as the

Group considers this investment to be strategic in nature.

HEHELEEEEERLA

13. REW = (&)
RFEEBEX(A)
MBABERMOEEEN R FEBE/AE
A ERBENFHBBREHEN
FROAEEEREREENAM &
REHERRNFOELMEHEEE
AL BT BE @ -

TZHAERBFARTHEERENR
fELE & - TG 2 BB ARE N8
SEPREMELX T EBEARE M,
Do BRE L REHARIEEM, L&

]
BHREMERNFEBERERD, LM -

7

14 EERBRAFEEFAREME

HWHEHRERE
2020 2019
i —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERx TET
1,513 1,552

L B A B R T AR A
FEEGARBRERE  BEARE
02 7 4 R S
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14. EQUITY INVESTMENT DESIGNATED AT FAIR

15.

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group received
dividend in an amount of HK$710,000 (2019:
HK$404,000) from its unlisted equity investment (note 5).

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

TEAS FR
R & N H th & R K

Prepayments

Deposits and other receivables

B SRR BB

Less: Non-current portion

Current portion e B 1D

Deposits and other receivables mainly represented rental
and management fee deposits with landlords and
professional fees paid on behalf of customers. Where
applicable, an impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The
loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and

forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default and past due amounts. As at 31 March 2020 and

2019, the loss allowances were assessed to be minimal.

B F5 R R M 5E

31l\/larch2020

—EZTF=R=+—H

14 BEEARRAFEEFSAHMLS
HBRmHWRERE (F)

RBE2E-_T - ZF=-_A=+—HItFE

15.

A RS E A EIE E AR E WER IR
B A#710,0008 T (ZE — NLF
404,000 70) (M 5E5) °

ANRE RERHMEWRER
2020 2019
—EBC-EF — N
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(Restated)

€=27)

2,150 4,508
3,923 4,712
6,073 9,220
(434) (4,026)
5,639 5,194

ReMEMERERTIESRTEIN
HeRERBRSUIREFXNNE
XER -mMER AKEREHmEAH
SLEAEENELBRCHEERABLAE
EETREIN - BRAEEELAE
VAR BR B AR B AR SRR B AR FEDOR (40

Z) o

HE

tagBRNmBEEnNeREENBBE
AT HA I 4B R GRIR M 8 A SRR RO R O B
WK - RZTB_FEFR_FT-NF=
A=1—H0 BEBEHEEFHE/STK-
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16. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 16.
Loan and interest receivables JEUE 3k & FI B
Less: Provision for impairment W RERERR
losses on loan and 2K BB
interest receivables 5 18 HE
Loan and interest receivables, JEWE R NFIE -
net of provision BB B
Less: Non-current portion B IEREN B
Current portion B AR

The Group's loan and interest receivables, which arise
from the money lending business of providing secured
mortgage loans and unsecured personal loans in Hong

Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Except for loan and interest receivables of HK$29,927,000
(2019 (Restated): HK$33,905,000) as at 31 March 2020,
which are unsecured, bear interest and are repayable with
fixed terms agreed with customers, all loan and interest
receivables are secured by collateral provided by
customers, bear interest and are repayable with fixed
terms agreed with the customers. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at each of the reporting dates is the carrying
value of the loan and interest receivables mentioned

above.

EREREFE
2020 2019
bt St 3 —F-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Restated)
(&)
690,433 824,835
(3,651) (1,680)
686,782 823,155
(133,065) (270,369)
553,717 552,786

AEEHNEREEFEMNETIREETBL
EHEERB (REAERRBERLE
HELAER) MEL  WABTRE

=1

BEBA -

RZE_FTF=A=+—H" K
29,927,000 T (ZE — N F (&K &
%) © 33,905,0007% 7T ) &Y FE UL B 5k K F)
BIEER s EREER P HERIE
FHEARERN  IERKERRFE
HERFPRENERGEER HER
REEFPHENEEHRRANESR - £F
BERBMNEERBR SR AR A LilE
WEREFSHEEE -

Al
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16. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment losses

on loan and interest receivables are as follows:

At beginning of the year REA)

Provision for/(reversal of) JE WU 3R I B
impairment losses on loan and BEBERE
interest receivables (note 6) (#E) (f3xe)

At the end of the year P EF 4%

As at 31 March 2020, loan and interest receivables of
HK$7,628,000 (2019 (Restated): HK$9,507,000) were
past due but not impaired. Except for overdue personal
loan and interest receivables of HK$503,000 (2019
(Restated): HK$1,152,000) with no collateral, the
remaining overdue balances were secured mortgage
loans and were related to a number of third-party
customers. The directors of the Group are of the opinion
that these overdue mortgage loans were fully secured by
the collateral, accordingly, these balances are still

considered to be fully recoverable.

Annual Report 2020 F3k
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31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

16. ENERKFE (&)

FEWE R F B 8RB BB B 1E # B 4
T

2020 2019
. —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(Restated)
(sEE=5)
1,680 2,586
1,971 (906)
3,651 1,680

RZE-_ZF=A=+—H 2@HE
I R B 2 FEW B R % A1 2 757,628,000
B (ZE2—nF (&E5)) : 9,507,000
B IT) o BRiE A & R 1R G A0 FE MCRL A
B KA B503,0008 T (ZE—NF
(4 &%) 1,152,000/ 70) o - H @
HERRAERRBERRILTESZH
BE=FEPEBA AEEEZRR/LT
BHRBERCHEFRE2EEF - B
b b AN AR VB AT 2 BRR[E o
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16. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements on the Group's provision for impairment

losses on loan and interest receivables are as follows:

As at 1 April 2018
(Restated)

Loan recovered or repaid
during the year (Restated)

Transfer to lifetime expected

credit losses not credit-impaired

(Stage 2) (Restated)

New loan originated (Restated)

As at 31 March 2019 and
1 April 2019
(Restated)

Loan recovered or repaid
during the year

Transfer to lifetime expected

credit losses not credit-impaired

(Stage 2)

Transfer to lifetime expected
credit losses credit-impaired
(Stage 3)

Total transferred between stages
Impact on year ended expected

credit loss of exposures
transferred between stages
during the year

Movements due to changes in
credit risk

New loan originated

As at 31 March 2020

R=ZZT—N\F
mA—B (&)
FRE KBk
BEENER(EET)
BEEREFERESR
EREX(RERME)
(BoREB) (&)
RERER (KED))

R-Z—NE=A
=t-BR-Z—N%F
WA —B (EEF))

FRE K E
EEENER

%S B A A
EREX CRERRE)
(BB

WS B A RES
ERAX (BERME)
(EZBE)

CEPASEE T T

£ PO B i O S R
pAloE T
FREHIEA
BT

BB R
EHE B

BN ER

RZEZFTF
=—A=+—8H

HEHELEEEEERLA

16. BIRER KA E (%)
AN ER B e W B R % R B RO BB B 1R R

Z2yHmT

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FBR FRR E=HER CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET
2,061 338 187 2,586
(407) (338) (187) (932)
(32) 32 - -

- 26 - 26

1,622 58 = 1,680
(717) (45) = (762)
(80) 80 = =
(49) (6) 55 =
(129) 74 55 -
= 661 892 1,553

378 137 - 515
502 = 163 665
1,656 885 1,110 3,651
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16. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued)

For loan and interest receivables that are not credit-
impaired without a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition ("Stage 1"), ECL is measured at an
amount equal to the portion of the lifetime ECL that
results from default events possible within the next 12
months. If a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition is identified ("Stage 2") but not yet deemed to
be credit-impaired, the ECL is measured based on lifetime
ECL. In general, when loan receivables or their related
instalments are overdue by 30 days, there is a significant
increase in credit risk. As at 31 March 2020, a total
provision of HK$2,541,000 (2019 (Restated): HK$1,680,000)
was provided under Stage 1 and Stage 2 based on

assessment from the ECL model.

In general, loan and interest receivables are considered in
default when the loan and interest receivables or its
related instalments are overdue by 90 days. As at 31
March 2020, loan and interest receivables with amount
of HK$100,633,000 (2019 (Restated): HK$42,719,000)
were in default under Stage 3 lifetime ECL and a
provision of HK$1,110,000 (2019 (Restated): Nil) was
provided.
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31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

16. ERERKFE (&)

HIEE R B 116 HE R I AR B E N
mAGEARENEREREMNE (5
—REmE BEERBXADEAEE
REEFEREHRERERTBEA &
AR+ {8 A A H 3R B9 3 40 % 14 79 &6
MEOSETE - MEBANIEERRE
MipERE e MmEEM(TE BRI -
BHAKEECERRE  AHRERE
KRB EFEPERERABRE -
—MmE EEKERIEEBANDH
NR@B=1+08 " REERREBEEEY
m R-_ZE-_FF=ZF=+—8 RBE
TBEEREBAENE  EE—BRE
£ RFHR B E S $£2,541,000% T
—ZE-NF(KE5]) :1,680,000%

JT) °

—RmE  BRRERRMNESEHAEEN
SHEFEHNTE  BRERKFE
AlgwBIEREN R_T_TF=A
=+—H £%A100,633,000% L (=
T—NF (LEZ) - 42,719,000 7T)
ZEBEFRRFECKBAMBAE=
PEERBREFERBEHRERBL LR
B#1,1100008 T (ZE—NF (K&
5l) - &) o
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16. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 16.
A maturity profile of the loan and interest receivables as
at the end of each reporting period, based on the

maturity date, net of provision, is as follows:

Current R A
Over 1 year and within 5 years —FUEREFZA
Over 5 years AFLE
17. TRADE RECEIVABLES 17
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR

The Group's billing terms with customers are mainly on
credit. Invoices are normally payable within 30 days of
issuance. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by
senior management. The main type of collateral held by
the Group as security is deposits received from tenants
and a charterer with an aggregate value of HK$16,309,000
(2019 (Restated): HK$18,233,000). Except for trade
receivables of HK$104,230,000 (2019: HK$57,048,000)
which bear interest at fixed rates, the trade receivables are

non-interest-bearing.

BRERRFE (&)
REREHREWE R RN ERZED B
B (EMEREE) <2 RN T

2020 2019

bt St 3 —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Restated)

(&)

553,717 552,786
84,036 203,705
49,029 66,664
686,782 823,155
2020 2019
—2-FF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
116,538 58,290

AEBEREFEACERGRAEEUEE
FRET BEBEANBELE=TAH
NEE - B—EBEZBEEELR - A%
B IF 7SR ¥R BB 2 8 WBR 3K 00 DA BR =2
THl o mABEEAESEREERH L
FIE e AEERBEERERZERARE
ZHFNAAEAPEREAAKNREES ®
16,309,000 L (Z T — N F (K&
F|) 18,233,000 L) 2k & - B
104,230,000 L (=ZF — N &F :
57,048,000/ 7T) H) fE I & 5 Bk 5K Iz [E
ERMEET BN - BNE ZERERTITEE ©
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17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

Within 1 month — @ AR

1 to 2 months —Zm1E A
2 to 3 months WZE =1 A
Over 3 months =E A E

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available
at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for
more than one year and are not subject to enforcement

activity.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9 which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for
all trade receivables. The expected credit loss rate for the
Group's trade receivables is minimal for all the above

bands of trade receivables.
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17. BIRE 5 R (&)

REXZAH RNHEHREELES
FRACETHRESMAOT ¢

2020 2019
—E_EH —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FABTT
105,958 57,783
4,238 507
6,276 =

66 -
116,538 58,290

REREAH  NEBRBBEEMG
EFRHEREBEX  NETRED T - 18
RCERBUNTREFPDBEETH
Ao EERUAsENE BB ER -
BRGTERRBEENELR  EENE
BEE ARRGEEHASEBEBE
= B ATAROR BOR SRR S FERI &Y
EEBAKENES - —RME B
B R MAEGE —F W EETIE
SR B ATTIAE) - B M -

AR B R R A B B T R RSB 95k B
BT A RBRERBRESE  EA
AUMAERKE ZRAEREETED
TEERIE R - 3l Lt KA R E W E
HEFME  AEEEKE SRR
HERBRETS -
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17.

18.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
As at 31 March 2020, certain subsidiaries have pledged

trade receivables with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$1,560,000 (2019: HK$822,000) to secure banking
facilities granted (note 28).

REPOSSESSED ASSET

The Group obtained an asset by taking possession of
collateral held as security. The nature and carrying value
of this asset held as at 31 March are summarised as

follows:

Repossessed property REEE
— commercial property —BEME

HEHELEEEEERLA

17. ERE B R (&)
R-ZE-_ZTFE=ZA=+—H ETHE
NAIEKLKREMEA #£/581,560,000%
JL(ZZ — A% : 822,000/ 7T) HJ JE IR
BHRRIERBRRITAMENER (F
5128) o

18. IKBEE
AEERS—EREERLNEERE
E-HBER-A=-+—BBEENEEN

MEREEERRDT
2020 2019
bt St 3 —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Restated)
(seE %)
14,132 14,132
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18. REPOSSESSED ASSET (continued)

It is a property in respect of which the Group has
acquired access or control through court proceedings for
release in full or in part of the obligation of a borrower of
mortgage loan. The estimated market value of the
repossessed asset held by the Group as at 31 March
2020 was HK$16,000,000 (2019 (Restated):
HK$17,000,000) based on a valuation carried out by
Knight Frank Petty Limited, an independent professionally
qualified valuer, using market comparable approach that
reflects recent transaction prices for similar properties,
adjusted for differences in nature, location and conditions
of the property under review. Each year, the Group's
executive directors decide to appoint which external
valuer to be responsible for the external valuation of the
Group's repossessed asset. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained. The
Group's executive directors have discussions with the
valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results twice a year when the valuation is performed for

interim and annual financial reporting.
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18. HEEE (&)

BT A SR B35 B A 2 1R 7 EAS 5E FR Sk i%
HIENME - ERBREBERERA
MEMAHFRET - R_FT_FTF=A
=+—H BREABUZEESERMGHE
R HE LRI 2 RD1T A BR A AR A M5 L&
ERBEUMESOINRZERS I
RERYENME NERKINER
EHAR) ETTHEE AEEMFA
MEBEENBATHEEEAR
16,000,000 L (Z T —NF (K&
%) © 17,000,000 7T) - B F - AEE
HITEFAREZ AW —RINE-BERME
BEAEEEEEENINBMLE - BRE
ABEmSAE 22 BUERES
MRFEZEKE - REBITESHME
MEBFERP R FHBREETHE
RambERXIEEERMR -
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18. REPOSSESSED ASSET (continued) 18. HEEE (&)
Details of the Group's repossessed property and RZBEZEFRZF-—NF=HA="4—
information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 March B fEAEEEEEENABEARA
2020 and 2019 are as follows: FTEEERAEHET :

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using
R=ZA=+-BRAVEEFERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
2 BAT ERFA
T HRE BEGAE BEBAE
(F—ER) (B=ER) (B=BR) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET FHET
Recurring fair value FEUERT
measurement for: BEHE -

2020 =t =t 22

Commercial property EEDE - - 16,000 16,000

2019 (Restated) —E-NEFEEET)

Commercial property EEME - - 17,000 17,000
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RAFERN BEEE-—BAKE_E
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no RZEBBREGEEE =EREALRE
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2019 (Restated): Nil). EAFEBEAEZ(ZE-LE (KEY)) :

;) o
Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and ATRpEEEEMEMKANMGER
the key input to the valuation of repossessed asset: Mk EZHAENHRE
Valuation technique Significant unobservable input
i B £ i EXTABERAE
Commercial property Direct comparison approach method Market price per square foot

[EEZZES BERIEBOX ¥ RTISER
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19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed equity investments, BAFEED
at fair value FHRERE

The above equity investments were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were

held for trading.

At 31 March 2020, the Group’s equity investments
amounting to HK$14,119,000 (2019: HK$27,984,000)
were pledged to secure securities margin account

facilities granted to the Group (note 28).

Assuming the portfolio of the Group's equity investments
remained unchanged, the market value of the Group's
equity investments at the date of approval of these

financial statements was approximately HK$14,130,000.
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19. BERAFEEFARENRERE

2020 2019

= = —ENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET
14,119 27,984

MR EARERETDREEST  Bn
BREAFEEFABRENEREE -

RZE_ZEF=A=+—8 ' A&£@AE
214,119,000 T (ZF — 1L F -
27,984,000 ) 2 REKR A EHK
A URGBRTASEEZESHRESRE
PrtE (fizk28) o

BEAEBNREREHSERTTE
AEBRHRELERATERERUEZ
H & {E %) 14,130,000 7T °
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20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20.
Cash and bank balances Be RBITER
Time deposits E BTE K

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and twelve
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no

recent history of default.

RERREEEY
2020 2019
—BEBF —E-AEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
(Restated)
(Fe&E5)
161,698 137,809
277,113 858,448
438,811 996,257

RITFERDRIES B RITFERMRLF
FHEHE - BEHMEHMERZEHREHE
NF-—HE+_EATE RFLAKH
ZEEREHEME  WIHSHHTH
TFRMEER - |RITEEFEREREFERT
TR EE R B ET B R RIRLR
8% Z BRTT ©
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21. ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS

FHLEEFTEERQA
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21. BtFOR - HtEARRRE W

RECEIVED rE
2020 2019
= = —ENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
(Restated)
(&)
Accruals FEETFRIA 2,280 2,690
Other payables and deposits received — E b R 2 & 2 U i & 17,770 21,692
20,050 24,382

Portion classified as DERRIENE

non-current liabilities BEMEH (3,386) (3,338)
Current portion VIR R 16,664 21,044
The other payables are non-interest-bearing and are HtWEABERAB TR —RER T

normally settled on 90-day terms.

HARBE -
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22. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Equity option accumulator BREHERE
contracts REBHEALD

The equity option accumulator contracts were a series of
forward contracts for the Group to accumulate specific
units of certain securities listed on the Stock Exchange
according to the contracts at predetermined prices on
every trading day. The equity option accumulator
contracts would be terminated automatically if the closing
prices of the underlying securities on any specified
trading day during the contract periods are at or above

the predetermined knock-out prices.

These contracts were derivative financial instruments and
were measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. As at 31 March 2020, the fair values of the equity
option accumulator contracts for the Group were stated
at a credit balance of HK$391,000, based on the
valuation performed by an independent professionally
qualified valuer, and fair value losses of HK$391,000 in
respect of these contracts were recognised in the profit
or loss for the year ended 31 March 2020. As at 31
March 2019, all equity option accumulator contracts and
equity option decumulator contracts expired and fair
value gains of HK$3,184,000 in respect of these
contracts were recognised in the profit or loss for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

2. BAFEEFABREZENEH®E

f&
2020 2019
—EC-EE —E-hF
Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
EE 8& BE aE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$O000  HK$'000

TR FHET TAT TAET

= 391 -

EEREIEARARAOASAKER
BAENAESEXZBRETERRER
BEBXMETHNE TESNREEML
W—RINEHELN - MRBEBEESHESR
MEEAEAERARZENETESR
gmRNBEEREE - RIREHERER

BRSOV ERRIL -

ZAERHNRITESRIE =
E‘Z{ TE;:#E B/\ g Efﬁz

\

®

=t—R REBUSXAERMGHERR

ETHMEE  AEEREHERRER

H\HTE/—\Z’UE’U’“ﬁfETEF‘%%Hﬁ

f&
%

391,000 WERBE_T _ZTF
EH:Jr—ElJtiJ*W%;Z%é%’JETa
AR A (B (B B E391,00008 T -
RZZE-NEF=ZA=+—H FIERE
HEZRERERES Z@&HXKHH%E%F
REHRESNHELRIH  YEREBE

- NF=ZA=Z+—BLEFEARZ

EEHNEBENERATEA KR
3,184,000/8 It °
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23. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 23 EEBIEEE AR
BEEFHIHEAEREERNAFEEN2EE

during the year are as follows: mr

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

Deferred tax liabilities EEBERE
2020
“BC%F
Accelerated tax
depreciation on
property, plant
and equipment
¥ BERRE
MBI 4 B
HK$'000
THER
At 1 April 2019 RZZE-NENA—A 23,882
Deferred tax charged to the RAFENERSANK
profit or loss during the year (note 9) BT E (HE9) 4,510
Gross deferred tax liabilities R-ZZ-ZTF=A=+—H
at 31 March 2020 ZEEHRARRR 28,392
Deferred tax assets BEEHIREE
2020
ki 2.2
Provision for Decelerated Losses
impairment ~ tax depreciation available for
losses on loan on property, for offsetting

and interest plantand  against future
receivables equipment  taxable profits Total
EUERR W% BER GRS
FISHHE o R R RRERB
BERE RBHE b 1o i | At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR THEL
At 1 April 2019 RZZB-HnEMA—H
(Restated) (m=5) (277) (29) (4,363) (4,669)
Deferred tax credited to the REEERERRN
profit or loss STAZERERE
during the year (note 9) (Mizto) (142) (12) (4,011) (4,165)
Gross deferred tax assets RZE-FF=A=1—H
at 31 March 2020 LERREEEEE (419) (41) (8,374) (8,834)
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23. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

HEHELEEEEERLA

23 BEBIBEE A E (F)
BEEHBAEREEREFENZE

during the year are as follows: (continued) wr ()
Deferred tax liabilities ELEBIEAE
2019
—E-hEF
Accelerated tax
depreciation on
property, plant
and equipment
ME - WELRE
B MRBBIE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2018 RZZE-NFEOHA—A 7,935
Deferred tax charged to the RAFENERZANK
profit or loss during the year (note 9) B A (HE9) 15,947
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZZE-N&E=ZA=+—H
at 31 March 2019 ZEEHRARRE 23,882
Deferred tax assets BEEHIREE
2019
“B-NF
Provision for Decelerated Losses
impairment  tax depreciation available for
losses on loan on property, for offsetting
and interest plant and against future
receivables equipment  taxable profits Total
RUESE 9% BER AHEH
MERRE REMRER ARERH
ERER RBhE w2z B8 At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAR THETL T
At 1 April 2018 RZZE-\EMA—H
(Restated) (E25) (427) (28) (4,186) (4,641)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) REEERERREN
to the profit or loss during the year B/ (Gf A) ZEEH B
(note 9) (Restated) (W3x9) (L E5) 150 M (177) (28)
Gross deferred tax assets RZE-nE=A=1+-H
at 31 March 2019 LERHBERELR
(Restated) (%55 Q77) (29) (4,363) (4,669)
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23. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax

balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Net deferred tax liabilities RERE BB R &
recognised in the consolidated HER 2 BET IR
statement of financial position BEFHE

Net deferred tax assets RERE BB R &
recognised in the consolidated HER 2 BET IR
statement of financial position EEFHE

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$277,259,000 (2019: HK$253,444,000). The tax
losses in Hong Kong are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets of
HK$37,374,000 (2019: HK$37,455,000) have not been
recognised in respect of tax losses because these tax
losses have arisen in companies that have been loss-
making for some time and it is uncertain that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can

be utilised.
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23 BEERBEE B E (F)

HIVET S - MR EAE TEER
BAERAED FHE o AT HII e
BHs ARz ARBETHARS 2
i

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
(Restated)
(eE7))
19,558 19,519
= (306)
19,558 19,213

AEBREAELED EE B
277,259,000 T (=& — N & -
253,444,000 7T) cREBEBEE 2
EEEERARERFEESERE A
Bl 2 RIRPERB s A o AN B W R 5%
EREBEEBRRECHEELEE
37,374,000 T (ZF — N F -
37,455,000/ ) - Bz EMIEEE T
RKEEBEE—BRRKREZAR mMATE
ERBHEERRT G MIAKEZED
HEE -
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23. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued) 23 EEBIEBSE &5 (HE)

At 31 March 2020, there was no significant unrecognised RZZEZZEF=A=+—0 ' x&EZ
deferred tax liability (2019: Nil) for tax that would be MEARYEERELBNMAI M2
payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group's BBAHRERERNRERELEHBASE
subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional tax (ZZ2E—NF &) AWZSHRAERE
should such amounts be remitted. B REEYJ|BEIIHIBEE -
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the AN A [A) EL AR BRI AT AR B R 2 B A ]
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. FISHER -
24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. IR 7N
Shares iR 43
2020 2019
—E-BE —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Authorised: ERE
40,000,000,000 ordinary shares 40,000,000,000% & A% &
of HK$0.0025 each 0.0025/%8 7T 2 B 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRER
5,780,368,705 ordinary shares 5,780,368, 705/ & X H (&
of HK$0.0025 each 0.00258 L 2 T B 14,451 14,451
Share options i IR
Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the RNRRIBIRAE BIA R BRIEZF 5 EI&
share options granted under the schemes are included in ) S AR 2 S RN I IS R M A

note 25 to the financial statements. 2.50°
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4
September 2012, ordinary resolutions were passed for
the adoption of a share option scheme (the "2012 Share
Option Scheme") and the termination of the share option
scheme of the Company adopted on 23 September
2002 (the "2002 Share Option Scheme"). Outstanding
share options granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme prior to the termination shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the 2002 Share

Option Scheme.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme and the 2002 Share
Option Scheme (collectively referred to as the "Schemes")
are operated by the Company for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants

who contribute to the success of the Group's operations.

Details of the Schemes are as follows:

(a) Participants
Participants are any directors (including executive
directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors) of the Company and
employees of the Group and any advisors
(professional or otherwise), consultants, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners, joint venture business partners, promoters,
service providers of any member of the Group who
the board of directors of the Company (the "Board")
considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed or

will contribute to the Group.
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25. B IR

MRZE——FNAAMBRTZARARK
RAFAGE TRARBRDEBBUK
m—IEERESE (2T -8R
BErElD)  WRIERRARRZTZTZF
NAZ+=BEMNZEREE (=
ST _FRRESE]) - RE-_TZZ
FRRETE  NMRIEAIBRE=ZZT=
FREMRAEST BB M I R1T1E < AR
w4 B A A T ATHE

ARARE-_ZE-_FEREAE N
TZE_FERESS (RBAIZF
ZEFEZENIAASAREE
E}ﬂzﬂjf’ﬁﬁjﬁﬁkz/é”éﬁ%aﬁéﬁi%%% B3
By e (3 3R o

e
—
=

ZEFEZFHBAOT

(a) 8HEE
LEER/RARRNFAMNES (BEH
TES  ERTESRBIUIENT
EX)RAEBCZEERARAE
R ([EFQ)REBRHMEBER
ARG ERAEEELEMZ
EHEEFEJ(EEH%%:'?}%) % i

DiHE - RBR - fHER R
BA BP EBBH 62%EH
B BFRARKEEERKER
Az RIS IER
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Details of the Schemes are as follows (continued):

(b) Subscription price

©

The subscription price shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion but in any event

shall not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares of HK$0.0025
each of the Company (the "Shares") as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant of an
option (the "Date of Grant") which must be a

business day;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days

immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Schemes and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not, in the absence
of shareholders' approval, in aggregate exceed 10%
in nominal amount of the aggregate of Shares in
issue on the adoption date of the Schemes (the
"Scheme Mandate Limit"). Options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Schemes and (as
the case may be) such other share option schemes
of the Company will not be counted for the purpose

of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

HEHELEEEEERLA

25. B IR AT B ()
ZEEZHBOT (B)

(b)

©

REE
%f%ﬁ%%@?A HEE

CEEB A A BERTYEIR
$Wﬁ%%i

() A2RAEFKRMEIEO0.00258 T
Z Bt (TR 17 1) 7£ B8 AR #E 5%
HEH(EERAE]) (BER
EER) W TE (DA AT
HB|ERMEERE)

(i) BOHEZRZERH BB A E
EEANFHRTE ABR
FTEBRAEERE) &

(i) B mEE -

B A7 £ PR

REBERBLER - IR A REZ
58I RO B AR H At BB AR A AT
ERHMBRETAITERETH
B ER - BT SBERNZ SR
FRMA D BITHRDEELR
10% ([#H 81X ERE]) - BEST
SIRERER - REZFAE K (R
BEBAME) ARAEBEME
Pt At 810 IR E SR EY B B
TErE -
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Details of the Schemes are as follows (continued):

(d)

(e)

®

Maximum number of options granted to
each participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
grantee under the Schemes (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not (when aggregated with any Shares
subject to options granted during such period under
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
other than those options granted pursuant to specific
approval by the shareholders in a general meeting)
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue for the time being

(the "Individual Limit").

Period of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in a period notified by
the Board to each grantee at the time of making an
offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years from
the Date of Grant.

Remaining life of the Schemes

The 2002 Share Option Scheme terminated on 4
September 2012. No further options shall thereafter
be offered under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
but the options which had been granted during its
life shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue and in all other
respects the provisions of the 2002 Share Option

Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on its
adoption date, unless otherwise cancelled or

amended.

HFHELEEEEETRAA
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25. IR 8 (])

AT

(d)

(e

®

BT ()
BESHEERBREZLR

EERBEAEEM+ZEARIREZ
SEERNERE (BEETRE
MARITEHBIRE) T AITREF
BT RAGEITHRGD LR - 15 (R
A B AR AR B AR A Bl E ] K
BRRE SR ERER AT
AR M & - TEEREBEREER
RAG FRHAMAEMKENZERE
BetE) BB E R BTG A%
(TMELABREE]L) o

BREZITED
BRENEEMRBRERES
SHEEARAZHEAITE - I

AR H SR T FRREH -

Z L et 8l A MY
TR _FRBEEMFIER=F

RE_TT_FHEREFIERE
HE B - ERFEB R A
&ﬁZ%h%@FE%ﬁ%%%%
BERERAITIIE H_FFT_F
%h%%%ZMX&%Eﬁf 77 E
MDAEET BB RAER -

H

—E - FERETEEAEMAR
HRSTTHFAFM  RE1TiHK
L f RS E R o
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 2

Details of the Schemes are as follows (continued):

(g) Acceptance of options
The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 and 30 days for the 2012 Share
Option Scheme and the 2002 Share Option
Scheme, respectively, from the Date of Grant, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total

by the Grantee.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders' meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the

Schemes during the year:

5. B IR#ESHE (&)

ZEFEZFHBOT (8)

(g EXBRHE
mEL A REF T NAR(Z
T-_FBREFE) R=1TR (=
TE_FRBEASE) A ARA
BBXNEHXIEBETZRBARE
BRI AEEE TREEREZED -

BEEYEETESAEAEDREEXK
EERRAGREZER -

RAFEEA - RIBZFETEIM A RITE
ZEBREFEBET

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of

exercise price  share options  exercise price  share options

¥
TEE

HK$ per share
BRET

At beginning of year ~ REM R
and 31 March —B=+—H 0.1902

I
BREHE 1T6E1E HRESE
‘000  HKS$ per share ‘000
T FRET +

386,640 0.1902 386,640
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The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

2020
—EC2F
Number of share options
BREHAR
‘000
:F

252,040

134,600

Exercise price*
TREE*
HK$ per share
BRAET

0.2100

0.1532

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2020
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25. BRI EI (&)

R|BEHR - AARITEZBREZITE
EBRITERET

Exercise period

1715

21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021
—f-——-%—-A=t—-HE
—_E-_—-H—HA=-+H
03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
—E-=HfhAA=HZE
—E-=FhA=H

2019
—ZE-NF
Number of share options
BRREHE
‘000
:F

252,040

134,600

Exercise price*
TT{EE*
HK$ per share
BRAT

0.2100

0.1532

Exercise period

1T1E

21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021
—F-—%—-A=-+—HE
—E-—F—HA=+H
03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-=ZFfNB=ZHE
—E-_=FhAZ-H

There is no vesting period for the outstanding share

options granted to employees and directors.

* The exercise price of the share options is subject to

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company's share capital.

BTRENMESMm®ARITEZBEREL
BEEY-

* O MRAEHBRAKRET HERRQF
BARFEERMBUES BRENT
EEFTZETHE -
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25.

26.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
386,640,000 share options outstanding under the Schemes.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in
the issue of 386,640,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$967,000 and
share premium of HK$95,598,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 386,640,000 share options outstanding
under the Schemes, which represented approximately

6.7% of the Company's shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’'s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on pages 88 and 89 of the financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group arose from:

(i) the Group’s reorganisation on 13 June 1990,
representing the excess of the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued under the Group's
reorganisation, and the nominal value of the shares
and share premium of the former holding company

acquired by the Group; and

(i) a transfer from the share premium account pursuant

to the capital restructuring on 2 June 1999.

HEHELEEEEERLA

25.

26.

BRESTE (E)

RBER  REZZE - ARFAE
386,640,000 & IX # M AR 178 - R
REIBRAERAEBET  BEITEEARIT
ErHERERBRETEINERDF
386,640,000/% & 8 fx - LA K #H MR AR
967,000/ 7T M i 17 4 (895,598,000
TTORMBRFEITRZ) ©

R EARTBEFRRZB  BIEZEE
2 - KN FA386,640,00010 B A% HE i&
RITE - WARBEBEBHTROHY
6.7% °

i th
AEEZRERBELRRAFEBESF
EZREEINYHEHRRFBNEIA
ZEAEREHHKRED -

AEBEZEBRHBRKE :

() AXEER-ANZEFAAT=BE
TZBH  RARARBEAKREE
APTEEITI O EE R R AR B AT
B 2 AR R IR 47 B B AR )i
BEMZEL R

(i) REBE-NANANFRNAZBETZR
AEAMmMBERMEERPREL -
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27.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

RESERVES (continued)
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as

amended), the contributed surplus of the Group is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances

prescribed by section 54 thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payments in note 2.5 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related options

expire or be forfeited.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
outstanding guarantees of HK$190,000,000 (2019:
HK$190,000,000) given to banks to secure general credit

facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's banking facilities and securities
margin account facilities, which are secured by the assets
of the Group, are included in notes 12, 13, 17 and 19 to

the financial statements.

HFHELEEEEETRAA
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27.

28.

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

e (&)
BIEBREECI981FE R ADE)(KIBET) -
EZEBESAMEFT 2 ETEAT - &
SECEHMRATDIRTRE -

BEEFRGEACRELEFTRZE
Bz R FEE FBERYBRERME
25A B0 A B HE Y 5K 2 & R BUR
— e - ERRBRERTEE 8
ARESSeERERMEER kWA
A S B B A SO2 U B - BB B R EE
ERERERGMN -

RAREE
RBEHR - RARIBTFRITZRER
PEREE/5190,000,0008 7T (ZE— L4 -
190,000,000/ 7T) * fE R A & B & T
BARIMER —REEME2EM -

EEER

ERAASBERITHRERIFRISEP
ME(BUAAREBEEER 2589
BB B TS WMERMIFE12 - 13~ 17K%19 °
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_7_

29. COMMITMENTS

29.

(a) The Group had the following capital commitments

as at the end of the reporting period.

Contracted, but not provided for,

leasehold improvements

EBELERES
ZHEMERE

(b) Operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019

The Group leased certain of its offices and car parking

spaces under operating lease arrangements, with

leases negotiated for terms ranging from two to three

years.

At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases falling due as follows:

Within one year
In the second to fifth years,

inclusive

%
o
[ 4
S

ERF
E™F)

2

(B

I

ﬁi‘ﬂ
(a) RIRE
R ©

EHR  AKREFELATER

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FiETT

- 1,376

by RZE—NF=ZA=+—HHNKEE
ﬁ%%%

AEBERBCEHETYRERS
THAERAEN - MAR .2 HE
NFERE=F o
—NWE=A=+—8 4%
l@ﬁ$ﬂ@%m %%2%?%
FHAX 2 RRKEHE S RIALE

BT
2019
—NF
HK$'000
FABT

184

48

232
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial

statements, the Group had the following material

transactions with related parties during the year:

(a) Related party transactions in connection with the

Group's operations:

Management fee paid to a X ARTRZ
related company BIEE

Salary paid to Mr. Ng (Huang) S &EMREILE 2
Cheow Leng e

Salary paid to Mr. Wilson Ng

Notes:

)

(i)

(iii)

The management fee was charged based on an
agreement entered into between the Group and a
related company, Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
("Huang & Co"), for administrative services provided
at a monthly rate of approximately HK$8,535 (2019:
HK$8,655).

The salary was paid to Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng,
who is the settlor and the trustee of a discretionary
trust which holds the entire interest in Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding company of the

Company.

The salary was paid to Mr. Wilson Ng, who is one of
the discretionary beneficiaries of a discretionary trust
which holds the entire interest in Huang Group (BVI)
Limited, the ultimate holding company of the

Company.

XNEEREEZFHE

HFHELEEEEETRAA
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30. BT R 5
BRAMBHRELMIBHBEREN R
AEEN AEBEBHFZEARS
JUNNE

() EAKEZLEERM BB IS

2020 2019

bt St 3 —E-NF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

=g FHET FHET

(Restated)

(&RE7)

() 102 104

(i) 122 122

(iii) 991 988
B3t

() EREBRAEEE—[DRBAQA
Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
(lHuang & Col) st PR 477 BUR
BB RE KNRFAERE
#)8,5358 7L (ZZF — /L% : 8,655

BT e

(i) HFLDHXNTEBBEE HRB
—(A2EERZIRTARETEA
MZEEETHALAR R RRE
& A B]Huang Group (BVI) Limited
ZEEKE -

(iy FLDINTEERKREE HRB
—fExRERzET Uz ER
#aA MZEEEXFAELARF
B HAERR A AHuang Group (BVI)
Limitedz 2 &R % -
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Due to group companies and related companies:

0]

(iD)

The Group had an outstanding balance due to
the intermediate holding company of
HK$40,000,000 (2019 (Restated):
HK$140,000,000) as at the end of the
reporting period. This balance is unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

In the prior year, the Group had outstanding
balances due to the immediate holding
company and related companies of
HK$40,000,000 and HK$20,004,000
respectively. The balances were unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

(c) Commitments with related parties

On

1 April 2013, a subsidiary of the Group entered

into a service agreement with three-month

termination notice with Huang & Co, a related

company of the Company for the provision of

administrative services to the Group. The

management fee paid to Huang & Co for the year is

disclosed in note 30(a)(i) to the financial
statements. As at 31 March 2020, the Group had a

total future minimum management fee payable to

Huang & Co amounting to approximately HK$24,000
(2019: HK$26,000).

HEHELEEEEERLA

30. BB A X 57 (&)
(b) FEfTEMED A RBHA KA -

©

() R|EBAR - AEEENHHE
IR A R RIE 2 KR E 48
/40,000,000 7T (ZF— N1
F (&£ E3) - 140,000,000
L) c BT EER 2
BRARERERER-

(i) REFERN AEEENERE
2 NI ) NI S
KRG 4 82 9 Bl /40,000,000
75 7T 120,004,000 7T © B 4
REATIEIER RERARE

B R Bk 5 0 A
RZTE—=FWA—H A&E—
BT 8 A A BA AN 2 B — B BE B 2 A
Huang & Corl L RIS ik - W H
BARNEBIRMITHRY - BRALK
IERAMEA=EA RAFEANL
it FHuang & Co#) & I & 1E B 75
M E30@OAER - RZT =
TE=ZA=+—8 KAEHER
Huang & Cofy R R RIXE R B 4250
424,000 T (Z & — L& -
26,000/ 7T) ©
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

Q)

Loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder

of the Group's subsidiary:

Loan advanced from a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary ~ BUR# S 2
Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement entered into
between the Group and New Century Cruise Line
International Limited (“New Century Cruise Line"), a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, the
shareholder shall not demand repayment of this
loan unless a resolution in writing signed by all
shareholders of the subsidiary for the demand of
repayment has been duly passed at a general
meeting. The loan is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. New Century Cruise Line is a

fellow subsidiary of the Company.

The compensation of key management personnel of
the Company has been disclosed in note 8(a) to the

financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a) to

(d) above also constitute connected transactions or

continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

BA TSR R P aE

31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

30. AL X5 (&)

(d)

REBE M B AR Z IR

52
=N

RE BB R R 2 FEER B BUR 2
ZER:

2020 2019

. —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT
71,823 131,823

rg v LRt [ -5 N e 2
f% & BNew Century Cruise Line
International Limited ([ New Century
Cruise Linel) 5] 2 BRE % - B
FZMBARNEEBRREZENX
BRZEBRBZRERREREG L
EREB BURRITSGEREER
ZEER - ZERR/EER 28
N 7A€ 2 KB & - New Century
Cruise LineRARRAGZRZEHER
gl o

ARREBEEAB ZHMERNE
KM T8 (a) W EE -

bit(@)E(d)BZ BT X5 TEK L

MARMETOAZEMRE 2BEXH N

=

SEBERS -
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

(i) During the year, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of HK$188,000 and HK$188,000,

respectively, in respect of lease arrangements

for properties (2019: Nil).

(i) During the year, the Group had non-cash
additions to property, plant and equipment of
HK$3,510,000, which utilised the prepayments

paid in prior year (2019: Nil).

(i) In prior year, ETC, one of the subsidiaries now
comprising the Group declared an interim
dividend of HK$200,000,000 to the then
shareholders of ETC (note 10). The interim
dividend was payable to the immediate holding
company, the intermediate holding company
and a related company of HK$40,000,000,
HK$140,000,000 and HK$20,000,000

respectively as at 31 March 2019.

3. FEREREBRHE

(@ TEHFREXRF

0]

(iD)

(iii)

RAFERN  NEERMER
EXHMERERAREER
HEABEIRIAFRSEM
188,000/ T }2188,000/% 7T
—E-NF:E)

RAFERN  AEBHYE -
WERZEBIIFERSIEM
3,510,000 7T (=T — L5 :
&) HAREFERAIMNH
B FRIE -

REF BAEKAEEHNEHF
—XMBARSEREIRSP
Hi§% £.200,000,0007% 7T T 5
ERERBRE (FFE10) °
R-ZZT—NAF=A=+—8"
FEREEERAR - P EER
AR REB DB F RS
2 Bl /40,000,000 7T
140,000,000% T &
20,000,000/ JT °
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

3. mEBREREKME (F)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) EREEBHELENAESY
activities

2020

—g-24F

—_—=

Loan
advanced
from a
non-controlling ~ Duetothe  Due to the
shareholder of ~ immediate  intermediate Due to
Lease  the Group's holding holding related
liabilities  subsidiary company company  companies Total
r5E
MEARZ ENES FERHE e
FERRR BRAT ERAR BEAR
HEEE BHZEX #E #E #E aif
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR TR TRR TR

At 31 March 2019
(Restated)

ffect of adoption of
HKFRS 16

At 1 April 2019
(Restated)

Changes from financing
cash flows

New leases

Interest expense

Interest paid dlassified as
operating cash flows

Decrease in an amount
due to a related
company classified as
operating cash flows

At 31 March 2020

RZE-n%E
ZR=+-A(&E7))
RABARBREES
ZleRny e

RZE-NFRA-R
(£&3)
BERSREES
itk
HERX
XHME (DRA
BERERE)
ERERAT
RELAD
(P8R

[T A B
BEReRE)

- 131823 40000 140,000 20004 331827
140 - - - - 140
140 131823 40000 140,000 20004 331967
(107)  (60,000)  (40,000)  (100,000)  (20,000)  (220,107)
188 - - - - 188
5 - - - - 5
() - - - - ()
- - - - () ()

21 71,823 . 40,000 - 1120
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

HEHELEEEEERLA

GRERERERWE (&)

(b) RREEHELENRELSY

activities (continued) (&)
2019
—E-NF
(Restated)
(re=51)
Loan
advanced
from a
non-controlling ~~ Duetothe  Due to the
Bank shareholderof ~ immediate  intermediate Due to
and other  the Group's holding holding related
borrowings subsidiary company company  companies Toal
r%
HERAZ ENER R P Ef
RTR FERRR BR AT B AT (1N
EfpfER  BRZEX B B B CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThERL TARL ThERL TAL ThERL TEL
At 1 April 2018 RZZ-N\FMA-A 23,4317 171,823 = = 9 195,269
Changes from financing ~ BEREREESE
cash flows igkd (22,638) (40,000 - - - (62,638)
Interim dividend declared AR A EAF
by the Company's BERZ
subsidiary HERS
(note 31(a)(ii)) (W31 (a) i) - - 40,000 140,000 20,000 200,000
Decrease in an amount ~ JET R 22 A]
due to a related RBZHSD
company dassifiedas (5% A
operating cash flows BERERE) = = - - (5) (5)
Foreign exchange HNEZH
movement (799) - - - - (799)
At 31 March 2019 R-B-0E
=R=1-H = 131,823 40,000 140,000 20,004 331,827
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32. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 32. HEHE AT
2019
—T-NF
Note HK$'000
Bt 5 FHET
Net assets disposed of: HENEEFHE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MRE 12 12,052
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHES 15
12,067
Exchange fluctuation reserve B 5, R 7 s 1,441
13,508
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & W B QA Al 3,652
17,160
Satisfied by: SRR
Cash R 17,160
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the disposal is HHEEEMNIBESRESNET ¢
as follows:
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration ReRE 17,160
Cash and bank balances disposed of HEMIRE RIRTTHER (15)
Net cash inflow of cash and cash equivalents R4 RIRE ZEBY R A FHE 17,145
The aggregate consideration of US$2,200,000 (equivalent #“ R E2,200,000% T (BFR
to HK$17,160,000) included the assumption of a 17,160,000 1) B HE A ER R E XK
shareholder’s loan of S$1,938,000 (approximately 1,938,0003% 7T (4711,163,000/8 7T) °

HK$11,163,000).
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 3. B BERFEREZNITGE

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EMEB AT
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material BERFEEREZNAEENERFMN
non-controlling interests are set out as below: HIEFHY T -
2020 2019
—BRCRHF —E-NF
(Restated)
(&)
Percentage of equity interest held FEREREEN
by non-controlling interests: BREAEZBDL :
ETC Finance Limited* SRR UBHER A E)* 40 40
Queenston Maritime Limited 40 40
Kingston Maritime Limited 40 40
Jackston Maritime Limited* - -
New Century Maritime Limited 40 40
Century Rich Investments Limited 40 40

*

—NFENR=+—BHE
—NFAR=TEKE

* Disposed of on 31 August 2018
* Acquired on 30 September 2019

—-=
— =
=z
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 3. EBERFEREZNTGE

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) EME AT (&)
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material BERNEEREZNAEENE QRN
non-controlling interests are set out as below: (continued) FBEEHNMT - (8)
2020 2019
—ERCERHF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT THET
(Restated)
(#&&E75)
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to PEFHFERERN
non-controlling interests: TEERRN(BB)
ETC Finance Limited RV EBHR QA 17,649 19,069
Queenston Maritime Limited 4,960 9,873
Kingston Maritime Limited 12,311 13,129
Jackston Maritime Limited - (1,143)
New Century Maritime Limited (669) 275
Century Rich Investments Limited (1,077) (112)
Dividends declared/paid to REFERER
non-controlling interests XA FIHER
during the year: ERRE
ETC Finance Limited ZIRFTBEBER LA = 80,000
New Century Maritime Limited - 40,000
Accumulated balances of non-controlling ~ R¥#%& B HAEER
interests at the reporting dates: HEN RS
ETC Finance Limited ZRFF B BHR QA 340,947 320,059
Queenston Maritime Limited 16,047 12,175
Kingston Maritime Limited 26,764 18,928
New Century Maritime Limited 1,649 4,895
Century Rich Investments Limited 13,826 14,903
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial

information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts are

3. AREAKERESZNNOE

BB R (&)

TRERLAMBRARANTBHESR
£t o BT ER & R REHEA 2 B fE 4 85 AT

disclosed before any inter-company eliminations: HE R
2020
S 553
ETC  Queenston Kingston New Century Century Rich
Finance Maritime Maritime Maritime  Investments
Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited
SRRHB
BRAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEn TEx TiEn TER
Revenue and other income WA RE A IA 73,291 19,995 44,180 738 (2,674)
Total expenses T (26,020) (7,595) (13,401) (8,776) (19)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERTF/ (B8) 47,271 12,400 30,779 (8,038) (2,693)
Total comprehensive income/ AEEZENS/

(loss) for the year (BR) 8% 47,271 9,682 19,592 (8,038) (2,693)
Current assets mEEE 795,012 15,417 7,282 195,887 85,267
Non-current assets ERBEE 155,189 28,080 171,600 78 -
Current liabilities mEAR (102,647) (3378)  (111,970)  (191,766) (50,702)
Non-current liability ErRgas (136) - - - -
Net cash flows from/ L2Eg

(used in) operating %/ (FrF)

activities ZHEEREFHE 182,037 6,977 (174) 139,413 (118,159)
Net cash flows used in BREEHMA

investing activities ZEeREFE - (6,981) - - -
Net cash flows used in BEEDHMA

financing activities ZEEREFE (100,678) - - (150,000) -
Net increase/(decrease) RehREZEY

in cash and cash ZEm/ (B)

equivalents et 81,359 (4) (174) (10,587)  (118,159)
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts are
disclosed before any inter-company eliminations:

(continued)

2019
—T-NF
(Restated)
(&)

B 38R R P 5
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3. EBERFEREZNTGE

BB AR (&)
TRERLEMBRANAEHEER
B TR & R EED RRY A
MEeRE (8

ETC  Queenston Kingston Jackston  New Century  Century Rich
Finance Maritime Maritime Maritime Maritime  Investments
Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited
RN
BRAT
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET FAT FAT FAT FAT TAT
Revenue and other income WARE KA 74,682 29516 45421 4,074 4,032 3,587
Total expenses ks (27,010) (4834)  (12,599) (6,932) (3,344) (3,866)
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERF/(BB) 47672 24,682 32,822 (2,858) 688 (279)
Total comprehensive income/ A E2E Rz,

(loss) for the year (BB BE 47,672 25,828 40,252 (2,858) 688 (279)
Current assets MEEE 710,247 6,296 7 - 347976 186,765
Non-current assets ERBEE 292,901 30420 202,800 - 78 -
Current liabilities iR (203,001) (6279)  (155,487) - (335817)  (149,507)
Net cash flows from/ L2EE

(used in) operating 5/ (FF)

activities LREREFE 12,816 28,851 46,159 17,433 173,614 (59,645)
Net cash flows from/ REED

(used in) investing 5/ (FrR)

activities LREREFE (386) - - - 17,160 -
Net cash flows used in BETHAA

financing activities ZREREFE - (29900)  (47,840)  (17,940)  (200,000) (697)
Net increase/(decrease) Be kB2 EEY

in cash and cash ZIEm/ (RP)

equivalents ek 12,430 (1,049) (1,681) (507) (9,226)  (60,342)
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34 RERE s Z2EMT
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEHR SReRIAZEE SR
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period N
are as follows:
2020
—E-%F
Financial assets
TREE
Financial asset
Financial Financial at fair value
assets at fair assets at through other
value through amortised  comprehensive
profit or loss cost income Total
RAYERE DB#ERER  RATEERA
st AR H=L:) A2 E
tHEE THEE HEmEE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TER TER TERL
Equity investment designated BT AR ATEBEA
at fair value through other B2 AN
comprehensive income iERE - - 1,513 1513
Loan and interest receivables  EWEZ RFIE - 686,782 - 686,782
Trade receivables EWESER - 116,538 - 116,538
Deposits and other receivables &4 & £ e Ui iR 51
(note 15) (W3E15) - 3,923 - 3,923
Equity investments at fair value %2 FEEFT A
through profit or loss BRORERE 14,119 - - 14,119
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeEEN - 438811 - 438811
14,119 1,246,054 1,513 1,261,686




(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows: (continued)

2020
—E-EHF
Financial liabilities

EWas

Accruals

Other payables and
deposits received (note 21)

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Amount due to the intermediate
holding company

Loan advanced from a
non-controlling shareholder of
the Group's subsidiary

Lease liabilities

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S E & B B R 2 A

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

EHER
R &R
elme (1)
BRFEEA
BENEBAR
FEffh R 7]
wA
AEBEMBELARZ
FEERRR
B ZER
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31 March 2020
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4. REHE sz I A (E)

RBEHRR SEEMIAZKRESHE

W (&)

Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities at
value through amortised

profit or loss cost Total
BAYERE B A
FTABHEN R

SRERE SRERE g

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Thn TET TER

- 2,054 2,054

- 17,770 17,770

391 - 391

- 40,000 40,000

- 71,823 71,823

- 221 221

391 131,868 132,259
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows: (continued)

2019
—E-NF
Financial assets

TREE

Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Loan and interest receivables

Trade receivables

Deposits and other receivables
(note 15)

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents

BEBRATEEFA
Ht2EkEN
TR
FEREFRRF S
ERESHER
BeREMERER
(MizE15)
BATEEFA
BEnRELRE
BERELSEN

HEHELEEEEERLA

34 REHE sz I A (E)

RBERR SEEMITAZKRESHE

wmr ()
Financial asset
Financial Financial at fair value
assets at fair assets at through other
value through amortised comprehensive
profit or loss cost income Total
BATEE DEERE  BRTEEHA
SHABRES EH B2 E e
THEE THEE HWEREE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR THER THT
(Restated)
(E31)
- - 1,552 1,552
- 823,155 - 823,155
- 58,290 - 58,290
= 4,712 = 4712
27,984 = = 27,984
= 996,257 = 996,257
27,984 1,882,414 1,552 1,911,950
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows: (continued)

2019
—E-NF
Financial liabilities

THER
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4. ZERE S 2B T A (&)

RBEHRR SEEMIAZKRESHE
(&)

Financial

liabilities at

amortised

cost

LA 8 85 BX A<

FFER

TRIBE

HK$'000

FHET

(Restated)

(seE= 7))

Accruals FEst I 2,574
Other payables and deposits received HMEMEBRERREWZS

(note 21) (BFEE21) 21,692

Amount due to the immediate JE BB A
holding company A 40,000
Amount due to the intermediate JE& < R AR A A

holding company FKIE 140,000

Amount due to related companies FE ST FA B A R RRIE 20,004
Loan advanced from a non-controlling REEMHBAF 2 FEZER

shareholder of the Group's subsidiary fRE| AT 2 131,823

356,093
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are

35.

SRIANAFEERAFEE
EERX
REESBEEAFTEESERIEIN
rEESRTIANEESBERATER
wmr

as follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
EEEHE AVEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
“B-RF —ToNF  ZB-®F —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET TER FHET
(Restated) (Restated)
(I E5) (& E=5)
Financial assets tREE
Equity investments at fair value BRFEETA
through profit or loss BRAOKRERE 14,119 27,984 14,119 27,984
Equity investment designated BERERTEEFA
at fair value through other Hi 2K
comprehensive income RiERE 1,513 1,552 1,513 1,552
Loan and interest receivables ERETRME 686,782 823,155 685,549 819,757
702,414 852,691 701,181 849,293
Financial liabilities tREE
Financial liabilities at fair value BRFEETA
through profit or loss BRNemEE 391 - 391 -

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, amounts due to the immediate holding
company, the intermediate holding company and related
companies, a loan advanced from a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary, lease liabilities and
the non-current deposits received approximate to their
carrying amounts and accordingly no disclosure of the fair
values of these items is presented.

EEEDENE RELREFEY -
BWE SRR BEERMNKE ZE
REMEREFNEHEE  BRER
A R AR BT RAN SR EAE &
NEEERARFR ENPEERA
A RIE - PR RARE A B SRIE - A EE
BRRZHFERBRBMN2ER HE
BERLFERBERIZEH R FEEKR
HERERESEAE B8R
ZEBBNRFEERE -
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group’s management is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting
date, the Group’s management analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the
major inputs applied in the valuation. Independent
professional valuers are engaged for the valuation as
appropriate. The valuation is reviewed and approved by
the Group's management. The valuation process and
results are discussed with the audit committee twice a
year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices. The fair values of equity option
accumulator contracts are measured using a valuation
technique based on assumptions that are supported by
observable market prices or rates. The fair value of the
unlisted equity investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income, has been
estimated using a market-based valuation technique
based on assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires
the directors to determine comparable public companies
(peers) based on industry, size, leverage and strategy,
and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such as
enterprise value to earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation (“EV/EBITDA") multiple, for
each comparable company identified. The multiple is
calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the
comparable company by an earnings measure. The
trading multiple is then discounted for considerations
such as liquidity and size differences between the
comparable companies based on company-specific facts
and circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to
the corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted
equity investments to measure the fair value. The
directors believe that the estimated fair values resulting
from the valuation technique, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which are recorded in
other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that
they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period.
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5. cEMITEAENAFEERAFEE

EHERX (&)

AEBEEEREETERITARTE
EfECHRREEF REHRSAH
AEEEREGOMeM T ABEZE
PYEEHEMAZEREAME - B
EXHEMTISEEER2EMGEE -/
ERAKEEEEEMRILE - HESR
EMEREBFMARNTHREFHH

BEREEZZBGM® °

EMEELRBENATEERRESR
RPFTZENEMXZPRBETANSE
B AERAFBEREE - THHER
SR JIRAEE AFEE -

EHRBRENRAFERBATSRER
At -REZRBERBHEAHONAFE
ERBERNEANBEMSERALES
FHOBRNEERTNTE - BESEA
FEEAREMEER I LT IRE
BRENRFEERBERLEERTHER
MIZERILEZFHNBEROATER
AR EEXMET - HEERKESR
BITE - RE - ERREERE A L]
RBAE (FFEE) - W& FTHE 5
ALBRARFERENERER - I
TCEEEHBRNE  HE - TEREH
AIEM([EXEEHRME - HE W
ENEERAN]) B8 - ZE8IRA T
RAmWhEEERA—ERANRKE
B -RARBREBELATDABNEENBR -
ZEALBARZERBMN R AR
ERERNZHURXZEHELITE - T#
BHREEANIFELMERERENERER
MUFTEATEE -EFHE [HER
MEENGEF A FEE(RELENE
EHMBRRAERA) REBRAFEEES
(RensgnrEtrmban) B
MESRBEMRELEZEE -
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income, management
has estimated the potential effect of using reasonably
possible alternatives as inputs to the valuation model.

The fair value of loan and interest receivables are
estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for loans with similar terms,
credit risk and maturities.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to
the valuation of financial instruments together with a
quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 March 2020 and

HEHELEEEEERLA

5. cEMITEAENAFEERAFEE

BEER (&)
BBEAFEEFAEMEMEE/IE
EhkERENATEER EEEDL
HEtAE RN ERIER AERER
AMHABENBELE -

FEU E R R A B AT EEAGERR
RIREImEE M B AT A ARAE R
EE R &2 A B E R R E
fhat e

MTAR_ZE_FFR_F-NF=A
=t+—HE@EeRMIAKENEARTH
BERa NEBEUNEEHREDN

2019:
Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input Range
fEERM EXFUERHAE §E
Unlisted equity Valuation Median of EV/EBITDA 2020:
investments multiples multiple of peers 2.11t0 60.17
FITRERE WHERE REELEEEERAE . —T-TF:
BB EREHEAZ 2.11%60.17
ki Goksive 2019:
0.48 t0 7.73
—NE:
0.48%7.73
Discount for lack of 2020:
marketability 30%
Bz %R AT —ToTE:
30%
2019:
30%
= JLE
30%

The discount for lack of marketability represents the

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

AVEEHBAENSRE

5% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HK$56,000 (2019: HK$60,000)

UL,/ RSN BB ATER
i M/ 56,0008 (ZT—NEF
60,000/ 7T)

5% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HK$109,000 (2019: HK$113,000)

FANE I,/ B 50e ERA T EE
WD,/ M109,0008 7T (ZE—NEF:
113,000/ L)

nﬁ?&iﬁ%iﬁt&%ﬁ%ﬂ#ﬁﬁﬁﬁr’éiﬁ

amounts of premiums and discounts determined by the SHEEERRECEBREEZENEE
Group that market participants would take into account &Tﬁ%u%ﬁ o

when pricing the investments.
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 5. 2R TEMNLATEEBERAFEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) EHERX (&)
Fair value hierarchy NEEEERX
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRERAEBRER I AN FEER
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments: BER:
Assets measured at fair value: B FIEEZHEE -

Fair value measurement using
DY EETERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ER BAT EARA
hiEHRE 3 DN 23 DN
(B-BR) (B=ER) (B=ER) CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT FHET FHET
As at 31 March 2020 R-B-2F=A=t-H
Equity investments at fair value & A FEE:A
through profit or loss BRNRERE 14,119 = - 14,119
Fquity investment designated at 3§ & AR A FEE A
fair value through other Hi 2 EHERH
comprehensive income BERE - - 1,513 1513
14,119 - 1,513 15,632
As at 31 March 2019 R-ZE-NF=A=t—H
Equity investments at fair value XA FBEA
through profit or loss BarRELE 27,984 - - 27,984
Equity investment designated at 8 AR AFEEF A
fair value through other Hit 2 E KR
comprehensive income MR & - - 1,552 1,552

27,984 = 1,552 29,536
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The movements in fair value measurement within Level 3

during the year are as follows:

Equity investment at fair value through 27

other comprehensive income:

At 1 April s

Total fair value losses recognised in res

other comprehensive income

At 31 March R=A=+—H

35. e MITANAFEERDVE
EEX (&)
AFERERER (&)
RAFER  F=BANATEEE
MEEHOT

1@1@4&2 SR AR E ¢

L fth 2 T 5 ) R R

2020 2019

=5 —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

1,552 2,005

NFEEBERRE (39) (453)
1,513 1,552
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 5. 2R TEMNLATEEBERAFEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BB xR (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEERX(E)
Liabilities measured at fair value: B FIEETENEE -

Fair value measurement using

AVEEHERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BB EARA ED N
TERE BEBAE BREBAE
(B-BR) (BZBR) ($ZEBR it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHT FHET
As at 31 March 2020 R-ZZ-2£=f=+-H
Financial liabilities at fair value BATEEFABEN
through profit or loss cRAE - 391 - 391
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured RZE-—NAF=A=+—0 x&EIL
at fair value through profit or loss as at 31 March 2019. BAEMRAFEESABENTHES -
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RAFEERN cREENSRBEDH
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no BEFE—BANRE B R ZEE R
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets BEE=-"ERXBASIBHATEENES

and financial liabilities (2019: Nil). (ZZE—hF  #|) -
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 5. 2MITAENAFEERATEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BEER (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEERBX (&)
Assets for which fair values are disclosed: RELFEENEE :

Fair value measurement using

AFEEHERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BB EXT EXFA
TERE BEHAE BEHAE
(5—FER) (BZBR) (B=ER) G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT TER TET
As at 31 March 2020 R-Z-25=R=+-H
Loan and interest receivables EWEZ K HE - - 685,549 685,549
As at 31 March 2019 RZZ-NE=A=+—H
(Restated) (fEE35)

Loan and interest receivables EWEZRFE - - 819,757 819,757
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash
and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade receivables, loan and interest
receivables and other payables, which arise directly from

its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The Board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these

risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. Most of the Group's revenue and costs were
denominated in Singapore dollars and Hong Kong dollars.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management closely monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the Singapore dollar exchange rate, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit after
tax and retained profits (due to changes in the fair value

of monetary assets and liabilities).
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36. BEREERBERBE

AEBZIESHIABKEESNEH
TR MESRMIAZTIEZBENTIA/R
SEEERE AKEASEAEMER
EF&E%'1§IJQDF‘EHQ%3%EE%K‘E§W
= &%UE&EEWJJEHEE CHEER
MHEEREE -

K’Eliwﬁlﬂﬁi,ZIgﬂ e A% ) R
o HNERR - EERR  RBES
B NAEERRR EFEERMILG

%EIEEZ%ELEﬂZBZﬁ PR IR o

S BE /R B

AEBEHRHEIZFERERR - ZERRT)
ARKREEMABLNRERAINZE
WETESMEL - AEBZKEH I
ARKARTIAF MR TR BT RERE
i o £ [ B AT I 8 HME 3P R

M- EEEETYERINERE - I #
REBEHEZEHPEAINERR

TEETRBEHREMEHRITT
o M N TE R A 4 H IR A EIRE)
ZIERT - ANEE R &N KRB
MEAEBEERABBEATEBRLHRE
B) HEBHERE -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

2020

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens
against the Singapore dollar
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens

against the Singapore dollar

2019 (Restated)

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens
against the Singapore dollar
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens

against the Singapore dollar

Credit risk

Sz

& TT
AN TRz (B
fis BT
N T HE

HEHELEEEEERLA

SME LB (4R

Increase/
(decrease)
in foreign

currency rate

—E-NE (EEF)

(hpiz)
AN TRz (B

fid B TT 3,
ST HE

As at 31 March 2020, the credit risk of the Group is

primarily attributable to trade receivables, loan and

interest receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

SN EE =
#m/ CRD)
%
10
(10)
10
(10)
EERR

36. W EREERHERBE (&)

Increase/
(decrease)

in profit

after tax and
retained profits
MREL &R
RREBER
2, CRA)
HK$'000
TETT

2,380

(2,380)

2,201

(2,201)

R-ZE-_ZTE=A=+—0 KAE£EEH
FERBRESREEWNE SR - B
BEREABURBEREBEEEY -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group provides services only to recognised and
creditworthy third parties and related parties. It is the
Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is
not significant.

One of the Group's main income generating activities is
lending money to customers, and therefore, credit risk is
a principal risk. It is the Group's policy that all new loans
are subject to stringent credit check procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk for each
of its customers before the loan applications are accepted
or rejected. If there is no independent rating, risk control
assesses the credit quality of the customer by taking into
account the financial position, past experience and other
factors of the customer. The Group holds collateral
against certain loan and interest receivables in the form
of first legal mortgages over individual properties located
in Hong Kong which mainly comprised of residential,
commercial, industrial properties and car parking spaces.
The Group approves and grants loans to its customers
pursuant to its pre-approved credit policy with tightened
management measures whenever the adverse condition
in property market occurs. The Group has loan
committees of different levels comprising of directors and
senior management to approve and grant different loan
products with various loan-to-value ratio and loan amount
requirements.

The directors and senior management of the Group
consider that the credit risk arising from the loan and
interest receivables is significantly mitigated by the
property held as collateral, with reference to the market
value of the property which was valued by independent
third party valuers as at the end of each reporting period.
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36. WEEBEEBEEREE (&)

8RR (&)
AEBRARAMERAEZF=TR
BT IRERY - AKRBEZHRR/FHE
REERETEBZMBRFP AL
FEEZERRF - I BURERRE TS
BREEERE MAKEZZKRER
WAREK e

AEBZEP-—BIZEARNESR
RAEFHE Bt EERRAS—EE
ERk  AEBZHERAAHERA
BBEBBONEEESERF - I Bl
FRARER DI EEEEE -

AEEAERMWKNIERSEPNERBE
ZHHEEEROMEREFPMEER
B o 5 W EAETTE AR - RIRER
REERRF  @ZEFEPOMBAN -
BELKBILEMBEAZRAFEHEEEES
EoARERERHOETEERERR
AR R A E R m AR E 7 & & 5
MENE RERBOTER) (ERE
HERFRTIB2BEEEDE BXEDY
X IEXEMENAEML -BEWEDS
HBRAFMMR  AEEERIFETFALH
EREEBR - ISR B AS B IR e AT
BT #HERAEEFPREHER - K
SERETRAEENERZES (KB
BREEFREREIERRE) - A E KRR
HARNEREBELERAFENTE
ERSBENERER

AEEZEENERERERR  RIE
B R = HEMRSREHRGED
MEME BREREMNBELENEER
R EARKEMRFA (FREHm)
Ck//ETPANUE] N
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging
The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without

undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 March.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for

financial assets.

As at 31 March 2020
R-E-_ZEFE=A=+-—H

36. W EREERHERBE (&)

FERR (&)

R & BRI R F LA ER D E
TRETR=ZA=+T—HREXAEEN

FEBRREENEEEREMR

=EER

B HTBAARERRER BRIEH
fERH AN E AL EORALE S E
AER - BIERIGR) - AR F R

Bo¥E -

PO BATREENREARE

Total
At
HK$'000
TR

116,538
690,433

3,923

438,811

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
TZEAES
FREX EEFENRSEREX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
E-BR EoRR EZER i 5%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TERT TR
Trade receivables EUE FIER - - - 116,538
Loan and interest receivables JEREFEFE 562,718 27,082 100,633 -
Financial assets included in BEEEMNRE &2
prepayments, deposits and R E A B BR 3R
other receivables MEREE
— Normal* =[ER 3,923 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBGEED
— Not yet past due - KB H 438,811 - - -
1,005,452 27,082 100,633 116,538

1,249,705
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

(continued)

As at 31 March 2019

R-ZE-NF=A=+—8H

Trade receivables

Loan and interest receivables

Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
- Normal*

Cash and cash equivalents

— Not yet past due

EWE 5 8%
EYREFRFE
BREERAMNNE &
RE A ERERR
MEREAE
7E'*%*‘*
e RkReEEY
— K@ H

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

36. WEEBEEBEEREE (&)

FERER (&)
REEBRARRFEDERDHE

(%)

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
TZEAES
ERBEX EETEREBEREX
Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
£-RBE& 153 F=RE BleRE Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TRET TRET TRET TRET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(=71 (E7) (BE7) (E7)
- - - 58,290 58,290
691,056 91,060 42,719 - 824,835
4712 - - - 4,712
996,257 - - - 996,257
1,692,025 91,060 42,719 58,290 1,884,094

*  The credit quality of the financial assets included in

prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered

to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no

information indicating that the financial assets had a

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is

considered to be “doubtful”.

BRAEBNIA  RE REMEKK
HereeRMEEERMAAHETEER
FASMEENGEEAREB VHER
BREEBEELI EEEEZGHR
RIEF]-BR 2REENEREYL
ZERRAIFR] -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6. M EMREEEEREE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) EERR (&)

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/ EEERRBINIEEE /R5HH K&
counterparty, by geographical region and by industry EMERRITERMNETER - ARHEP
sector. There is no significant credit risk as the tenants SRERBEEHL R RIEENERAEER
have paid security deposits as collateral to the Group for XNRBERERD  WASEELE
the lease of cruise ships and investment properties, EXEZERR - AEBHNERE
respectively. Also, the Group's loan and interest FERMEBTIEBZATREBA -

receivables are widely dispersed.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's AEBERBERE SR Eﬁﬂﬁguﬂﬂﬁ
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables, TOA R ERER KN B 2 EERR 2
other receivables and loan and interest receivables are BB R ERN Rk WI]S 16 %
disclosed in notes 15, 16 and 17 to the financial 17 °

statements.

Liquidity risk RBETRAR

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using REBUBRADAEH TAEREALS
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the RRER e ZTEZESRMIARTR
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial BE I BRE SRR ME & F 8
assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows ARFEAREEBIRERE °

from operations.
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Liquidity risk (continued)

FHLEEFTEERQA

Annual Report 2020 F3k

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as

at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Amount due to the intermediate
holding company

Loan advanced from a
non-controlling shareholder
of the Group's subsidiary

Accruals

Other payables and
deposits received

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Lease liabilities

JEf R B A A
HA
AEEMBLRRZ
FFERRR
BRI ZEH
JEET 7R

B 38R R P 5

31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

36. WEEBEEBEEREE (&)

REE @K (&)

RIBETHORFTRENR

AT # 5 A%

ERmEHRzERAEIHA

2020
S 33
3to
On Less than less than 1to5

demand 3 months 12 months years Total

=f8A

EEX 3N 2HR
RE =f8A +=f@A —Z5f ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TER TET
40,000 - - - 40,000
71,823 - - - 71,823
- 2,054 - - 2,054
21 9,365 4,998 3,386 17,770
- - 391 - 391
- 51 103 84 238
111,844 11,470 5,492 3,470 132,276
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

(continued)

36. W EREERHERBE (&)

REBE SRR (&)

RIBCRTARITIRIEN

AT # A&

ERmEMRCERABIMA - (B)

2019
“E-NEF
3t
On Less than less than 1t05
demand 3 months 12 months years Total
=fEA
B =faAR +-f@A —E0% aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAER TAT FEL FAET
(Restated) ~ (Restated)  (Restated) (Restated)
(7)) (B&E5) (EE70) (=31
Loan advanced from a FEEMERA
non-controlling shareholder FERRR
of the Group's subsidiary BZEH 131,823 - - - 131,823
Accruals JE VR 537 1,989 48 - 2,574
Other payables and Hth R IR R
deposits received BElES 259 7,086 11,009 3,338 21,692
Amount due to the immediate EREEZRAR
holding company HE 40,000 - - - 40,000
Amount due to the intermediate JEfT A R AR
holding company 2] 140,000 - - - 140,000
Amount due to related companies  fEfT BB 1\ A1 FE 20,004 i = - 20,004
332,623 9,075 11,057 3,338 356,093
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss (note 19)
as at 31 March 2020. The Group's listed investments are
listed on the stock exchange of Hong Kong and are
valued at quoted market prices at the end of the

reporting period.

The market equity indices for the following stock
exchange, at the close of business of the nearest trading
day in the year to the end of the reporting period, and its
respective highest and lowest points during the year were

as follows:

HFHELEEEEETRAA
Annual Report 2020 F3k
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B 38R R P 5

31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

36. AR EEBEERBEK (&)

iR B A% L B

P 4 B 48 B\ i S 4 RO 5 K7 K M
ESEEESMENNELSES D VE
ETHkHNERER R-_F_FTF=H
=+—H - AEEFMEEOBREERR
BRE D BEREAFEEFABRAR
RIREN AR E (fEE19) - N&E
B &Y | T R HR B T B B B S P K T AN
WEFRX B LT - R REHREA
HMEE -

RBERARNRARZHLEEREER
B TIRBARRSAOMSRERE
NERAFEREE BN &S L &IEEH
LN

31 March
2020
g 13
ZA=t-8H

Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index ~ &&— 18435k 23,603

High/low 31 March High/low
2020 2019 2019

&/ & —T-NF &/ &
“B-%F -A=+t-HB —E-NF
30,280/ 29,051 31,593/
21,139 24,541

245



246

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B EF B E R 2 A

Annual Report 2020 F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 3R R ML

31 March 2020
—E-_ZTF=A=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk (continued)
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to every
10% change in the fair values of the equity investments
of the Group, with all other variables held constant, based

on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting

period.
2020 —E-%F
Equity investments listed REB LT
in Hong Kong BRERE
2019 —“E-NF
Equity investments listed REELTH
in Hong Kong BB A

36. W EREERHERBE (&)

B A (B 4% L B (48
TREREMAEEMEBRBETET
BERERENBERRCEESE -
HAEBERBEREZATBEESEE
10% % 8) 2 BUKE o

Carrying
amount

of equity
investments

RERE
MR8
HK$'000
THT

14,119

27,984

Increase/

(decrease)

Increase/ in profit
(decrease) after tax and

in fair value  retained profits
BRBE 1R 3 A

NFEE RRE A
#m,/ (Bd) #m,/ ()

% HK$'000

FHET

10 1,179

(10) (1,179)
10 2,337

(10) (2,337)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

Annual Report 2020 F3k
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B 38R R P 5

31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

36. AR EEBEERBEK (&)

EXERE
AEEEAERZ T EZRBRABRALE
BARENEFBECLEEBZRAUNEER
BFRBREALEUAFEERIIRS
BEREE-

AEERBEEGEZECERERE
BAMNAE REFIAERELRNS
B AKETHBHERRZIKE - RR
RIRMERL BT - REBTZIN
MERZEMERNRERS - BE-F
TEERCE-NFZA=t—BLIF
B BHEEEANBR  BORIORE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6. M EMREEEEREE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is AEEMNBEANEGBLEREZE
total indebtedness divided by equity attributable to owners K BREEERERABBEBRKRIUAAA
of the Company. The Group’s policy is to maintain the AIEEARGER AEEZERAE
gearing ratio below 50%. Total indebtedness represents a BEREE B REREB50% © LET
loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder of the HAEEKME AR 2 IEERR RS 2
Group's subsidiary, amounts due to group companies and B EBEEEA T&Fﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ A IE LA
related companies and lease liabilities. The gearing ratios EHEBBE RZZE_ZEF=-HA=+—
as at 31 March 2020, 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2019 H - NAFWOA—BERZZE—NF
were as follows: ZA=+—BHBZEARHEBELERNT :
31 March 1 April 31 March
2020 2019 2019
—BCEF —E-NEF —E-NEF
=R=t+—H MA—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET TET
(Note) (Restated)
(Pig=E) (&57))
Loan advanced from a AEEWRBRRZ
non-controlling shareholder FE1ERR R R
of the Group's subsidiary BN ZER 71,823 131,823 131,823
Amount due to the immediate FEHEE? NG
holding company FIE - 40,000 40,000
Amount due to the intermediate Vﬁfpfﬂ N
holding company IR 40,000 140,000 140,000
Amount due to related companies Vﬁ ) NIF S = 20,004 20,004
Lease liabilities MERE 221 140 -
112,044 331,967 331,827
Equity attributable to owners RARHA AER
of the Company s 1,617,227 2,133,187 2,133,187
Gearing ratio BRERELX 7% 16% 16%
Note: i =E -
The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified REEDERAKETNEREHRBEENK
retrospective approach and the effect of the initial adoption is HRELEBF16  BREKANTEDHN -
adjusted against the opening balances as at 1 April 2019 with T-NFOA—BONHYERELAZE M
no adjustments to the comparative amounts as at 31 March THABR-_ZE—NF=ZA=1T— AR
2019. This resulted in no change in the Group's gearing ratio on Fo ;;ggm:% BER—_Z—NFHA—HH
1 April 2019 when compared with the position as at 31 March BEAEBELEE T -NAF=A=+—H

20109. ok /Rifﬁttjtﬁaﬁz“
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

Information about the statement of financial position of

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Equity investment designated
at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

FRBEE
ME - BEIRE
RIE LR ZHRE

BERBRAFEETA

H A 2 [ Was 1Y
Bt E

FEREE EMRE

RBEE
W E 5 B R
BNRE - RER
H 1 FE U AR R
WA FEERA
Bam R RERE
ReMREEEY

B F5 R R M 5E
31 March 2020

—E_TF=A=+—H

37. AR AR HHAARR R

BRAARRR®EHROT BRI KE

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FH&T
2,779 235
1,096,269 546,675
1,513 1,552
1,100,561 548,462
56,593 30,259
1,215 2,513
7,250 16,929
136,730 647,972
201,788 697,673
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follows: (continued)

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Lease liabilities

Other payables and accruals

Due to subsidiaries

Due to a related company

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

TOTAL ASSETS
LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY

Lease liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY
Issued capital

Reserves (Note)

Total equity

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. XD B W B IR OR &R (48)
COMPANY (continued)
Information about the statement of financial position of BREA N B AR A H R A B IS AR R R A
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as BRI : (&)

2020 2019
—EEH —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
REEE
BAFEBEA
BEaNemas 195 -
HEAE 2,395 -
B FE < BR 3k % FE 5T SRR 1,859 1,883
XL NGRS 574,261 484,071
JE 1~ RA B A R FNTE = 4
mE B EERE 578,710 485,958
RBEE (AR 28 (376,922) 211,715
MEERRE
=L 723,639 760,177
ERBERE
HEAE 81 —
BEFR 723,558 760,177
R
B BT 14,451 14,451
it (B ) 709,107 745,726
T AR 723,558 760,177
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31 March 2020
—E_TF=A=+—H

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. R AT BB R & ()
COMPANY (continued)
Note: ffsE -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RARREREZENAT :
Share Share
premium option  Contributed Fair value Retained
account reserve surplus reserve profits Total
37} BRiE AVER
HER et BEAER e REEF CE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THET TER FHER FHER

At 1 April 2018 RZE-\FMA—A 354,993 23,015 162,587 1,225 214,740 756,560
Total comprehensive losses AEEZE

for the year BREAaE - - - (453) (10,381) (10,834)
At 31 March 2019 and RZZ-NF=]

at 1 April 2019 =T-BRR

—Z-NEMA—-H 354,993 23,015 162,587 772 204,359 745,726

Final 2019 dividend BERZZE-NE

declared AR S - - - - (17,341) (17,341)
Total comprehensive losses AEEEE

for the year BEEE - - - (39) (19,239) (19,278)

At 31 March 2020 R-ZB-ZF=A
=+—H 354,993 23,015 162,587 733 167,779 709,107
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37.

38.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued)
The contributed surplus of the Company arose from:

(i) the reorganisation mentioned in note 25(i), representing
the excess of the nominal value of the Company's shares
issued under the Group's reorganisation and the then
consolidated net assets value of the acquired subsidiaries;

and

(i)  a transfer from the share premium account pursuant to the

capital restructuring on 2 June 1999.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to
shareholders in certain circumstances prescribed by section 54

thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments in
note 2.5 to the financial statements. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should

the related options expire or be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 29 June 2020.

HEHELEEEEERLA

37.

38.

DB BARR R (&)

fsE - ()
RRBZEHBHBRKE

() M50tz ER/RBARAREARN
SESEMBETRMIEEBRBRKSE
MBARERZGAEEFEIEN
K

(i) BEBE-NAANFRA-RETZRA
BT A RN EERPEL -

RIEARECBIFREE) (KER) &
ZOEDIBSMEFTMZ BETFTBRT  XARZ
BHEGA DK TRE -

BRERBREBEERY BRFTRZBERE
ZRFEE FBENYBRRME25U K
MRERNNRZ G RRE-—FSHEE-Z
ERBRERTER  FHEIBSERE
Befr s EER - S R R S IO URhs -
AEATESEREREEN -

MBmER M
MEHRECHR-E_EFAA-tTIE
EEEQHERRETR -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
ZFMBEE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- A& E B E R @B R FE & E S H 2R &
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial BEZMEHREMLCEEE EE AEME
years, as extracted from the published audited financial eSO ELWNT -

statements, is set out below.

RESULTS 4

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-BL%FE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“EZE2F _TNF ZT-N\F T—t+tF ZT-RHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET FET TET FET

(Restated)

(&)
REVENUE ON 145,364 173,006 202,055 182,616 32,247
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ~ AEE&RA,/ (F#E) 48,635 88,583 196,512 105,367 (22,442)

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE KDTERA
YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO BEREE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY wH (BR) 15,461 47,492 148,611 76,482 (32,376)
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A FMBEE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- ANEBEBERBEBKREEESEAE T RE K
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial BZMBEHFRMNLEEEE = BEMIE
years, as extracted from the published audited financial ZEREZOBEU0T < (&)

statements, is set out below. (continued)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE -BELIFEERES
INTERESTS
At 31 March
R=B=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

“E-8E —FT-NF ZET-)\F ZE—tF ZET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FET FET FET

(Restated)

(E5)

(Note)

GES,
TOTAL ASSETS EEHAE 2,168,656 2,880,876 1935125 1733983 1,673,833
TOTAL LIABILITIES A% (152,196)  (376,759)  (230,556)  (241,715)  (246,044)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ~ FriZ MR (399,233)  (370,930) (67,899) (17,775) (27,621)

1,617,227 2,133,187 1,636,670 1,474,493 1,400,168

Note: B 5T

The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2019 has been HEZZ—NWF=A=+—BHILFENTBHEER
restated to reflect the effect of adoption of merger accounting for BE&HY| URKBMREE-_ZT-_ZTF=F=+—
common control acquisition during the year ended 31 March 2020. HIEFERHERZEGKEFAGHGENTE -
The financial information for the three years ended 31 March 2018, HZ=-ZT—N\F —Z—+tFR-_FT—<F=A
2017 and 2016 has not been adjusted. =+ —RHIE=EFE MK E R & AE R #

=



INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Description

R

Shop No. 23A,

Ground Floor (Level 2),
Kwai Chung Plaza,

7-11 Kwai Foo Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong
ERAMREBEERT- 115

ERES T (B2E) 23A% 4

Ground Floor including its cockloft,

Chi Fu Building,

No. 301 Portland Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

EENEE AIRHEE3015%
EEEHMT (BEAERE)

Shop 5, Ground Floor,

Dundas Square,

No. 43H Dundas Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BEBNEHRABEIT THAZHRE
BT LB T 5%

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S E & B B R 2 A
Annual Report 2020 F3k

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
L E =

31 March 2020

—_E-_TEF=F=+—H

REWE

Percentage

Use Nature of interest

k=S bi=" EZE T

Commercial Medium-term 100
HES leasehold
REIFE

Commercial Medium-term 100
HES leasehold
RHEIFEE

Commercial Medium-term 100
[EES leasehold
FREIEE
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

Ly E e
31 March 2020
—E-_TF=F=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Description

B

Shop 3, Ground Floor,

Dundas Square,

No. 43H Dundas Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BENERE AT TH43H%
BT TR T35

762/764/766/768

North Bridge Road,
Singapore 198730/198732/
198734/198736

15th Floor, Katherine House,

Nos. 53-55 Chatham Road South,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
EENERDBERMBRES3ES55
FRPOI5E

HEHELEEEEERLA

REWE(E)

Use Nature

Az R
Commercial Medium-term
EES leasehold
FREIEE

Commercial Freehold
[EES KA ERE
Commercial Medium-term
B leasehold
FREIEE

Percentage
of interest

EEB

100

100

60
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